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CHARACTERISTICS OF THE GROWTH ENTERPRISE MARKET
(“GEM") OF THE STOCK EXCHANGE OF HONG KONG LIMITED
(THE “STOCK EXCHANGE")

GEM has been positioned as a market designed to
accommodate companies to which a higher investment risk
may be attached than other companies listed on the Stock
Exchange. Prospective investors should be aware of the
potential risks of investing in such companies and should
make the decision to invest only after due and careful
consideration. The greater risk profile and other
characteristics of GEM mean that it is a market more suited
to professional and other sophisticated investors.

Given the emerging nature of companies listed on GEM, there
is a risk that securities traded on GEM may be more
susceptible to high market volatility than securities traded on
the Main Board and no assurance is given that there will be a
liquid market in the securities traded on GEM.

Hong Kong Exchanges and Clearing Limited and the Stock Exchange
take no responsibility for the contents of this report, make no
representation as to its accuracy or completeness and expressly
disclaim any liability whatsoever for any loss howsoever arising from
or in reliance upon the whole or any part of the contents of this
report.

This report, for which the directors (the “Directors”) of Hong Kong Life
Sciences and Technologies Group Limited (the “Company”) collectively
and individually accept full responsibility, includes particulars given in
compliance with the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on GEM
of the Stock Exchange (the “GEM Listing Rules”) for the purpose of
giving information with regard to the Company. The Directors, having
made all reasonable enquiries, confirm that to the best of their
knowledge and belief the information contained in this report is
accurate and complete in all material respects and not misleading or
deceptive, and there are no other matters the omission of which
would make any statement herein or this report misleading.

This report will remain on the “Latest Company Announcements”
page of the GEM website at http.//www.hkgem.com for a minimum
period of seven days from the date of its publication and on the
Company's website at http.//www.hklifesciences.com. All respects
with the then existing shares.
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Chairman’s Statement & Management Discussion and Analysis

TREEETEENWR DN

To Shareholders:

On behalf of the board of Directors (the “Board”), | hereby
present the annual results of the Company and its subsidiaries
(collectively, the “"Group”) for the year ended 31 March 2017 (the
“Year”).

During the Year, the Group is principally engaged in (i) anti-aging
and stem cell technology businesses; (i) trading business; (iii)
money lending business; and (iv) securities investment.

BUSINESS REVIEW

Continuing operations

Anti-Aging and Stem Cell Technology Businesses

In recent years, the Group has been carrying out various
expansion plans for its investment in the anti-aging and stem cell
businesses. In 2012, the Group has successfully completed the
acquisition of 51% of equity interests of 159 Regenerative
Medicine Group (H.K.) Limited and its subsidiaries (collectively,
“159 Group"). 159 Group was granted a licence for the user right
of stem cell technology. In line with the business development,
the Group further acquired certain exclusive licences on certain
patents and an anti-aging and beauty center in Shenzhen in 2013.

Furthermore, the Group has also expanded its scope of the anti-
aging and stem cell technology businesses into research and
development area by entering into a technology development
agreement with E#AEWEHL (B /M) BR2AF] (Hope Bio-tech
(Suzhou) Co., Ltd.*) ("Hope Bio-Tech”) (the "Technology
Development Agreement”) in March 2016, Hope Bio-Tech is
wholly-owned by Mr. David Lin Kao Kun, an executive Director, and
his spouse, for the clinical application, technical redevelopment
and commercialisation of two patents previously acquired in 2013.
Through entering into the Technology Development Agreement,
the Group aims to improve the patents and benefit from improving
its product mix as well as further expand its anti-aging and stem
cell technology businesses. The Group intends to concentrate its
resources to develop the patent titled “method for constructing
pancreatic stem cell line from human insulin and differentiating to
insulin secretion cell” and believes that Hope Bio-tech possesses
the expertise and know-how to assist in the development and
improvement of the patent. Details of the Technology
Development Agreement are set out in the announcement of the
Company dated 18 March 2016.

* for identification purpose only
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Chairman’s Statement & Management Discussion and Analysis

TEREEEEET RN DN

As at 31 March 2017, the Group has an anti-aging service center
and a stem cell processing center in Hong Kong and an anti-aging
and beauty center in Shenzhen. During the Year, the Group's
revenue in anti-aging and stem cell technology businesses
recorded a decrease of approximately HK$4.0 million to
approximately HK$3.9 million (2016: HK$7.9 million). The segment
loss before impairment loss on other intangle assets and tax was
approximately HK$22.6 million (2016: HK$15.6 million). The loss
was incurred mainly from the staff and related cost, rental
expenses, research and development cost and depreciation. The
Group continued to face the keen competition and high operating
costs and the revenue was significantly affected by weak
demand for the existing stem cell technology service. The Group
has imposed tight costs control to cope with the changing
business environment.

The anti-aging and stem cell technology of the Group is still in
development stage. The Group will strive its best to develop this
business. However, the anti-aging application with the stem cell
technology is a fairly new service, the future of this business will
depend on the success in achieving the market acceptance and
customers’ confidence for our products and services. The Group
will continue to keep track of the business environment and
review the future allocation of resources as and when required.

Trading Business

During the Year, the Group engaged in the business of trading of
electronic component. The Group’s revenue in trading business
recorded an increase of approximately HK$26.8 million to
HK$121.9 million (2016: HK$95.1 million) mainly due to the
increase in the transaction volume. The segment loss before tax
was approximately HK$0.8 million (2016: HK$3.0 million). The loss
was incurred mainly from the staff and related cost, rental
expenses and depreciation. The Group will continue to attempt
to broaden the customer base and diversify its trading products
to increase the revenue stream and improve the financial
performance.
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Chairman’s Statement & Management Discussion and Analysis
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Money Lending Business

The Group commenced its money lending business through Asia
Honest Finance Limited (“Asia Honest"), a direct wholly-owned
subsidiary of the Company, which holds a money lenders licence
under the Money Lenders Ordinance (Cap. 163, Laws of Hong
Kong). As at 31 March 2017, the loan receivables and interests
receivables were approximately HK$181.2 million (2016: HK$181.3
million) and approximately HK$17.0 million (2016: HK$13.8 million)
respectively. During the Year, the Group’s revenue in money
lending business recorded an increase of approximately HK$7.8
million to approximately HK$27.8 million (2016: HK$20.0 million)
mainly due to the increase of the average loan balance during
the Year. As part of the Group’s credit policy, management
assessed the recoverability of each loan receivable individually.
As at 31 March 2017, the impairment allowance made for
doubtful loan and interest receivables amounted to HK$22.1
million (2016: Nil). The Group has taken legal actions to recover
the amount but a full provision for impairment had been made
against the respective amount. Segment gain before impairment
loss on loan and interest receivables and tax was approximately
HK$26.5 million (2016: HK$18.8 million). The interest rate charged
by the Group to customers ranging from 10% to 24% (2016: 10%
to 24%) per annum. The Group continued to provide both
secured and unsecured loans to customers, including individuals
and corporations. The credit terms of outstanding loans granted
by the Group to customers ranged from several months to one
year. In view of significant demand in the market, the Group
intends to maintain the loan portfolio with a prudent manner in
order to generate a healthy cash flow and reasonable returns.

Securities Investment

As at 31 March 2017, the Company had held-for-trading
investments in the listed company in Hong Kong of approximately
HK$3.2 million (2016: HK$12.6 million). During the Year, the
realised loss on disposal of Hong Kong listed securities was
approximately HK$1.5 million (2016: gain of approximately HK$4.0
million) and the unrealised gain of Hong Kong listed securities
investments was approximately HK$1.2 million (2016: HK$0.5
million) representing the fair value change on held-for-trading
investments. No dividend from the securities investment was
received during the Year (2016: HK$0.3 million). The Board will
continue to monitor the market conditions and its performance.
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Chairman'’s Statement & Management Discussion and Analysis
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Discontinued Operation

Disposal of Hotel Operations

In June 2015, the Group entered into the equity transfer
agreement with the purchaser to dispose of the ZREZE B Xiz
B IE AR A R (Wuyuan County Wuli Tianxi Hotel Company
Limited*) (“Tianxi Hotel") for a consideration of RMB5 million.
The completion of the disposal took place in June 2015 and the
financial results of Tianxi Hotel were therefore classified as the
discontinued operation. During the year ended 31 March 2016,
the revenue from the hotel operations was approximately HK$1.4
million and recorded the loss of approximately HK$5.7 million
from the discontinued operation.

PROSPECTS

The Board continues their optimistic outlook of the anti-aging and
stem cell technology businesses and will adjust the Group's
development strategy according to the market changes. In this
regard, the Board will constantly keep reviewing the Group’s
strategies and operations with a view to improving its business
performance. In view of the growth potential in the People’s
Republic of China (the “PRC") market, we intend to further
develop our business in the PRC. We will also continue to
enhance the existing business and explore other business and
investment opportunities to diversify the revenue stream and
business portfolios to enhance the interest of the Shareholders.

FINANCIAL REVIEW

During the Year under review, the Group's total revenue
increased by 24.5% to approximately HK$153.6 million (2016:
HK$123.4 million) from continuing operations as compared to last
year. The increase was mainly derived from the trading and
money lending businesses, which is partially offset by the
decrease in the anti-aging and stem cell technology businesses.
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Chairman’s Statement & Management Discussion and Analysis
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The Company has carried out an annual impairment test on its
other intangible assets arising from certain exclusive licences on
patents acquired in 2013. Taken into account the delay in
research and development plan on the patents, more research
effort and investment have to be made in order to produce
commercially viable products. As at 31 March 2017, the carrying
amounts of the other intangible assets were approximately
HK$12.0 million (2016: HK$46 million). The impairment loss of
HK$34.0 million (2016: HK$16 million) on other intangible assets
was recognised during the Year as the recoverable amounts of
other intangible assets were lower than their carrying amounts.
According to the relevant accounting standard, the Group has
prepared a cash flow forecast covering a 5-year period approved
by the management to assess the recoverable amount of other
intangible assets. The recoverable amount has been determined
based on a value in use calculation, with reference to the
valuation prepared by an independent professional valuer.

The Group's administrative and other operating expenses for the
Year was approximately HK$41.1 million (2016: HK$44.9 million)
from continuing operations. These expenses mainly consisted of
staff costs, impairment loss on trade receivables, legal and
professional fees, operating lease rentals and depreciation.

The loss for the Year was approximately HK$68.0 million (2016:
HK$47.4 million), representing an increase of about 43.3% as
compared to that of last year. The loss for the Year attributable to
owners of the Company was approximately HK$64.7 million
(2016: HK$42.2 million) and the loss per share was 1.30 HK cents
(2016: 1.02 HK cents).

LIQUIDITY, FINANCIAL RESOURCES AND
CAPITAL STRUCTURE
As at 31 March 2017,

(@ the Group had net current assets approximately HK$343.2
million (2016: HK$258.3 million) and the cash and bank
balances was approximately HK$142.6 million (2016:
HK$40.3 million);

(b)  the Group had no outstanding interest-bearing borrowings
(2016: Nily;
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(c) the gearing ratio of the Group, being the ratio of total
liabilities to total assets, was approximately 10.3% (2016:
11.9%);

(d) the Group's total equity attributable to the owners of the
Company amounted to HK$413.8 million (2016: HK$360.8
million). The capital of the Company mainly comprises
ordinary shares (the “Shares”) and capital reserves.

PLACING OF NEW SHARES UNDER GENERAL

MANDATE

References were made to the Company’s announcements dated
21 December 2016, 23 December 2016 and 6 January 2017 (the
“Announcements”) in relation to the Company and the placing
agent entered into the placing agreement (the “Placing
Agreement”) pursuant to which the Company agreed to place
of 948,064,000 ordinary shares of HK$0.04 each in the share
capital of the Company (the “Placing Shares”) at a price of
HK$0.13 (the “Placing Price”) per Placing Share (the “Placing”).
All conditions set out in the Placing Agreement had been fulfilled
and that the Placing of 948,064,000 Placing Shares was
completed on 6 January 2017. Pursuant to the Placing
Agreement, 474,032,000 Placing Shares were allotted and issued
to Pacific Fortune Global Limited, a company incorporated in the
British Virgin Islands with limited liability and is engaged in
investment activities; and 474,032,000 Placing Shares were
allotted and issued to Global High Growth Industries Fund Series
SPC ("GH SPC"), which is a Cayman Islands exempted
segregated portfolio company incorporated with limited liability
on 13 February 2014 to operate as a private investment funds
and GH SPC subscribed for the account of Shengyuan China
Dragon Cutting Edge Technology Investment Fund SP. The
aggregate nominal value of the Placing Shares under the Placing
was HK$37,922,560. The Placing Price of HK$0.13 represented a
discount of approximately 2.99% to the closing price of HK$0.134
per Share as quoted on the Stock Exchange on the date of the
Placing Agreement. The net proceeds raised per Share from the
Placing were approximately HK$0.1267 per Placing Share and the
net proceeds from the Placing amounted to approximately
HK$120.1 million. Up to the date of this report, approximately
HK$14 million has been deployed as general working capital and
development of existing business. Details of the Placing were
disclosed in the Announcements.
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MATERIAL EVENTS BEAREE
(a) Litigation and assignment agreement (a) FHFAKREZHRGZ

Reference was made to the announcement of the Company
dated 27 May 2013 in relation to the Group, the vendor and
the guarantors entered into the sale and purchase agreement
for the sale and purchase (the "Acquisition Agreement”) of
the property located at Longgang District, Shenzhen (the
“Property”). Under the Acquisition Agreement, the vendor
agreed to handover the Property to the purchaser for use
before 31 January 2014. The Group had paid the deposit to the
vendor in accordance with the Acquisition Agreement but the
vendor failed to handover the Property. The Group had lodged
a civil litigation against the vendor and the guarantors on 7
April 2016 (the “Litigation”) and applied for an order from the
People’s Court of Longgang District, Shenzhen Municipality of
the PRC (the “People’s Court of Longgang") for, among
other things, termination of the Acquisition Agreement and
the supplemental agreement to the Acquisition Agreement,
return of the refundable deposit in the sum of R\VIB23,520,000
and payment of damages in the sum of RMB8,490,720 (being
the damages for the period from 1 February 2014 to 15 March
2016). The Group had instructed its PRC lawyers to handle the
Litigation and deal with all legal matters in relation thereto.

On 22 June 2016, the Group entered into a creditor’s rights
assignment agreement (the “Assignment Agreement”) with
I HMA AR AR AR (Shenzhen Tennessee
Technology Co., Ltd*, as the assignee) (the “Assignee”) for
the transfer of the creditor’s rights, the rights against the
Guarantors and all the other rights and interests vested in the
Purchaser under the Acquisition Agreement and the
supplementary agreement to the Assignee (the “Sale
Rights") for a consideration of RMB11 million. The assignment
of the Sale Rights is a good opportunity for the Purchaser to
reduce potential l0ss caused by the Litigation and transfer the
relevant costs and risk out of the Purchaser, the Group. The
Directors, including the independent non-executive Directors,
were of the view that the assignment under the Assignment
Agreement is in the interests of the Company and the terms
of the Assignment Agreement are fair and reasonable and on
normal commercial terms and in the interests of the
Shareholders as a whole. Details of the Litigation and
Assignment Agreement were disclosed in the Company’s
announcements dated 4 May 2016 and 22 June 2016
respectively.
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(b) Discloseable transaction in relation to the

(c)

further extension of loan agreement |

On 29 September 2016, Asia Honest, Mr. Lam Wai Keung
("Mr. Lam”) and Honorbase International Limited
(“Honorbase”) entered into the further extension loan
agreement | (the “Further Extension Loan Agreement I").
References were made to the Company’s announcement
dated 27 March 2015, 29 September 2015 and 22 March
2016 regarding the Loan Agreement, Extension Loan
Agreement and Further Extension Loan Agreement
between Asia Honest, and Mr. Lam and Honorbase.
Pursuant to the Further Extension Loan Agreement, Asia
Honest agreed to extend the maturity date of the loan to 20
September 2016. As the term of Extension Loan Agreement
had expired, Asia Honest, Mr. Lam and Honorbase entered
into the Further Extension Loan Agreement | to extend the
maturity date of the Loan from 20 September 2016 to 20
March 2017. Pursuant to the Further Extension Loan
Agreement |, the principal of the loan of HK$27,389,676 was
secured by the legal charge in respect of land located in
Hong Kong. Details of the Further Extension Loan
Agreement | were disclosed in the Company’s
announcement dated 29 September 2016.

Discloseable transaction in relation to the
acquisition of entire issued share capital of
Honorbase

On 31 May 2017, the Metropolitan Global Trading Limited (the
“Purchaser”), a direct wholly-owned subsidiary of the
Company, entered into the agreement with, among other
parties, Mr. Lam (the “Vendor") and Honorbase (the “Target
Company”) pursuant to which the Vendor had agreed to
sell and the Purchaser had agreed to purchase the Sale
Shares representing the entire issued share capital of the
Target Company at the consideration of HK$43,900,000 (the
"Agreement”) on and subject to the terms and conditions
contained therein. The Target Company is the legal and
beneficial owner of the Property which is situated at Lantau
Island, Hong Kong and is mainly designated for the
development of private residential properties for sale. In view
of the potential growth of the property market in Hong Kong,
the Group believes that this is a good opportunity to acquire
a small property for possible development or resale so as to
enable a more diversified income for the Group and return
for Shareholders. All the conditions precedent to the
Agreement had been fulfilled and completion took place on
7 June 2017. Details of the acquisition were disclosed in the
Company’s announcement, dated 31 May 2017 and 7 June
2017.

(b)

(c)
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SIGNIFICANT INVESTMENTS HELD BY THE
GROUP

Save as disclosed in this report, the Group did not have any
significant investments as at 31 March 2017.

MATERIAL ACQUISITIONS AND DISPOSALS
OF SUBSIDIARIES

During the Year, the Group did not have any material acquisitions
and disposals of subsidiaries.

CHARGE ON GROUP ASSETS

As at 31 March 2017, the Group did not have any material charge
on assets (2016: Nil).

FUTURE PLAN FOR MATERIAL INVESTMENTS
OR CAPITAL ASSETS

Save as disclosed in this report, the Group did not have any
concrete plan for material investment or capital assets as at 31
March 2017.

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES
As at 31 March 2017, the Group had no material material
contingent liabilities (2016: Nil).

PRINCIPAL RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES

The Group's business operations and financial conditions may be
affected by various types of risks and uncertainties, including the
operational risks, price risk, credit risk, liquidity risk and
regulatory risks. The Group has established a set of risk
management policies and measures to identify, evaluate and
manage risks arising from its operations.

Operational risks are those relating to the Group’s internal
processes, including but not limited to potential misconduct of
employees and fraud, which may bring significant adverse impact
on the Group’s business operations and reputation. Operational
risks may also result from emergencies and unexpected events
such as natural hazards.
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Price risk refers to the Group's investment in the held-for-trading
investments. As the Group’'s investments are mainly
concentrated on equity securities listed in Hong Kong, the
financial position and the returns of the investments will be
affected by the conditions of the stock market in Hong Kong.
Negative developments in, or the general weakness of, the Hong
Kong economy, may have a direct adverse effect on the Group'’s
investment performance.

Credit risk relates to the ability or willingness of customers to
meet their contractual obligations. The Group’s maximum
exposure to credit risk for its money lending businesses arises
primarily from the individual borrowers. Since most of the
Group’s loan receivables are unsecured, this leads to Group
subject to greater risk of irrecoverability. If, in a subsequent
period, conditions such as economic downturn, and other factors
affects the repayment status of the borrowers and the estimation
of future cash flows of the loans, a loss may arise.

Liquidity risk refers to the Group’s ability in maintaining sufficient
fund to meet the liquidity requirements. In the management of
the liquidity risk, the Group monitors and maintains a level of
cash and cash equivalents deemed adequate by the
management to finance the Group’s operations and mitigate the
effects of fluctuations in cash flows. The management regularly
reviews its major funding positions to ensure that it has adequate
financial resources in meeting its financial obligations.
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Regulatory risks may arise from potential default of the Group in
compliance with the relevant laws and regulations which have a
significant impact on the Group’s business and any future
changes in the relevant laws and regulations. Non-compliance
with the relevant laws and regulations may bring various
consequences to the Group, including but not limited to the
revocation or suspension of the money lenders licence and/or
the imposition of penalties resulting from the offence. The
Company has adopted a series of internal control policies and
procedures which governs the Company’s compliance matters in
relation to the Money Lenders Ordinance, the GEM Listing Rules
as well as other relevant regulations.

Further discussion on the Group’s risks are set out in the note 30
to the consolidated financial statements and the risk
management and internal control of the Company is set out in
the paragraph headed “Risk Management and Internal Control” in
the section headed “Corporate Governance Report” from page
31 to page 33 of this annual report.

FOREIGN EXCHANGE EXPOSURE

The Group mainly earns revenue and incurs costs in Hong Kong
dollars and Renminbi and considers that the impact of foreign
exchange exposure of the Group is minimal. During the Year, the
Group did not use any financial instruments for hedging
pUrposes.

EMPLOYEE INFORMATION

As at 31 March 2017, the Group employed a total of 43 (2016: 38)
full-time employees in Hong Kong and the PRC. During the Year
under review, the total remuneration to employees, including
Directors’ emoluments and retirement benefits amounted to
approximately HK$11.1 million (2016: HK$14.7 million). The Group
remunerates its employees based on their performance,
qualification, experience and the prevailing industry practice.
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APPRECIATIONS &)

I would like to take this opportunity to express our sincere EEFERE - B R X2 BB — B BRE KM
gratitude to all our Shareholders, customers, business partners & h¥ i EERSEE) - A AEE R #E RO
who have been offering their support, confidence and . K& BERLHE T B LE » UEEBST
encouragement to us. Not to mention the great devotion, JHEELEEHMHEIAEFEREZEZB L B2
diligence and effort of the management and the members of staff ~ TH A8 - MBER E 2 715 - NEE KT ETE R
who tirelessly committed themselves in striving for sk Bk AKREZEZEULEE R -
improvements of the Group. With all these supports remain, we

shall continue to explore means to improve the Group's

performance and provide investment returns to the investors.

Lam Kuo FE
Chairman MK
Hong Kong, 23 June 2017 EE —_ET—+EXAZ+=H
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Profile of Directors
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Executive Directors

Mr. David Lin Kao Kun (“Mr. Lin"), aged 67, was appointed as
an executive Director and a vice chairman of the Board on 23
September 2013. Mr. Lin is also the directors of various
subsidiaries of the Company. He has over 30 years' experience in
healthcare management. Mr. Lin is currently the shareholder and
director of Healthcare Solution Investments Limited, Wei Xin
Hospital Investments Management (Shanghai) Co., Ltd* and Hope
Bio-Tech.

Mr. Lu Zhigiang (“Mr. Lu”), aged 42, was appointed as an
executive Director and the chief executive officer of the Company
on 30 September 2011. Mr. Lu is also the compliance officer, the
authorized representative and the directors of various
subsidiaries of the Company. He holds a Master of Business
Administration Degree from Central State University of the United
States of America, a Bachelor Degree in Engineering and a
Bachelor Degree in Industry from Nanchang Hangkong University.
Mr. Lu attended the progrom of a Master of Science Degree from
the International Purchasing & Supply Chain Management
Audencia NANTES.Ecole de Management. Mr. Lu has many years'
experience in corporate management and investment. Mr. Lu is
currently an executive director of Extrawell Pharmaceutical
Holdings Limited (stock code: 858). He was an executive director
of Global Energy Resources International Group Limited (Stock
code: 8192) from 28 November 2014 to 2 September 2016 and a
non-executive director of Lamtex Holdings Ltd. (formerly known
as China New Energy Power Group Limited stock code: 1041)
from 29 October 2014 to 9 July 2015.

Mr. Chui Kwong Kau (“Mr. Chui”), aged 50, was appointed as
a non-executive Director on 19 October 2009 and subsequently
re-designated as an executive Director on 30 November 2009.
Mr. Chui is also a member of the remuneration committee, the
authorized representative, the agent for the service of process in
Hong Kong and the directors of various subsidiaries of the
Company. He has over 20 years’ experience in financial
management, accounting and auditing fields. Mr. Chui is currently
a non-executive director of each of Hsin Chong Group Holdings
Limited (stock code: 404), Ngai Shun Holdings Limited (stock
code: 1246) and DeTai New Energy Group Limited (stock code:
559). He was an executive director of China Energy Development
Holdings Limited (stock code: 228) from 5 October 2005 to 30
June 2016 and an independent non-executive director of Aurum
Pacific (China) Group Limited (stock code: 8148) from 17 March
2010 to 16 March 2016.
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Mr. Jiang Hongging (“Mr. Jiang”), aged 49, was appointed as
an executive Director and a vice chairman of the Board on 1
December 2012. He has resigned as a vice chairman of the Board
but remains as an executive Director on 22 August 2014. Mr.
Jiang holds a Ph.D. in Engineering majoring in Architectural
Design and Theory from South China University of Technology.
He also holds a Master of Engineering Degree majoring in
Landscape Architecture Design and a Bachelor of Engineering
Degree majoring in Urban Planning from Chongging Institute of
Architecture and Engineering. Mr. Jiang had also been studied in
Ecole d' Architecture Parisla-Seine in Paris, France. He is a
Professorate Senior Urban Planner and a Certified Planner of the
People’s Republic of China. In addition, Mr. Jiang was also the
member of City Ecological Planning and Construction Academic
Committee of the Urban Planning Society of China and also was
a consultant of Urban Planning Construction and Protection of
Ancient City of Lijiang, Yunnan Province. He has extensive
experience in planning design, architectural design, landscape
architecture design, planning management and project planning.
He is currently an independent non-executive director of China
Minsheng Drawin Technology Group Limited (stock code: 726).

Ms. Li Mei (“"Ms. Li"), aged 37, was appointed as the executive
Director on 14 December 2015. Ms. Li holds a degree of Master
of Business Administration in Financial Management from York
University, United States of America. Ms. Li has extensive
experience in financial services business. She is a licensed
person under the Securities and Futures Ordinance (the “SFO")
to carry on type 1 (dealing in securities) regulated activity. Ms. Li
is an independent non-executive of China Ocean Fishing Holdings
Limited (formerly known Sky Forever Supply Chain Management
Group Limited, stock code: 8047). She was an executive Director
of the Company from 21 September 2012 to 1 August 2013.
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Non-executive Director

Ms. Lam Kuo (“Ms. Lam"), aged 69, was appointed as the non-
executive Director and the chairman of the Board on 1 December
2012. Ms. Lam is currently the sub-director and the shareholder
of GOLDEN DRAGON INTERNATIONAL AIR TRANSPORT COMPANY
LIMITED. Ms. Lam has over 30 years' business experience in the
mainland China, Hong Kong and Macau region.

Independent Non-executive Directors

Mr. Hung Yat Ming (“Mr. Hung"), aged 65, was appointed as
an independent non-executive Director on 28 March 2013. Mr.
Hung is also the chairman of each of the audit committee, the
remuneration committee and the nomination committee of the
Company. He graduated from The University of Hong Kong with a
Bachelor degree in Mathematics and obtained a graduate
diploma in Accounting from University of Strathclyde, Glasgow.
Mr. Hung has over 30 years of experience in accounting and
finance and is a financial controller of a Hong Kong listed
company. He is a member of The Institute of Chartered
Accountants of Scotland and Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants. Mr. Hung is currently an independent non-
executive director of each of Asia Standard Hotel Group Limited
(stock code: 292) and Asia Orient Holdings Limited (stock code:
214). He was an independent non-executive director of Sunway
International Holdings Limited (stock code: 58) from 28 February
2013 t0 20 May 2015.

Mr. Chan Yun Hing (“Mr. Chan”), aged 69, was appointed as
an independent non-executive Director on 21 September 2012.
Mr. Chan is also the member of each of the audit committee, the
remuneration committee and the nomination committee of the
Company. He holds a degree of Master of Business
Administration from Research Institute of Tsinghua University in
Shenzhen (RITS), China — University of Wales. Mr. Chan is
currently the director and consultant of Huizhou Da Ya Wan Hui
Li Group Limited*. He is also the Standing Committee Member of
Guangdong Huizhow of the Chinese People’s Political
Consultative Conference, the Vice Chairman and the Secretary-
General of Hong Kong Federation of Huichow Associations
Limited and the Deputy Secretary-General of Hong Kong
Federation of Guangdong Hakka Associations.
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Mr. Gui Qiangfang (“Mr. Gui”), aged 59, was appointed as an
independent non-executive director of the Company on 21
September 2012. Mr. Gui is also the member of each of the audit
committee, the remuneration committee and the nomination
committee of the Company. He holds a degree of Doctor of
Business Administration from California Southern University
(formerly known as Southern California University for Professional
Studies) and as a post-doctoral research fellow at California State
University Monterey Bay. Mr. Gui is currently the chairman of the
board of GN International Group and the chairman of World City
Cooperation Organization Committee of China. He possesses the
professional qualifications such as China Certified Real Estate
Appraiser, Certified Public Valuer and Registered Land Valuer. Mr.
Gui has over 20 years corporate experience and over 5 years
working experience in the Government of the People’s Republic
of China.
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Corporate Governance Report
SREARE

OVERVIEW
The Board is pleased to present this Corporate Governance
Report in the annual report for the Year.

The Company is concerned to have high standards of corporate
governance. It is important because the Board believes that good
quality corporate governance would assist the management to
monitor the Company’s business activities effectively and thus
interests of the Shareholders will be well protected.

The Board has continued to monitor and review the corporate
governance principles and practices to ensure compliance.
Throughout the Year, the Company has applied the principles
and complied with the principle in the code provision of the
Corporate Governance Code and Corporate Governance Report
(the "CG Code") set out in Appendix 15 to the GEM Listing Rules,
save for the following deviations as set out in the relevant section
below.

SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS BY DIRECTORS
The Company has adopted a Code of conduct regarding
Directors’ securities transactions on terms no less exacting than
the required standard of dealings as set out in Rules 5.48 t0 5.67
of the GEM Listing Rules. Having made specific enquiry, all
Directors confirmed that they had complied with such code of
conduct and the required standard of dealings throughout the
Year.
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COMPOSITION OF THE BOARD

The Board is responsible for leadership and control of the
Company and is collectively responsible for promoting the
success of the Company by directing and supervising its affairs.
In practice, the Board takes responsibilities for decision making in
all major matters of the Group, include approving and monitoring
of all policy matters, setting of objectives, annual budgets and
overall strategies, material transaction, appointment of directors
and other significant financial and operational matters. The day-
to-day management, administration and operations of the Group
are delegated to the senior management of the Group. These
responsibilities include the implementation of decisions of the
Board, the coordination and direction of day-to-day operation
and management of the Group in accordance with the
management strategies and plans approved by the Board.
Approval has to be obtained from the Board prior to any
significant transactions entered into by the senior management
of the Group and the Board has the full support of them to
discharge its responsibilities.

The Directors have full and timely access to information and
accounts of the Group and are entitled to seek independent
professional advice in appropriate circumstances at the
company’s expenses.

The Company has arranged appropriate insurance cover in
respect of legal action against the Directors.
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SREARE

As at the date of this report, the Board comprises a total of nine
Directors and their respective roles in the Board are set out as
follows:

Executive Directors

Mr. David Lin Kao Kun (Vice Chairman)
Mr. Lu Zhigiang (Chief Executive Officer)
Mr. Chui Kwong Kau

Mr. Jiang Hongging

Ms. Li Mei

Non-executive Director
Ms. Lam Kuo (Chairman)

Independent Non-executive Directors
Mr. Hung Yat Ming
Mr. Chan Yun Hing
Mr. Gui Qiangfang

The updated list of Directors and their role and function are
posted on respective websites of the GEM and the Company.

The profiles of each Director are set out in the “Profile of
Directors” section on pages 16 to 19 of this annual report.

In compliance with Rule 5.05 of the GEM Listing Rules, the
Company currently has three independent non-executive
Directors (the “INEDS") which representing equal to one-third of
the Board, and with at least one of them having appropriate
professional qualifications or accounting or related financial
management expertise. The INEDS can assist the management to
formulate the Group’s development strategies, ensure the Board
prepares its financial and other mandatory reports in strict
compliance with required standards, and ensure the Company
maintains appropriate system to protect the interests of the
Company and the Shareholders.

The Company has received written annual confirmation from
each of the INEDs in respect of their independence to the
Company in accordance with the guidelines set out in Rule 5.09
of the GEM Listing Rules.
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Corporate Governance Report
CEEARE

There is no relationship, including financial, business, family or
other material/relevant relationship(s) among members of the
Board and between the chairman of the Board (the “Chairman”)
and the chief executive officer of the Company (the “CEQ").

THE BOARD MEETINGS

The Board meets regularly and the Directors attended the
meetings in person or through electronic means of
communication in accordance with the Company’s articles of
association (the “Articles”). The Board is scheduled to meet four
times a year at approximately quarterly intervals with notice
given to the Directors at least fourteen (14) days in advance.

Minutes of the Board meetings are recorded in sufficient detail
for any decision made during the meetings. Draft minutes are
circulated to the Directors for comment and final version of the
minutes are circulated to the Directors for records. All minutes of
the Board meetings are kept by the company secretary of the
Company (the “Company Secretary”) and open for inspection
by the Directors.

If a Director has a conflict of interest in a matter to be considered
by the Board which the Board has determined to be material, the
matter will be dealt with by a physical Board meeting rather than
a written resolution. INEDs who have no material interest in the
transaction should be present at such Board meeting.

During the Year, 16 Board meetings were held, at which the
Directors discussed and approved, among other matters (i) the
Group's consolidated annual results for the year ended 31 March
2016, the first quarterly results for the three months ended 30
June 2016, interim results for the six months ended 30 September
2016 and third quarterly results for the nine months ended 31
December 2016, (ii) the discloseable transactions and inside
information in relation to the proposed acquisition, (iii)
refreshment of general mandate and placing of new Shares and
placing of new Shares under general mandate, and (iv) the overall
strategic direction and objectives of the business and other
significant matter of the Group.

Individual attendance of each Director at the Board meetings,
committee meetings and general meetings are set out in the
table on page 29 of this annual report.
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CHAIRMAN AND CEO

Pursuant to the Code provision A.2.1 of the CG Code, the roles of
the chairman and chief executive should be separated and
should not be performed by the same individual. The division of
responsibilities between the chairman and chief executive should
be clearly established and set out in writing. To ensure a balance
of power and authority, the roles of the Chairman and the CEO
are segregated and performed by Ms. Lam Kuo and Mr. Lu
Zhigiang respectively.

The Chairman is to provide leadership for the Board and
overseeing the formulation of corporate strategy of the Group.
The CEO is responsible for the overall management and business
operations of the Group.

APPOINTMENT AND RE-ELECTION OF THE
DIRECTORS

Pursuant to the Code provision A.4.1 of the CG Code, the non-
executive directors should be appointed for a specific term,
subject to re-election.

The non-executive Director and all INEDs are not appointed for a
specific term, but they are subject to re-election at the annual
general meeting of the Company in accordance with the Articles.

In accordance with the Article 87(1) of the Articles, one-third of
the Directors for the time being (or, if their number is not a
multiple of three, the number nearest to but not less than one-
third) shall retire from office by rotation provided that every
Director shall be subject to retirement at least once every three
years.

CONTINUOUS PROFESSIONAL
DEVELOPMENT

The Directors are encouraged to participate in continuous
professional development to develop and refresh their
knowledge and skills.

The newly appointed Director is provided with an induction and
information to ensure that he has a proper understanding of the
Company's operations and businesses as well as his
responsibilities under relevant statue, laws, rules and regulations.
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During the Year, the Company had arranged at the cost of the
Company a professional seminar conducted by a professional
firm on topics relating to the new amendments to the Listing
Rules and other applicable regulatory requirements to ensure
compliance and enhance their awareness of good corporate
governance practices. All Directors including newly appointed
Directors would receive such training reading materials.

All Directors confirmed that they have complied with the Code
provision A.6.5 on directors’ training. During the Year, all
Directors namely Mr. David Lin Kao Kun, Mr. Lu Zhigiang, Mr. Chui
Kwong Kau, Mr. Jiang Hongging, Ms. Li Mei, Ms. Lam Kuo, Mr.
Hung Yat Ming, Mr. Chan Yun Hing and Mr. Gui Qiangfang had
participated in continuous professional development by attending
seminar/programme/reading relevant materials in relation to the
business on directors’ duties.

BOARD COMMITTEES

The Board has established three Board committees, namely the
Audit Committee, the Remuneration Committee and the
Nomination Committee to oversee particular aspects of the
Company's affairs. The Board committees are provided with
sufficient resources to discharge their duties. The written terms
of reference for Board committees are posted on the respective
websites of the GEM and the Company.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Audit Committee was established with written terms of
reference in compliance with the Rules 5.28 and 5.29 of the GEM
Listing Rules and Code provision C.3.3 of the CG Code. The Audit
committee comprises three INEDs, hamely Mr. Hung Yat Ming,
Mr. Chan Yun Hing and Mr. Gui Qiangfang. Mr. Hung Yat Ming is
the chairman of the Audit Committee.
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The principal responsibilities of the Audit Committee are to make
recommendations to the Board on the appointment,
reappointment and removal of the external auditor, approve the
remuneration and terms of engagement of the external auditor
and any questions of its resignation and dismissal, review the
Group's annual report and accounts, half-year report and
quarterly reports, review the Company’s financial controls,
internal control and risk management systems, discuss the
internal control system with management to ensure that
management has performed its duty to have an effective internal
control system, review the Group’s financial and accounting
policies and practices and to provide advices and comments
thereon to the Board.

During the Year, the Audit Committee held 5 meetings, at which
the Audit Committee had reviewed and discussed, among other
matters (i) the Group’s consolidated annual results for the year
ended 31 March 2016, the first quarterly results for the three
months ended 30 June 2016, interim results for the six months
ended 30 September 2016 and third quarterly results for the nine
months ended 31 December 2016; (i) the term of engagement of
external auditor and the audit planning and the engagement of
for the year ended 31 March 2017, and (iii) the appointment of
service provider relating to the review and assessment of risk
management and internal control system of the Group for year
ended 31 March 2017.

Individual attendance of each member of the Audit Committee
are set out in the table on page 29 of this annual report.

The Audit Committee has reviewed and discussed the Company's
audited consolidated financial results for the Year, including the
accounting principles and practice adopted by the Group, the
Company's compliance with the CG Code and disclosure in this
Corporate Governance Report, the effectiveness of the Group's
internal control and risk management systems and the Group's
internal audit function performed by the external internal control
advisers and recommended to the Board for consideration the
same and the re-appointment of Pan-China (H.K.) CPA Limited
(“Pan-China”) as the Company’s external independent auditor at
the forthcoming annual general meeting (the “AGM").
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NOMINATION COMMITTEE

A Nomination Committee was established with written terms of
reference in compliance with the Code provision A.5.2 of the CG
Code. As at the date of this report, the Nomination Committee
comprises three INEDs, namely Mr. Hung Yat Ming, Mr. Chan Yun
Hing and Mr. Gui Qiangfang. Mr. Hung Yat Ming is the chairman
of the Nomination Committee.

The principal responsibilities of the Nomination Committee are to
review the structure, size, composition and diversity of the
Board, identify individuals suitably qualified to become Board
members, assess the independence of the INEDs and make
recommendations to the Board on the appointment or
reappointment of the Directors and succession planning for the
Directors as well as review and assess the adequacy of the
corporate governance guidelines of the Company and to
recommend any proposed changes to the Board for approval.

Board diversity policy

The Company has adopted the Board diversity policy in
accordance with the requirement set out in the CG Code. The
Company recognises that the Board diversity is an essential
element contributing to the sustainable development of the
Company. In designing the Board’s composition, the Board
diversity has been considered from a number of aspects,
including but not limited to the skills, knowledge, gender, age,
cultural and educational background or professional experience.
All Directors’ appointments are based on merits and considered
against a variety of objective criteria, having due regard for the
benefits of diversity on the Board.

During the Year, the Nomination Committee held 1 meeting, at
which the Nomination Committee had (i) reviewed and discussed
the structure, size and composition of the Board, (i) reviewed the
Board Diversity Policy, and (iii) recommended to the Board for the
consideration of the re-appointment of all the retiring Directors at
the forthcoming AGM.
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The Nomination Committee has assessed and reviewed each of
the INEDs’ annual written confirmation of independence for the
Year and confirmed that all of them, namely Mr. Hung Yat Ming,
Mr. Chan Yun Hing and Mr. Gu Qiangfang remain independent.

Individual attendance of each member of the Nomination
Committee are set out in the table on page 29 of this annual
report.

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

A Remuneration Committee was established with written terms
of reference in compliance with the Code provision B.1.2 of the
CG Code. As at the date of this report, the Remuneration
Committee comprises one executive Director, namely Mr. Chui
Kwong Kau, and three INEDs, namely Mr. Hung Yat Ming , Mr.
Chan Yun Hing and Mr. Gui Qiangfang. Mr. Hung Yat Ming is the
chairman of the Remuneration Committee.

The principal responsibilities of the Remuneration Committee are
to make recommendations to the Board on the Company'’s policy
and structure for all Directors and senior management
remuneration, and to determine, with delegated responsibility,
the remuneration packages of individual executive Directors and
senior management, to review and approve the management’s
remuneration proposals with reference to the Board's corporate
goals and objectives.

During the Year, the Remuneration Committee held 1 meeting, at
which the Remuneration Committee had reviewed and approved
the the remuneration packages for individual executive Directors
and senior management.

Individual attendance of each member of the Remuneration
Committee are set out in the table on page 29 of this annual
report.
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DIRECTORS’ ATTENDANCE RECORD AT BEEHEeSNg

MEETINGS

Details of the attendance of the Directors at the Board meetings TXHIEEERAEEHEESe o RER
and its respective committees meetings, and general meeting BrZ 8@ e IARKREAS 78S -
during the Year are set out in the following table:

Number of meetings attended/Eligible to attend
EREERY HEEREEZRY

Annual
General
Audit  Nomination Remuneration Meeting/
Board Committee Committee Committee General
Directors Meetings Meetings Meeting Meeting Meeting
= EZEER ENZEEEEE REZEE8E FMZEEeR RREFAE
/BRAE

Executive Directors TEZ
Mr. David Lin Kao Kun Mgk g 16/16 N/AT &R N/AT @ N/AT @ 112
Mr. Lu Zhigiang Bkt 16/16 N/ATNEF N/ANE A N/ANE A 2/2
Mr. Chui Kwong Kau EXIREE 16/16 N/ATNE A N/ATNER 11 2/2
Mr. Jiang Hongging ZHERE 1416 N/ATNEF N/ARE A N/ARE A 0/2
Ms. Li Mei Fight 15/16 N/ATEF N/ATEF N/ATER 112

Non-executive Director ~ F#H{TE=

Ms. Lam Kuo wkat 14/16 N/ATiEF N/ATER N/ATE A 0/2
Independent Non- BUFHTES

executive Directors
Mr. Hung Yat Ming AARLE 15/16 5/5 11 171 2/2
Mr. Chan Yun Hing BB E A 12/16 5/5 171 A 0/2
Mr. Gui Qiangfang EL: e 1216 5/5 1/1 11 0/2

Pursuant to Code provision E.1.2 of the CG Code, the Chairman 1R ¥ B 4FRIFEE12E~FAIES - FEEL
should attend the annual general meeting. However, Ms. Lam  [EREBEEAFAE - A MELTREDTHE
Kuo was unable to attend the annual general meeting held on 5  fhEEMELIHER _ZE— "FNANARLBET2
August 2016 due to her other prior engagement. Ms. Lam invited REBEFERE@ « ML TERFRITES E N ELE
Mr. Chui Kwong Kau, an executive Director to chair and answer  F#HARFBREBAEAE RO ZE/M - AR TS5
questions at the annual general meeting of the Company. The BEZHACHEARAREREFAE  ULEH
external auditor of the Company attended the annual general Bt T REKBMBRERERNE - 51K
meeting of the Company to answer questions about the conduct % LA R AZ A& 7 15 2 12/ o

of the audit, the preparation and content of the auditor’s report,

the accounting policies and auditor’s independence.
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Pursuant to Code provision A.6.7 of the CG Code, all non-
executive Directors should attend general meetings. However,
certain non-executive Directors were unable to attend the annual
general meeting of the Company due to their other prior
engagements. Details of attendance of the general meeting are
set out in the above table.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE FUNCTIONS

The Board is responsible for performing the corporate
governance functions, amongst other things, the development
and review of the policies and practices on corporate governance
of the Group and monitoring the compliance with legal and
regulatory requirements, reviewing and monitoring the training
and continuous professional development of Directors and senior
management, and reviewing the Company'’s compliance with the
CG Code and disclosure in the annual report.

The corporate governance report has been reviewed by the
Board in discharge of its corporate governance function.

ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT

The Board is committed to provide a balanced, clear and
understandable assessment in annual and interim reports and
other financial disclosures required by the GEM Listing Rules. The
Directors acknowledge their responsibility for the preparation
and the true and fair presentation of the consolidated financial
statements in accordance with the Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards and the disclosure requirements of the
Companies Ordinance and the GEM Listing Rules.

The management also provides the Board with monthly updates
giving a balanced and understandable assessment of the Group’s
performance, position and prospects in sufficient details to
enable the Board as a whole and each Directors to discharge
their duties under Rule 5.01 and Chapter 17 of the GEM Listing
Rules.

The responsibility of the auditor is set out in the “Independent
Auditor’s Report” of this annual report.
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REMUNERATION OF THE AUDITOR

The Audit Committee had reviewed the performance of Pan-
China as the independent auditor of the Company and proposed
to re-appoint Pan-China as the independent auditor at the
forthcoming AGM.

During the Year, the fee paid/payable to Pan-China in respect of
the audit and non-audit services provided by the auditor of the
Company are as follows:

R BRET BN <&

EE B WL R RRIEARARBIILEEA 2
KE - DRERARTMEREBE ARG LA
KB RIED -

RAFERN - RARBRBEESE 2 EZLIFE
RIRBRXES N2 BRMT

Type of services Amounts
RIEESE -]
HK$
BT
Audit service BB
Audit fee for the financial statements of the Group for A&EBHE-_T—+F=HA=+—H
the year ended 31 March 2017 IEFEZHBRER 2 EZER 880,000
Non-audit service BRI
Fee for financial due diligence in relation to the B WEEE R EaER
proposed acquisition 270,000
RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL L B ' 2 % A BB EE
CONTROL
The Board is responsible for the design, implementation, =Z=FEBER 17T BEERRIREE A
monitoring and review of the Group’s system of internal control ~ #BEIEHIE - AREAK UL TS - EFEAE
to ensure their effectiveness and adequacy. The Board shall at > EFigat AR E R RN EETE - REE
least annually review its risk management and internal control B — R A EZEERRET - EESER

system. The Group has adopted a series of internal control
policies and procedures designed to provide reasonable
assurance for achieving the business objectives of the Group.
However, the system of internal control is designed to manage
rather than eliminate the risk of failure to achieve business
objectives and can only provide reasonable and not absolute
assurance against material misstatement or 10ss.

BERAREEZEEBR - AT AEREE %‘JV
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Objective of Risk Management and Internal
Control

The objectives of the risk management and internal control
framework of the Group include:

o to ensure the Company’s risk management and internal
control in compliance with the GEM Listing Rules
requirements;

o to establish and constantly improve the risk management
and internal control systems;

o to implement top-down and bottom-up approaches risk
management system that covers every aspect of the
business; and

o to keep baseline risks within the acceptable range.

Principles of Internal Control

The development internal control systems involved five elements,
namely internal environment, risk assessment, control activities,
information and communication and monitoring of controls. The
aim of internal control is to reasonably guarantee the compliance
of its operation and management with regulations and laws,
assets security, and authenticity and integrity of financial report
and related information, improve the efficiency and effectiveness
of operating activities and promote the realization of
development strategy of the Group.

Risk Management Approach

The risk management process of the Group involves risk
identification, analysis, evaluation, communication, reporting and
monitoring. The methodology adopted in risk identification and
assessment process involves top-down and bottom-up
approaches. At the Board level, a top-down approach is adopted
to focus on determining the nature and extent of major strategic
risks that it is willing to take in achieving its strategic objectives.
The key risks related to the Group’s business and to the
industries in which the Group operates were set out in the
section headed “Principal risks and uncertainties” of Chairman'’s
Statement and Management Discussion and Analysis.
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At functional level, a bottom-up approach with involvement of all
significant departments of the Group is adopted to identify
operational risks in daily operations. The process includes the
maintenance of internal control manual and compliance manual
setting out the particulars of material risks together with the
control measures as reported by significant departments of the
Group. It is to ensure that the significant risks to be considered
by the Board in determining the risk appetite and the adequacy
of resource, staff qualifications and experience, training
programmes and budget of the Company’s accounting and
financial reporting function.

The Board has established an on-going process for identifying,
evaluating and managing the significant risks faced by the Group
and this process includes enhancing the systems of risk
management and internal control from time to time in response
to the changes to the business environment or regulatory
guidelines. All employees are committed to continually enhancing
the risk management framework, linking to our corporate
strategies as well as integrating it into day-to-day operation of
the business.

During the Year, the Board has, through the Audit Committee
and with the assistance of management and external internal
control advisers, conducted a review on the effectiveness of the
Group's system of financial, operational and compliance controls
and reported its findings and made recommendations to the
Board.

The Company does not have an internal audit function and an
independent consultancy firm was engaged as the Group’s
external internal control advisers, to perform the review on the
internal control system of the Group, including financial,
operational and compliance controls and risk management
functions for the Year.

The Board has conducted a review of the effectiveness of the
Group's risk management and internal control systems and
internal audit function through discussion with the Audit
Committee on major findings and control issue and considered
them effective and adequate. The Board also considers that the
adequacy of resources, staff qualifications and experience, and
budget of the Group's accounting and financial reporting
function.
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HANDLING AND DISSEMINATION OF INSIDE
INFORMATION

The Company has established and maintained the procedures
and internal controls for the handling and dissemination inside
information. The Company has adopted a code of conduct for
dealing in securities of the Company by the Directors in
accordance with Rules 5.46 to 5.67 of the GEM Listing Rules.
Other employees of the Group who are likely to be in possession
of inside information of the Company are also subject to dealing
restrictions. The Group has strictly prohibited unauthorised use
of confidential or insider information. Any inside information and
any information which may potentially constitute inside
information is promptly identified, assessed and escalated to the
Board and for the Board to decide on the need for disclosure.
Inside information and other information which is required to be
disclosed pursuant to the GEM Listing Rules will be announced
on the respective websites of GEM and the Company in due
course.

COMPANY SECRETARY

Mr. Lam Tze Chung was appointed as the Company Secretary
with effect from 1 March 2013. Mr. Lam is responsible for
advising the Board through the Chairman and/or the CEO on
governance matters. He has taken no less than 15 hours of
relevant professional training for the Year.

RIGHTS OF SHAREHOLDERS

According to the Article 58 of the Articles, any one or more
Shareholders holding at the date of deposit of the requisition not
less than one-tenth of the paid up capital of the Company
carrying the right of voting at general meetings of the Company
shall at all times have the right, by written requisition to the
Board or the Company Secretary, to require an extraordinary
general meeting to be called by the Board for the transaction of
any business specified in such requisition; and such meeting
shall be held within two (2) months after the deposit of such
requisition. If within twenty-one (21) days of such deposit the
Board fails to proceed to convent such meeting the
requisitionist(s) himself (themselves) may do so in the same
manner, and all reasonable expenses incurred by the
requisitionist(s) as a result of the failure of the Board shall be
reimbursed to the requisitionist(s) by the Company.
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Any vote of the Shareholders at general meetings must be taken
by poll pursuant to the GEM Listing Rules. The results of the poll
will be posted on the respective websites of GEM and the
Company after each general meeting.

SENDING ENQUIRIES TO THE BOARD BY THE
SHAREHOLDERS

Any enquiries from the Shareholders to the Board can be sent in
writing to the head office and principal place of business in Hong
Kong of the Company.

COMMUNICATION WITH THE
SHAREHOLDERS

Communication with the Shareholders is given high priority. The
Company aims to provide the Shareholders with high standards
of disclosure and financial transparency through the publication
of annual, interim and quarterly reports, announcements and
circulars made through the GEM website and the Company’s
website.

The Company are encouraged the Shareholders to attend general
meetings of the Company and to put their enquiries to the Board
directly. The Chairman and the members of relevant committees
will be also available to answer the questions in the general
meetings.

CHANGES IN CONSTITUTIONAL
DOCUMENTS

During the Year, there was no change in the constitutional
documents of the Company.
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The Directors herein present the annual report and audited
consolidated financial statements for the Year.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Company is an investment holding company. The Group is
principally engaged in (i) anti-aging and stem cell technology
businesses; (i) trading business; (i) money lending business; and
(iv) securities investment. The activities of its principal
subsidiaries are set out in Note 33 to the consolidated financial
statements of this annual report.

BUSINESS REVIEW AND ANALYSIS OF KEY
FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE INDICATORS
Details of the business review and analysis of key financial
performance indicators of the Group for the Year are set out in
the “Chairman’s Statement & Management Discussion and
Analysis” of this annual report.

RESULTS AND DIVIDEND

The results of the Group for the Year and the financial position of
the Group as at 31 March 2017 are set out in the consolidated
financial statement on pages 54 to 58 of this annual report.

The Directors do not recommend the payment of a final dividend
for the year ended 31 March 2017.

FIVE-YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY
A five-year financial summary of the published results, assets,
liabilities and non-controlling interests of the Group for the last
five financial years and reclassified as appropriated, is set out on
page 184 of this annual report. This summary does not form part
of the audited consolidated financial statements.

RESERVES AND DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES
Details of movements in the reserves and distributable reserves
of the Company and the Group during the Year are set out in
Note 35 to the consolidated financial statements and
consolidated statement of changes in equity respectively of this
annual report.
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PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There is no provision for pre-emptive rights under the Articles
and there was no restriction against such rights under the laws
of the Cayman Islands, being the jurisdiction in which the
Company was incorporated, which would oblige the Company to
offer new shares on a pro rata basis to existing Shareholders.

SHARE CAPITAL
Details of the Company’s share capital are set out in Note 25 to
the consolidated financial statements of this annual report.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of movements in the property, plant and equipment of
the Group during the Year are set out in Note 16 to the
consolidated financial statements of this annual report.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE
A detailed corporate governance report is set out in pages 20 to
35 in this annual report.

ENVIRONMENTAL POLICIES AND
PERFORMANCE

The Group recognises its responsibility to protect the
environment from its business activities. The Group continually
seeks to identify and manage environmental impacts attributable
to its operational activities in order to minimise these impacts if
possible. In view of the above and as at the date of this annual
report, the Group complies with environmental legislation,
encourages environmental protection and promotes
environmental protection awareness to all employees of the
Group.

RELATIONSHIPS WITH EMPLOYEES,
CUSTOMERS, SUPPLIERS AND OTHER
STAKEHOLDERS

The Group ensures all staff is reasonably remunerated and
regularly reviews the employment policies on remuneration and
other benefits. The Group maintains a good relationship with its
customers and suppliers. The Group maintains close contacts
with the customers and has regular review of requirements of
customers and complaints. The Group will conduct appraisal of
the performance of suppliers on regular basis.
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COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS AND
REGULATIONS

The Group recognises the importance of compliance with
regulatory requirements and risks of non-compliance with such
requirements. The Group has on-going review the new enacted
laws and regulations affecting the operations of the Group. The
Group is not aware of any material non-compliance with the laws
and regulations that have significant impact on the business of
the Group.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION

Pursuant to the Articles, the Directors and other officers, for the
time being acting in relation to the affairs of the Company, shall
be indemnified and secured harmless out of the assets and
profits of the Company from and against all actions, costs,
charges, losses, damages and expenses which they or any of
them shall or may incur or sustain by or by reason of any act
done, concurred in or omitted in or about the execution of their
duty.

The Company has arranged appropriate directors” and officers’
liability insurance coverage for the Directors and officers of the
Group to protect the Directors and officers of the Group against
any potential liability arising from the Group’s activities which
such Directors and officers may be held liable.

DIRECTORS
The Directors during the Year and up to the date of this annual
report were:

Executive Directors

Mr. David Lin Kao Kun (Vice Chairman)
Mr. Lu Zhigiang (Chief Executive Officer)
Mr. Chui Kwong Kau

Mr. Jiang Hongging

Ms. Li Mei

Non-executive Director
Ms. Lam Kuo (Chairman)

Independent Non-executive Directors
Mr. Hung Yat Ming
Mr. Chan Yun Hing
Mr. Gui Qiangfang
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In accordance with the Article 87(1) of the Articles, Mr. Chan Yun
Hing, Mr. Chui Kwong Kau and Mr. Lu Zhigiang, being one-third of
the Directors will retire as Directors by rotation and, being
eligible, offer themselves for re-election at the AGM.

INDEPENDENCE OF INDEPENDENT NON-
EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

The Company has received written annual confirmation from
each of the INEDs in respect of their independence in accordance
with Rule 5.09 of the GEM Listing Rules. As as the date of this
report, the Company still considers the INEDs to be independent.

PROFILE OF DIRECTORS
Profile details of the Directors are set out on pages 16 to 19 of
this annual report.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

No Director proposed for re-election at the AGM has a service
contract with the Company which is not determinable within one
year without payment of compensation, other than statutory
compensation.

DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATIONS
Details of the remuneration of Directors are set out in the Note
15 to the consolidated financial statements of this report.

DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENT POLICY

The Remuneration Committee was established for reviewing and
determining the remuneration and compensation packages o the
Directors and senior management with reference to salaries paid
by comparable companies, time commitment and responsibilities
of the Director and performance of the Group. The Company has
adopted a share option scheme as an incentive to the Directors
and eligible employees, details of which are set out in the section
headed “Share Option Scheme”).

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS OF
SIGNIFICANCE

Save for the interests of Mr. David Lin Kao Kun, an executive
Director, a vice-chairman and a shareholder of the Company, in
the Technology Development Agreement, as mentioned in the
section headed “Related Party and Connected Transactions” in
this report, no Director had a material interest, either directly or
indirectly, in any contract of significance to the business of the
Group to which the Company and any of its subsidiaries was a
party during the Year.

RIBERAAFE 7R - BRBEEE - EXERE
EREEREE =02 —28%  BHRER
T YENAEREBENRRBFASG LER
AL

BAFHNTESZBILSH

ARFICEERSBE LN TESREAEZR LT
RAIESOEREBL S BEL 2 EEFERER
B o RAREBH - RARMDIBBIIFMITES
RBINL -

EEEHN
BEREFZBEABHENAFRE16E198

EEZRBEEN
BRRFEFAS LERET 2 EEHMEALA
FIRTSL TSI —F T LA L 46 T B8 OF5E
BRI 2 RBAH -

EEHM
BREEHFMN 2 HFBHERARE 2P BHRE
BIFE1S °

EEMEBE

FMEZEEGEENY  WELEAALBAAX
Mz#He EFMNHZERMBEARAEEE
Hifes NETEENSREBAE ZME RF
B8 - AR RABREFENREFTRA
BRI EZE  ARFBEN [BEEE

— & o

EENERGHzHER

BRNAHRE [BRAMA L REER S ] — &P
REMTES « BIEFERBRMNG 8RR
MBEARZERN  BEEENARF REEM
B ARRAFEREARZLME A EEEEN B
BAZAKNTEERLRERGEAES -

ANNUAL REPORT 2017 / 3%k



Directors’ Report
EEERE

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVFE’S
INTERESTS IN SECURITIES

As at 31 March 2017, the interests and short positions of the
Directors and chief executives of the Company (the “Chief
Executives”) in the shares, underlying shares and debentures of
the Company or any of its associated corporations (within the
meaning of Part XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance, Cap.
571 of the Laws of Hong Kong (the “SFO")) which were required
to be notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant
to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including interests or
short positions which they were taken or deemed to have under
such provisions of the SFO) or which were required, pursuant to
Section 352 of the SFO, to be entered in the register referred to
therein; or which were required, pursuant to Rules 5.46 to 5.67 of
the GEM Listing Rules relating to securities transactions by the
Directors, to be notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange,
were as follows:

Long position in the ordinary shares of the
Company (“Shares”)

Name of Director
EENE

Capacity
54

Beneficial owner
EmEa A

Mr. David Lin Kao Kun
NS e

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 March 2017, none of the
Directors and the Chief Executives had any other interests or
short positions in any shares, underlying shares or debentures of
the Company or any of its associated corporations (within the
meaning of Part XV of the SFO) which were required to be
notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to
Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including interests or
short positions which they were taken or deemed to have under
such provisions of the SFO), or which were required, pursuant to
Section 352 of the SFO, to be entered in the register referred to
therein; or which were required, pursuant to Rules 5.46 to 5.67 of
the GEM Listing Rules relating to securities transactions by the
Directors, to be notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange.
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DIRECTORS’ RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE SHARES
OR DEBENTURES

Other than the Share Option Scheme, at no time during the Year
was the Company or any of its subsidiaries a party to any
arrangement to enable the Directors to acquire benefits by
means of the acquisition of share in, or debentures of, the
Company or any other body corporate.

SHARE OPTIONS SCHEME

Pursuant to an ordinary resolution passed at the extraordinary
general meeting of the Company held on 4 August 2010 and the
Stock Exchange granting approval of the listing of, and permission
to deal in, the shares to be issued under the share option
scheme (the “Share Option Scheme”) on 17 November 2010,
the Company has adopted the Share Option Scheme to replace
the expired share option scheme adopted on 1 February 2002.
The principal terms of the Share Option Scheme were set out in
the appendix to the circular of the Company dated 20 July 2010.

At the annual general meeting of the Company held on 7 August
2015 (the “2015 AGM"), the shareholders of the Company had
approved the refreshment of the Share Option Scheme mandate
limit in accordance with the Share Option Scheme and the GEM
Listing Rules, thereby allowing the Company to grant further
options for subscription of a total of 395,033,280 Shares,
representing 10% Shares in issue as at the date of the 2015 AGM.

The purpose of the Share Option Scheme is to enable the
Company to provide incentive to participants with the opportunity
of participating in the growth of the Company by acquiring shares
in the Company and may, in turn, assist in the attraction and
retention of talents who have made contributions to the success
of the Company.

The Share Option Scheme is valid and effective for a period of ten
years commencing on the date of adoption of the Share Option
Scheme. As at 31 March 2017, there were a total of 395,033,280
Shares, representing 6.94% of the issued Shares, available for
issue under the Share Option Scheme. No share options were
granted, lapsed or exercised during the Year and there was no
outstanding share option as at 31 March 2017 and 2016..
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EQUITY-LINKED AGREEMENTS

Other than the Share Option Scheme as disclosed above, no
equity-linked agreements that (i) will or may result in the
Company issuing Shares or (i) require the Company to enter into
any agreements that will or may result in the Company issuing
Shares were entered into by the Company during the Year or
subsisted at the end of the Year.

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS

As at 31 March 2017, so far as is known to the Directors and the
Chief Executives, and based on the public records filed on the
website of the Stock Exchange and records kept by the Company,
the interests and short positions of the persons or corporations
(other than the Directors and the Chief Executives) in the shares
or underlying shares of the Company which would fall to be
disclosed to the Company under provisions of Divisions 2 and 3
of Part XV of the SFO, or which were recorded in the register
required to be kept by the Company under section 336 of the
SFO, were as follows:

Name of Shareholders Capacity

51

BRREEEH

Primeshare Globe (Hong Kong)  Beneficial owner

Inv.Co., Limited
Primeshare Globe (Hong Kong) E#z#EA A
Inv.Co., Limited

Beneficial owner and
interest of controlled

Lau Ngai Cheung (Note)

corporation
Lau Ngai Cheung (Bfit#%) EmlB ARSZIE
EE

Pacific Fortune Global Limited ~ Beneficial owner

(Note)

Pacific Fortune Global Limited ~ &z#A A
(B3

Global High Growth Industries  Trustee
Fund Series SPC

EHEERTERIES ZEEA

BUREHRERNT

Number of Shares Held

fR SR 89 175 3
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Percentage of Shares
in issue (Approximate)

PR 8B HERTROBI
(BR)

721,452,000 12.68%
752,850,000 13.23%
474,032,000 8.33%
474,032,000 8.33%
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Note:

Lau Ngai Cheung has a direct 100% interest in Pacific Fortune Global Limited. Under
the SFO, Lau Ngai Cheung is deemed to be interested in 474,032,000 Shares
registered in the name of Pacific Fortune Global Limited.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 March 2017, the Directors were
not aware of any other persons or corporations (other than the
Directors and the Chief Executives) who had interest in the
shares or underlying shares of the Company which would fall to
be disclosed to the Company under the provisions of Divisions 2
and 3 of Part XV of the SFO, or which were recorded in the
register of the Company required to be kept under Section 336 of
the SFO.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF
SHARES

During the Year, neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries
purchased, sold or redeemed any of the Company's shares.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

During the Year under review, the five largest suppliers of the
Group accounted for approximately 100% of the Group's total
purchases and the largest supplier of the Group accounted for
approximately 70.4% of the Group's total purchases. Aggregate
sales attributable to the Group's five largest customers were
approximately 85.6% of the Group’s sales while the largest
customer of the Group accounted for approximately 56.0% of the
Group’s sales.

Save as disclosed in this report, none of the Directors, their close
associates or any Shareholders (which to the knowledge of the
Directors own more than 5% of the issued capital of the
Company) had any beneficial interest in the Group’s major
suppliers and customers for the Year.

G

Lau Ngai Cheung## Pacific Fortune Global Limited & # & & 20425 ©
R EH KRB E 56 Lau Ngai Cheung 1 18 A& 7 & 52 R Pacific
Fortune Global Limited % T~ 2 474,032,000 & A& {7 R A #E 5 ©
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RELATED PARTY AND CONNECTED
TRANSACTIONS

Details of the related party transactions are set out in Note 32 to
the consolidated financial statements of this report and the
connected transaction is as below:

On 18 March 2016, the Group entered into the Technology
Development Agreement with Hope Bio-Tech. As at the date of
the Technology Development Agreement, Mr. David Lin Kao Kun
was an executive Director, a vice-chairman and a substantial
shareholder of the Company, and his spouse (being Mr. Lin's
associate under the GEM Listing Rules) were indirectly interested
in the entire equity interests in Hope Bio-Tech. Accordingly, Hope
Bio-Tech was an associate of Mr. Lin under the GEM Listing Rules
and hence was a connected person of the Company. The total
consideration under the Technology Development Agreement
was HK$9.5 million of which HK$3 million had been paid during
the year ended 31 March 2016 and the balances of HK$6.5 million
had been paid or payable during the Year. Details of the
Technology Development Agreement were set out in the
Company’s announcement dated 18 March 2016.

COMPETING INTERESTS

As at 31 March 2017, none of the Directors, controlling
Shareholders nor any of their close respective associates (as
defined in the GEM Listing Rules) had any interest in a business
which causes or may cause a significant competition with the
business of the Group.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on information that is publicly available to the Company
and within the knowledge of the Directors, the Company has
maintained a sufficient public float as at the latest practicable
date prior to the issue of this annual report as required under the
GEM Listing Rules.
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EVENT AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

On 31 May 2017, the Purchaser entered into the Agreement with,
among other parties, the Vendor and Target Company pursuant
to which the Vendor had agreed to sell and the Purchaser had
agreed to purchase the Sale Shares representing the entire
issued share capital of the Target Company at the consideration
of HK$43,900,000 on and subject to the terms and conditions
contained therein. Details of the acquisition were set out in the
“Discloseable transaction in relation to the acquisition of entire
issued share capital of Honorbase” of this annual report.

AUDITOR

The consolidated financial statements for the Year have been
audited by the auditor of the Company, Pan-China, who shall
retire and, being eligible, offer themselves for reappointment at
the AGM. A resolution for the reappointment of Pan-China as the
auditor of the Company will be proposed at the AGM.

By order of the Board
Hong Kong Life Sciences and Technologies Group Limited

Lu Zhigiang
Executive Director and Chief Executive Officer

Hong Kong, 23 June 2017
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TO THE MEMBERS OF

HONG KONG LIFE SCIENCES AND TECHNOLOGIES GROUP
LIMITED

(incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Hong
Kong Life Sciences and Technologies Group Limited (the
“Company”) and its subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the
“Group”) set out on pages 54 to 183, which comprise the
consolidated statement of financial position as at 31 March 2017,
and the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income, the consolidated statement of changes
in equity and the consolidated statement of cash flows for the
year then ended, and notes to the consolidated financial
statements, including a summary of significant accounting
policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true
and fair view of the consolidated financial position of the Group
as at 31 March 2017, and of its consolidated financial
performance and its consolidated cash flows for the year then
ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards (“HKFRSs”) issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA") and have been properly
prepared in compliance with the disclosure requirements of the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards
on Auditing ("HKSAS") issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities
under those standards are further described in the Auditor’s
Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial
Statements section of our report. We are independent of the
Group in accordance with the HKICPA's Code of Ethics for
Professional Accountants (“the Code”), and we have fulfilled our
other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We
believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional
judgment, were of most significance in our audit of the
consolidated financial statements of the current period. These
matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the
consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming our
opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on
these matters.
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (continued) FREEHER =

Key Audit Matter

HRETEER

How the matter addressed in our audit
LA 2 Bt AR EZEE

Impairment assessment of loan receivables and loan
interest receivables )
JE B 3R % M S R B R TR (B AT Ak

As disclosed in note 20, the Group had loan receivables
and loan interest receivables from customers amounting
to HK$181,197,000 and HK$17,014,000 respectively as at
31 March 2017.

As part of the Group's credit review policy, management
assessed the recoverability of each loan receivable
individually. As at 31 March 2017, the impairment
allowance made for doubtful loan receivables and loan
interest receivables amounted to HK$22,064,000.

The identification of doubtful debts in the individual
assessment requires significant management
judgements about whether objective evidence for
impairment exists, taking into consideration various
factors, including the current creditworthiness and the
past collection history of each debtor. It also requires
management to make significant estimates when
determining the estimated recoverable amount of the
doubtful loan receivables. Accordingly, the impairment
assessment of the loan receivables and loan interest
receivables was a key audit matter.

HANHIFE20FTIEE - ERER _FT—HF=A=1—
BREBEFZRERWBEREEWERFERES A
181,197,000 7T }2. 17,014,000 % 7T °
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22,064,000 7T ©
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B FE WS TR A SRR BT S SRR E FH

1. We obtained understanding of and tested the key
controls over the impairment assessment of loan
receivables and loan interest receivables and
focused on:

@)
(o)

The identification of impairment events,

The assessment and approval processes for
the determination of the extent to which
impairment should be made;

The governance over the impairment
assessments processes, including the
continuous re-assessment by management
that the impairment policy is being
calibrated in a way which is appropriate for
the impairment risks in the Group’s loan
portfolios.

2. For impaired loan receivables and loan interest

receivables, we have ascertained whether the
loss event had been identified in a timely manner
and examined the expected future cash flows
and the valuation of collateral held, if any, and
compared management’s estimate to external
evidence where applicable.

3. For loan receivables and loan interest receivables

which were not considered by management to be
impaired, we have performed testing to ascertain
whether any impairment events had occurred.
We considered the payment performance and
financial condition of these customers and other
relevant factors.

1. ANAZERAD AR AR S M E R S R SRR R
IR ERT 2 EBEH - WES

B RRE =
HEEEELIBERE 27 RALERT

SREREIRE 2 R - OEEEESS
ENFEAERRRTRELY H%H
SRAE 2 AERRT S BEY -

2. BORERKERNMEWRERMEFEMS @ A
RO EE RS M EREBEREMN Mg A
ARG e NPT M (A) 2 EE - Wt
REEEHINBER (REM) fEh 2 b5t -

3. BEEER/LEEEZEKRERRERERF
BHIEME @ AMBETSETAREER T LR
EARESEM - ARBE D BEZSTER 2K
RIRRABIRRA R A EEE

ANNUAL REPORT 2017 / 3%k



Independent Auditor’s Report
B M A% AT R

KEY AUDIT MATTERS (continued) BEER®

Key Audit Matter

HRENER

How the matter was addressed in our audit
A% EED 2 E TN R =B E

Impairment assessment of other intangible assets
HE e E R ERT

As disclosed in note 17, the Group had other intangible
assets amounting to HK$12,000,000 as at 31 March 2017.
The Group's other intangible assets represented three
exclusive licences on 3 patents granted by the holders to
a subsidiary acquired in the year 2013.

For the purpose of assessing the impairment of other
intangible assets, the management engaged an
independent professional valuer (the “Valuer”) to
determine their recoverable amounts using the value-in-
use basis. Significant management judgements were
involved in the determination of the key assumptions
underlying the value-in-use calculations, including
estimated development and production timelines,
estimated sales volume, estimated selling price of the
products, growth rate of the revenue, cost and sales
volume, discount rate and forecast period.

Due to the significance of the assets to the Group’s
consolidated statement of financial position, we had
identified the impairment assessment of other intangible
assets as one of the key audit matters.
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1. We discussed with the management of the
Company and the independent professional
valuer engaged by the Company the valuation
methodology, bases and assumptions used in
determining the recoverable amount of other
intangible assets or the cash generating unit to
which the assets belong.

2. We checked the objectivity, competence and
capability of the valuer.

3. We have assessed the methodology and
assumptions used in the value-in-use calculations
for determining the recoverable amount of the
other intangible assets or the cash generating
unit to which the assets belong.

4. We have checked with the comparable data
either from internal or external sources, on a
sample basis, the relevance and reasonableness
of the estimated sales volume, estimated selling
price of the products, growth rate of the revenue,
cost and sales volume, discount rate.

5. We assessed the reasonableness of the timelines
for development and production schedules.

6.  We have engaged our independent valuation
specialist to assist us in evaluating the
reasonableness and appropriateness of the
valuation performed by the management of the
Company and the Company’s valuer.
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INFORMATION OTHER THAN THE
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND AUDITOR’S
REPORT THEREON

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other
information. The other information comprises the information
included in the annual report, but does not include the
consolidated financial statements and our auditor’s report
thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not
cover the other information and we do not express any form of
assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial
statements, our responsibility is to read the other information
identified above and, in doing so, consider whether the other
information is materially inconsistent with the consolidated
financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or
otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed on the other
information that we conclude that we obtained prior to the date
of this auditor’s report, we conclude that there is a material
misstatement of this other information, we are required to report
that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.
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RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation
of consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view
in accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance,
and for such internal control as the directors determine is
necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated financial
statements that are free from material misstatement, whether
due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors
are responsible for assessing the Group'’s ability to continue as a
going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going
concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless
the directors either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease
operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

The Audit Committee assists the directors in discharging their
responsibilities for overseeing the Group’s financial reporting
process.

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
the consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to
issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Our report is
made solely to you, as a body, in accordance with our agreed
terms of engagement, and for no other purpose. We do not
assume responsibility towards or accept liabilities to any other
person for the contents of this report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAS will
always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered
material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably
be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken
on the basis of these consolidated financial statements.
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (continued)

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAS, we exercise
professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

o Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of
the consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud
or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive
to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient
and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk
of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from
fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud
may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

o Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the
audit in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose
of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the
Group’s internal control.

o Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used
and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and
related disclosures made by the directors.

o Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of
the going concern basis of accounting and, based on the
audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty
exists related to events or conditions that may cast
significant doubt on the Group’s ability to continue as a
going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty
exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’'s
report to the related disclosures in the consolidated
financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate,
to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the
audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s
report. However, future events or conditions may cause the
Group to cease to continue as a going concern.

BRBMEFNFRESMBEERRRIEZ
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Independent Auditor’s Report
B M A% AT R

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (continued)

o Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of
the consolidated financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial
statements represent the underlying transactions and
events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

o Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the
financial information of the entities or business activities
within the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated
financial statements. We are responsible for the direction,
supervision and performance of the group audit. We remain
solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among
other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and
significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in
internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that we
have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding
independence, and to communicate with them all relationships
and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our
independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

BRHEMEEFNRESMBERRRIEZ
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Independent Auditor’s Report
8 M A% B A

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (continued)

From the matters communicated with the Audit Committee, we
determine those matters that were of most significance in the
audit of the consolidated financial statements of the current
period and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe
these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or regulation
precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in
extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter
should not be communicated in our report because the adverse
consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to
outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

The engagement director on the audit resulting in this
independent auditor’s report is Lee Ping Kai.

PAN-CHINA (H.K.) CPA LIMITED
Certified Public Accountants

Lee Ping Kai
Practising Certificate Number P02976

11/F., Hong Kong Trade Centre,
161-167 Des Voeux Road Central,
Hong Kong S.A.R., China

Hong Kong, 23 June 2017
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and
Other Comprehensive Income

GeEaRkEMEENER

For the year ended 31 March 2017 &EZ =%

—EF=H="1 BlEEE

2016
—T—REF
HK$'000

THETT

Continuing Operations HEREEK
Revenue g 7(a) 153,572 123,372
Cost of sales SHE P AR (118,518) (93,528)
Gross profit EF 35,054 29,844
(Loss)/gain on held-for-trading BIEEBEREY

investments (E518), /W= 8 (279) 4,565
Other income Ha A 7(b) 3,956 378
Administrative and other operating TN H &S

expenses (41,130) (44,872)
Research and development cost B g A 32(c) (9,500) -
Impairment of deposit paid for ,?quﬁzﬁ%%% = k&

acquisition of property, plant ZE®RE

and equipment = (15,026)
Impairment loss on loan receivables  FEUE E & B IR & 25 2

and loan interest receivables BEEE 20 (22,064) -
Impairment loss on other intangible — E.#h 2 & E Ri{EE R

assets 17 (34,000) (16,000)
Loss before tax from KEFERERBZ

continuing operations B 7 Bl 5 18 9 (67,963) 41,117)
Income tax expense FriS®if X 10 - (656)
Loss for the year from REBELEEB 2

continuing operations KREEFIE (67,963) (41,767)
Discontinued operations BRI
Loss from discontinued operations REBRIEERZEE 1 - (5,669)
Loss for the year REEFBE (67,963) (47,436)
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consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and

Other Comprehensive Income
FEERREMEE KSR

For the year ended 31 March 2017 HZ =2 —+tF=A=1+—HIFE

other comprehensive (expense)/ Hfh2E (Bx) k35 -
income:

Items that may be reclassified HiEnfEEF EZ18m

2017
—E—tF

HK$°000
TR

2016
—E—RF
HK$'000

THETT

subsequently to profit or loss: ZIHHEA -
Exchange difference arising on MEFINEREEZIER
translation of foreign operations =5 (2,450) (3,010)
Release of translation reserve BRI IR S - 40
Other comprehensive expense AEEHMEEBAX
for the year (2,450) (2,970)
Total comprehensive expense AEEETHBAZALE
for the year (70,413) (50,406)
Loss for the year attributable to AAQTEEALFEEREER
owners of the Company
— from continuing operations — REFELEER (64,708) (36,498)
— from discontinued operations — RECRIEER = (5,669)
(64,708) (42,167)
Loss for the year attributable to  JEiEREZ A EEE(LER
non-controlling interests
— from continuing operations — REFELEEER (3,255) (5,269)
— from discontinued operations — REERIEER - -
(3,255) (5,269)
(67,963) (47,436)
Total comprehensive expense AEEREEZHEAREEHE:
for the year attributable to:
— Owners of the Company — RRAREA A (67,158) (45,137)
— Non-controlling interests — IR (3,255) (5,269)
(70,413) (50,406)
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and
Other Comprehensive Income

GeBEaREtAZEHEKER

For the year ended 31 March 2017 HiZ =2 —+t & =A=1+—HIFE

Note
B &E
Loss per share: SREE 13
From continuing and discontinued REFELE RERIEER
operations
— Basic (HK Cents) — EARGEMW) (1.30) (1.02)
— Diluted (HK Cents) — 5 (B() (1.30) (1.02)
From continuing operations REFBECLEER
— Basic (HK Cents) — EARCEW) (1.30) (0.88)
— Diluted (HK Cents) — 58 (Bl (1.30) (0.88)

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these FEMIMIiT A EEEMBHRERZ—2D -
consolidated financial statements.
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consolidated Statement of Financial Position
e AR R

Asat31March 20177 R=ZE—+F=A=+—H

2017 2016
—F—+5F —E—RF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET T
Non-current assets FRBEE
Property, plant and equipment ME - WENMEKRE 16 10,623 11,822
Other intangible assets Hm\mpaE 17 12,000 46,000
Available-for-sale investment Al ISR E 18 2,509 2,509
Total non-current assets FRBEELEE 25,132 60,331
Current assets REEE
Inventories FE 19 - 7
Trade and other receivables JE LA R 51 N E b IR IR 20 238,940 247,187
Held-for-trading investments BIEEBEHRE 21 3,220 12,640
Tax in advance FEH R IE 744 1,176
Cash and bank balances e MIRTTES 22 142,619 40,301
Total current assets REBEEHAT 385,523 301,311
Current liabilities REBEE
Trade and other payables FE AT AR B B B AT 5k A 23 42,365 43,047
Total current liabilities REBAEARE 42,365 43,047
Net current assets RBEEFH 343,158 258,264
Net assets EEBE 368,290 318,595
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consolidated Statement of Financial Position
e SRR 3

Asat31March20177 R=ZE—tF=A=+—H

2017 2016
—E—+HF —E—RF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FATT
Capital and reserves R 1

Share capital % 7x 25 227,536 189,613
Reserves 1% 186,254 171,227

Equity attributable to the owners of ~ ZANA RS AE(EREZ
the Company 413,790 360,840
Non-controlling interests FEIEA R Z (45,500) (42,245)
Total equity LB 368,290 318,595

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these
consolidated financial statements.

The consolidated financial statements were approved and
authorised for issue by the board of directors on 23 June 2017
and are signed on behalf of the Board by:

LU zZhigiang
Executive Director
HITEE

BEFMPE R SR A B mER 2 — 87 ©

EEen_T—tFRA-T=H Ttt)’é‘ﬁ&?%ﬁéﬂ
BirEMHHmE LA NI ETKREFTERE

CHUI Kwong Kau
Executive Director
HITEE
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
FEEREER

For the year ended 31 March 2017 HZ =2 —+tF=A=1+—HIFE

Attributable to owners of the Company
ARTEEARLE

Share
capital
A&

Share

premium
RfaE
(Note 35

(b))
(Rr&E35
(b))
HK§000

Special
reserve
hlRE
(Note 35
(b))
(B3t 35
(b)ii)
HK$'000

Share
options
reserve

BREGH
(Note 35

(o))

(&35
(b))
HKS'000

AT

Translation
reserve
B
(Note 35
(b)iv)
(Rr&E35
(b)iv)
HK$000

Accumulated
losses
ZiEE

HKS 000
THT

Sub-total
Nt

HK$'000
AL

Non-
controlling
interests
FaRER

HK$000

HK$ 000

B

At 31 March 2015 and RZE-EFZA=1-AR

1 April 2015 ZZ-REMA-A 158,013 524,799 (39.99) 1575 799 (343,899) 301,293 (36976) 264,317
Loss for the year TEEEE - - - - - (42,167) (42,167) (5,269) (47, 436)
Exchange difference arising on RERNEREEVERER

translation of foreign operations - - - - (3,010) - (3010) - (3010
Release of translation reserve o= - - - - 40 - 40 - 1|
Total comprehensive expense AERRARYAE

for the year - - - - (2970 42,167) 45,137) (5,269) (50,406)
Issue of ordinary shares under share  BERGEERTLEER

placing 31,600 68,361 - - - - 99,961 - 99,961
Recognition of equity-settled

share-ased payments - - - 473 - - 473 - 4723
Share options lapsed BlER - - - (6,298) - 62% - - -
At 31 March 2016 R-8-A"EZB=t-H 189,613 593,160 (39.998) - 1) (379,764) 360,840 (42,245) 318,595
At 31 March 2016 and RZB-RE=R=1-BR

1 April 2016 “E-AEMA-R 189,613 593,160 (39,998) = 217) (379,764) 360,340 (42,245) 318,595
Loss for the year KREERR - - - - - (64,708) (64,708) (3,255) (67,963)
Exchange difference arising on RERNFBEE EREE

translation of foreign operations - - - - (2,450) - (2,450) - (2,450)
Total comprehensive expense TEERERLER

for the year - - - - (2,450) (64,708) (67,158) (3,255) (70,413)
Issue of ordinary shares under share - BERGEEZTERR

placing 37923 82,185 - - - - 120,108 - 120,108
At 31 March 2017 R=2-t£zfA=1-A 227,536 675,345 (39,998) - (4,621)  (444,472) 413,790 (45,500) 368,290

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these FBEMIMI st AL FE A EHRER 2 3D

consolidated financial statements.
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consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
GERERER

For the year ended 31 March 2017 B2 —Z—+&H&=A=1+—HIFE

2017 2016
ZB—tF —EREF
Note HK$'000 HK$'000
B aE F&T T
cash flows from operating RELEEB2HERE
activities
Loss before tax BRELATE R
Continuing operations EHEREER (67,963) (41,111)
Discontinued operations BRI = (5,669)
(67,963) (46,780)
Adjustments for: ERTISIEELFHE
Interest income F 2 A (2) (372
Impairment of deposit paid for BB ZE - BB REBEX
acquisition of property, plant 2] &RE
and equipment - 15,026
Depreciation of property, Yz - BENEETE
plant and equipment 7,043 8,862
Impairment loss on other intangible  EftEEE EREEE
assets 17 34,000 16,000
Loss/(gain) on held-for-trading BHIEEERE
investments 2B (M) 8 279 (4,565)
Loss on disposal of a subsidiary HE—RHBAREE 27 - 4,095
Equity-settled share-based payments  LAREZS 5 =045 & K LARS 1)
RE 2 MR - 4,723
Forfeiture of agents' deposit BUWRIEE] & (3,934) -
Impairment loss on trade and JE s AR R % EL At P MR IR
other receivables ZRIERE 20 22,641 51
Operating loss before changes in EEECEBH 2L EEIR
working capital (7,936) (2,960)
Decrease in inventories FERd 7 40
Increase in trade and P L AR R % L Ath FE M R IR
other receivables N (14,393) (96,197)
Decrease in held-for- BIEEBRERD
trading investments 9,140 30,170
Increase/(decrease) in trade and JE A~ BR SR LA JE A5 IR
other payables #Zm,/ CRd) 3,251 4,579)
Net cash used in operations BB F R (9,931) (73,526)
Income tax refund/(paid) RE/ () SR 432 (3,565)
Net cash used in operating activities & & ¥£5FFEIR & F 58 (9,499) (77,091)

o HONG KONG LIFE SCIENCES AND TECHNOLOGIES GROUP LIMITED o #&7&4 e BRI R i & B AR A 7]



consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

GERTRER

For the year ended 31 March 2017 B2 —Z—+t&H&=A=1+—HIFE

2017
—E—+tF

HK$°000

FET

2016
—E—RF
HK$'000
FH&TT

Cash flows from investing RERETBZ2EHERE
activities
Interest received B FIE 2 372
Purchase of property, plant and EEWME - WEREE
equipment (6,078) (77)
Net cash inflow on disposal of HE—FHWBARZER®
a subsidiary MAEER 27 - 6,280
Net cash (used in)/generated from wEEE (), /s
investing activities e F5 (6,076) 6,575
Cash flows from financing REMETBH2RERE
activities
Net proceeds from issue of BT BTSRRI F R
ordinary shares 25 120,108 99,961
Net cash generated from financing AE EBATSIRE 55
activities 120,108 99,961
Net increase in cash ReRESESEYIEM
and cash equivalents T 104,533 29,445
Cash and cash equivalents at the £ zBEERBESEEY
beginning of the year 40,301 12,099
Effects of foreign exchange rate INETE R B) 2 B
changes (2,215) (1,243)
Cash and cash equivalents at the FRZEERESZEY
end of the year 142,619 40,301
Analysis of cash and cash RERAESENDIN
equivalents
Cash and bank balances e RIRTTHEH 142,619 40,301
The accompanying notes form an integral part of these BEMIFIFTRRZEGAMBREZ — 20 -

consolidated financial statements.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e M HRRMIEE

For the year ended 31 March 2017 2 =Z—tF=A=1+—HIFE

1.

CORPORATE INFORMATION

Hong Kong Life Sciences and Technologies Group Limited
(the "Company”) was incorporated in the Cayman Islands
as an exempted company with limited liability under the
Companies Law (Revised) of the Cayman Islands and its
shares are listed on the Growth Enterprise Market (“GEM”)
of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock
Exchange”). The address of the registered office is situated
at Cricket Square, Hutchins Drive, P.O. Box 2681, Grand
Cayman KY1-1111, Cayman Islands, British West Indies. The
principal place of business in Hong Kong is situated at Unit
2704, 27/F, West Tower, Shun Tak Centre, 168-200
Connaught Road Central, Hong Kong.

The consolidated financial statements are presented in
Hong Kong dollars (“HK$"), which is also the functional
currency of the Company.

The Company is an investment holding company. The
Company and its subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the
“Group”) are principally engaged in (i) anti-aging and stem
cell technology businesses, (i) trading business; (i) money
lending business; (iv) securities investment; and (v) hotel
operations (ceased business in the year ended 31 March
2016). The Group had discontinued its hotel operations and
related businesses in the year ended 31 March 2016 (see
note 11).

LREH
BEBEGRBREMEEBRAR(TARF])
BEREHSQE (BB RREREST
ML BERRBR AR - BRGNS B
ERGBR AT ([HZA]) BIZR ([ 812
R 1) 71 e AN A B FE 3 S B i 74 Cricket
Square, Hutchins Drive, P.O. Box 2681, Grand
Cayman KY1-1111, Cayman Islands, British
West Indies « RARIEBE L T2 E I
U BB THEER 1682005 5= LFAE
2712704 % °

FAPBRRARNABDEEEET(E
TR -

RNRATAREERAT - AAF REWBA
AHEEIAEEDFEREONRTERY
MRS - (DB S X (i) EREE
(VEAHEE  RVBELE(BERBE=ZE
—R"FZA=T—HIEFERFH)  A&EE
REZEZZ—ARF-A=+—HLEFEELK
LEAE e DR E &8 AR (R EE11) -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e MR M EE

For the year ended 31 March 2017 ##Z2=—Z—tF=A=1+—HIFE

2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING

STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”)

In the current year, the Group has applied a number of
amendments to HKFRSs issued by the Hong Kong Institute
of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA") that are
mandatorily effective for an accounting period that begins
on or after 1 April 2016. These amendments have been
applied by the Group for the first time in the current year

unless otherwise specified.

HKFRS 10, HKFRS 12 and
HKAS (as defined below) 28
(Amendments)

B IBIREERE 105
BEBMBHRERENE12R R
EEGTEN(ERR T
25285k (1&7])

HKFRS 11 (Amendments)

BAMBHREERNE 15
(f&77)

HKAS 1 (Amendments)

B GRTERE 15 (185T)

HKAS 16 and HKAS 38 (Amendments)

B G ERE 165 LB SRR
%385k (157])

HKAS 16 and HKAS 41 (Amendments)

BRI ERE 16 LB SRR
E 415 (185])

HKFRSs (Amendments)

BB BHRELEA (BF])

2. ERAMITREEITTERMBER
HEA(ERMERSEER])

RAFEER - AEECEAATHE S}
MAR(EHLHALE ) BHER=2
—NEMA— B R R 2 SR
7 BRI WEER 2 S BB - B3
AR SN AR BB AR P U
=5 -

Investment Entities: Applying the Consolidation Exception

REHER  RAZAARZHIIMER

Accounting for Acquisitions of Interests in Joint Operations
WHEE A E s 2 2T RIET

Disclosure Initiative

WG E

Clarification of Acceptable Methods of Depreciation and Amortisation
BB ITEREIEAE

Agriculture: Bearer Plants
RE  EEREDY

Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2012-2014 Cycle
ERUBHREEN T FE_T-—NFEHR FELCE
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e TS ERAR MY EE

For the year ended 31 March 2017 2 =Z—tF=A=1+—HIFE

2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs"”) (continued)

The nature and the impact of each amendment is described
below:

(@ Amendments to HKFRS 10, HKFRS 12 and HKAS 28
mainly clarify that the exemption from preparing
consolidated financial statements is available to a
parent entity that is a subsidiary of an investment
entity, even if the investment entity measures all its
subsidiaries at fair value in accordance with HKFRS
10. The Company is not an investment entity. Also,
given that the Company is a listed entity, the
consolidation exception set out in the amendments
will not be applicable to the Company and hence the
application of these amendments has had no impact
on the consolidated financial statements.

(b)  Amendments to HKFRS 11 provide guidance on how
to account for the acquisition of a joint operation that
constitutes a business as defined in HKFRS 3 Business
Combinations. Specifically, the amendments state
that the relevant principles on accounting for
business combinations in HKFRS 3 and other
standards should be applied. The amendments also
require that a joint operator to disclose the relevant
information required by HKFRS 3 and other standards
for business combinations. The amendments require
prospective application; prospectively in annual
periods beginning on or after 1 January 2016. The
Group did not have any such transactions in the
current year and hence the application of these
amendments has had no impact on the consolidated
financial statements.
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(b) FEEFHREERF 1R AEFT M
MR ERARE B BRE LR E IR
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e SRR MR

For the year ended 31 March 2017 ##Z2=—Z—tF=A=1+—HIFE

2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (continued)

©

Amendments to HKAS 1 clarify that an entity needs
not provide a specific disclosure required by a HKFRS
if the information resulting from that disclosure is not
material (even if the HKFRS contains a list of specific
requirements or describes them as minimum
requirements). The amendments also give guidance
on the bases of aggregating and disaggregating
information for disclosure purposes. The
amendments emphasise that an entity should
consider whether to provide additional disclosures
when compliance with the specific requirements in
HKFRSs is insufficient to enable users of financial
statements to understand the impact of particular
transactions, other events and conditions on the
entity’s financial position and financial performance.
Furthermore, the amendments require that an
entity’s share of the other comprehensive income of
associates and joint ventures accounted for using the
equity method should be presented separately from
those arising from the Group, and should be
separated into the share of items that, in accordance
with other HKFRSs: (i) will not be reclassified
subsequently to profit or loss; and (ii) will be
reclassified subsequently to profit or loss when
specific conditions are met. The application of these
amendments has not resulted in any impact on the
presentation of financial performance or financial
position of the Group.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e M HRRMIEE

For the year ended 31 March 2017 2 =Z—tF=A=1+—HIFE

2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs"”) (continued)

©)

The amendments to HKAS 16 prohibit entities from
using a revenue-based depreciation method for items
of property, plant and equipment. The amendments
to HKAS 38 introduce a rebuttable presumption that
revenue-based amortisation is not an appropriate
basis for amortisation of an intangible asset. The
amendments states that such a presumption can only
be rebutted in the following two limited
circumstances:

o when the intangible asset is expressed as a
measure of revenue; or

J when it can be demonstrated that revenue and
consumption of the economic benefits of the
intangible asset are highly correlated. With
regard to the Group’s property, plant and
equipment and intangible assets, the Group did
not use revenue-based depreciation and
amortisation method and hence the
amendments did not have any impact on the
Group's financial position and financial
performance. Rather, the Group has been using
the straight-line method for depreciation and
amortisation for its property, plant and
equipment, and intangible assets respectively.

With regard to the Group’s property, plant and
equipment and intangible assets, the Group did not
use revenue-based depreciation and amortisation
method and hence the amendments did not have any
impact on the Group’s financial position and financial
performance. Rather, the Group has been using the
straight-line method for depreciation and
amortisation for its property, plant and equipment,
and intangible assets respectively.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e MR M EE

For the year ended 31 March 2017 ##Z2=—Z—tF=A=1+—HIFE

2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (continued)

(e) The amendments to HKAS 16 and HKAS 41 define a
bearer plant that is a living plant that:

() is used in the production or supply of
agricultural produce;

(i) is expected to bear produce for more than one
period; and

(i) has a remote likelihood of being sold as
agricultural produce except for incidental scrap
sales.

The amendments require that biological assets that
meet the definition of a bearer plant should be
accounted for as property, plant and equipment in
accordance with HKAS 16, instead of HKAS 41. The
produce growing on bearer plants continues to be
accounted for in accordance with HKAS 41.

The application of these amendments has had no
impact on the consolidated financial statements as
the Group is not engaged in agricultural activities.

(f)  The annual improvements to HKFRSs 2012-2014 Cycle
include a number of amendments to various HKFRSS,
which are summarised below.

Firstly, the amendments to HKFRS 5 introduce specific
guidance for when an entity reclassifies an asset (or
disposal group) from held for sale to held for
distribution to owners (or vice versa). The
amendments clarify that such a change should be
considered as a continuation of the original plan of
disposal and hence requirements set out in HKFRS 5
regarding the change of sale plan do not apply.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e M HRRMIEE

For the year ended 31 March 2017 &2 —ZE—+tE=A=1+—HIFE

2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED 2. ERAFIIREETEEMBER

HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING ceB((FREMEEEER ]

STANDARDS (“HKFRSs"”) (continued) (#)

()  (continueq) ® (&)
Secondly, the amendments to HKFRS 7 provide HR BAEMERELENE 752185
additional guidance to clarify whether a servicing IBHEBINES| EE A EEEE
contract is continuing involvement in a transferred T 2HEMS  REANETHE
asset for the purpose of the disclosures required in IEE S E SRR o

relation to transferred assets.

Thirdly, the amendments to HKAS 19 clarify that the H= BESEASI199% 2 BTE
rate used to discount post-employment benefit EHARBIERRNEBREE XA
obligations should be determined by reference to S2ESBENTEENBRERE T
market yields at the end of the reporting period on BN EE T o 8 [T (Eﬂﬁj%gzﬁzm
high quality corporate bonds. The assessment of the ﬂZﬁﬂ‘ ) EENTELEY
depth of a market for high quality corporate bonds BIRE o HikE bﬁ%zﬁ%‘f /NN
should be at the currency level (i.e. the same ﬁﬂﬁgm)\mth—l BB ARRE
currency as the benefits are to be paid). For RKIEEBEEHEZHFEETHEW
currencies for which there is no deep market in such %o REEVWE TN THEENETE -

high quality corporate bonds, the market yields at the
end of the reporting period on government bonds
denominated in that currency should be used instead.
The Group did not have any defined benefit scheme.

The application of these amendments has had no ERZEEIITERGEAMERRE
effect on the consolidated financial statements. RS o
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 March 2017 ##Z2=—Z—tF=A=1+—HIFE

2.

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING

2. ERAMETREESITERMER
FHA((EFEMBHSEN])

STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (continued) (#)

The Group has not early applied the following new and
revised HKFRSs that have been issued but are not yet

effective.

HKFRS 9

BBV EHREEAE IR

HKFRS 15 and HKFRS 15 (Amendments)

ERUBRMELERE 155 LEBIMT
AR B 1558 (1B5])

HKFRS 16

BB REERE 1658

HKAS 7 (Amendments)

ERGTERNET7 5 (BET)

HKAS 12 (Amendments)

B ERE 125 (1B5])

HKFRS 2 (Amendments)

BB HRERERE 25 (BR])
HKAS 40 (Amendments)

AR GETERIE 4098 (1BET)

HKFRS 10 and HKAS 28 (Amendments)

ERUBREENE 10K L EBGET
AERIZE 28 5% (183T)

HKFRS (Amendments)

ERIBREER (ERT)

HK(IFRIC)-Int 22

Bt (BEEBERERELZES)
—REE2%R

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2017

AEBWERFRAATEEMERERZ
Fa] RIKERT BB M IS MEER -

Financial Instruments?

BT A®

Revenue from Contracts with Customers®
TP A HMEEe

Leases®

%EE(S)

Disclosure Initiative®

WEEETEIO

Recognition of Deferred Tax Assets for Unrealised Losses®

AR EBRERECHIBEED

Classification and Measurement of Share-based Payment
Transactions®

DR EUARN BRERZARZH?

Transfers of investment property®@

EEREYE?

Sale or Contribution of Assets between an Investor and its Associate
or Joint Venture®

REERAEBENTHaatEREEHESIIRA®

Annual improvements to HKFRSs 2014-2016 Cycle®

BB RELEN T —OFE T - NFRP 2 FEHEO
Foreign currency transactions and advance consideration®@
HNER 5 R FERRER

1 1 —

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2018 ? WZZ—N\F— A —HAE R 2 F &8 AR

B Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2019 ‘ R-Z—HF—A— B AERG 2 FE AR

4 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after a date to be ‘ i T TE B Bk bATR B4R 2 6 E HAfR A AR
determined : RIB—tF—A—RAH B N\F-A—-Bxkz#’

° Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2017 or 1 Fth 2z FE BRI AR - EmA o

January 2018, as appropriate.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e M HRRMIEE

For the year ended 31 March 2017 2 =Z—tF=A=1+—HIFE

)

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs"”) (continued)

HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments

HKFRS 9 issued in 2009 introduced new requirements for
the classification and measurement of financial assets.
HKFRS 9 was subsequently amended in 2010 to include the
requirements for the classification and measurement of
financial liabilities and for derecognition, and was further
amended in 2013 to include the new requirements for
general hedge accounting. Another revised version of
HKFRS 9 was issued in 2014 mainly to include (a)
impairment requirements for financial assets; and (b)
limited amendments to the classification and measurement
requirements by introducing a “fair value through other
comprehensive income” (“FVTOCI") measurement category
for certain financial assets.

Key requirements of HKFRS 9 are described as follows:

° All recognised financial assets that are within the
scope of HKAS 39 “Financial Instruments: Recognition
and Measurement” are subsequently measured at
amortised cost or fair value. Specifically, debt
investments that are held within a business model
whose objective is to collect the contractual cash
flows, and that have contractual cash flows that are
solely payments of principal and interest on the
principal outstanding are generally measured at
amortised cost at the end of subsequent accounting
periods. Debt instruments that are held within a
business model whose objective is achieved both by
collecting contractual cash flows and selling financial
assets, and have contractual terms of the financial
asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that
are solely payments of principal and interest on the
principal amount outstanding, are measure at FVTOCI.
All other debt investments and equity investments
are measured at their fair values at the end of
subsequent reporting periods. In addition, under
HKFRS 9, entities may make an irrevocable election to
present subsequent changes in the fair value of an
equity investment (that is not held for trading) in other
comprehensive income, with only dividend income
generally recognised in profit or loss.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e SRR MR

For the year ended 31 March 2017 ##Z2=—Z—tF=A=1+—HIFE

2.

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (continued)
HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments (continued)

With regard to the measurement of financial liabilities
designated as at fair value through profit or loss,
HKFRS 9 requires that the amount of change in the
fair value of the financial liability that is attributable to
changes in the credit risk of that liability is presented
in other comprehensive income, unless the
recognition of the effects of changes in the liability’s
credit risk in other comprehensive income would
create or enlarge an accounting mismatch in profit or
loss. Changes in fair value of financial liabilities
attributable to changes in financial liabilities" credit
risk are not subsequently reclassified to profit or loss.
Under HKAS 39, the entire amount of the change in
the fair value of the financial liability designated as
fair value through profit or loss was presented in
profit or loss.

In relation to the impairment assessment of financial
assets, HKFRS 9 adopts an expected credit loss
model, as opposed to an incurred credit loss model
under HKAS 39. The expected credit loss model
requires an entity to account for expected credit
losses and changes in those expected credit losses at
each reporting date to reflect changes in credit risk
since initial recognition. In other words, it is no longer
necessary for a credit event to have occurred before
credit losses are recognised.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e M HRRMIEE

For the year ended 31 March 2017 2 =Z—tF=A=1+—HIFE

2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED 2. ERHIIREECITEEMNER
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING ceB((FREMEEEER ]
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs"”) (continued) (#)

HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments (continued) ERAMBEHRELEREISKIMEITA ]

(#)

o With regard to the general hedge accounting o YR eHIETEmS C BENB
requirements, HKFRS 9 retains the three types of AR E O R B IRIE E B SR
hedge accounting mechanisms currently available in F39% B AT A S Y e s
HKAS 39. Under HKFRS 9, greater flexibility has been S o ABIEF B EIMELERF O B
introduced to the types of transactions eligible for ABAEBBIEYEheHSER Y ZER S
hedge accounting, specifically broadening the types IBMEARMNEEEY - FRI2EES
of instruments that qualify for hedging instruments BREAUHTAE Y TREERUES
and the types of risk components of non-financial B et RIEVIEMKEE 2
items that are eligible for hedge accounting. In B DR o wIN BB RE
addition, the effectiveness test has been overhauled AN E WA [L&HEBEZ | R BIE
and replaced with the principle of an ‘economic Ko B mARETEEE BTG -
relationship’. Retrospective assessment of hedge R TR AEMNFEEEAETER
effectiveness is also no longer required. Enhanced MREREB ZRE °
disclosure requirements about an entity’s risk
management activities have also been introduced.

The Group is still in the process of assessing the impact of
HKFRS 9. The directors of the Company believe that it is

AEBDNAENEETEMBREENEIRZ
FE - ARBESFRA  EARE ARG

impractical to disclose the impact in these consolidated BIRBR Y S A ISR 2 B A 1T o
financial statements until the Group has completed the
assessment.

HKFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with
Customers and the Clarifications

HKFRS 15 establishes a single comprehensive model for
entities to use in accounting for revenue arising from
contracts with customers. HKFRS 15 will supersede the
current revenue recognition guidance including HKAS 18
“Revenue”, HKAS 11 “Construction Contracts” and the

related Interpretations when it becomes effective.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e SRR MR

For the year ended 31 March 2017 ##Z2=—Z—tF=A=1+—HIFE

2.

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (continued)

HKFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with
Customers and the Clarifications (continued)
The core principle of HKFRS 15 is that an entity should
recognise revenue to depict the transfer of promised goods
or services to customers in an amount that reflects the
consideration to which the entity expects to be entitled in
exchange for those goods or services. Specifically, the
Standard introduces a 5-step approach to revenue
recognition:

Step 1: Identify the contract(s) with a customer

e Step 2. Identify the performance obligations in the
contract

e Step 3. Determine the transaction price

e Step4: Allocate the transaction price to the
performance obligations in the contract

e Step 5. Recognise revenue when (or as) the entity
satisfies a performance obligation

Under HKFRS 15, an entity recognises revenue when (or as)
a performance obligation is satisfied, i.e. when ‘control” of
the goods or services underlying the particular performance
obligation is transferred to the customer. Far more
prescriptive guidance has been added in HKFRS 15 to deal
with specific scenarios. Furthermore, extensive disclosures
are required by HKFRS 15.

The Group is still in the process of assessing the impact of
HKFRS 15. The directors of the Company believe that it is
impractical to disclose the impact in these consolidated
financial statements until the Group has completed the
assessment.
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e M HRRMIEE

For the year ended 31 March 2017 2 =Z—tF=A=1+—HIFE

)

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs"”) (continued)

HKFRS 16 Leases

HKFRS 16 will supersede the current lease guidance
including HKAS 17 Leases and the related interpretations
when it becomes effective.

With regard to lessee accounting, the distinction of
operating leases and finance leases, as required by HKAS
17, has been replaced by a model which requires a right-of-
use asset and a corresponding liability to be recognised for
all leases by lessees except for short-term leases and
leases of low value assets. Specifically, the right-of-use
asset is initially measured at cost and subsequently
measured at cost (subject to certain exceptions) less
accumulated depreciation and impairment losses, adjusted
for any re-measurement of the lease liability. The lease
liability is initially measured at the present value of the
lease payments that are not paid at that date.
Subsequently, the lease liability is adjusted for interest and
lease payments. Furthermore, the classification of cash
flows will also be affected as operating lease payments
under HKAS 17 are presented as operating cash flows;
whereas, under the HKFRS 16 model, the lease payments
will be split into a principal and an interest portion which
will be presented as financing and operating cash flows
respectively.

With regard to lessor accounting, HKFRS 16 substantially
carries forward the lessor accounting requirements in HKAS
17, and continues to require a lessor to classify a lease
either as an operating lease or a finance lease.

Furthermore, HKFRS 16 requires extensive disclosures in
the financial statements.

The Group is in the process of assessing the impact of
HKFRS 16. The directors of the Company believe that it is
impractical to disclose the impact in these consolidated
financial statements until the Group has completed the
assessment.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 March 2017 & Z =%

2.

=~ CE=H=3 HIEE

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (continued)

HKAS 7 (Amendments) Disclosure Initiative

The amendments require an entity to provide disclosures
that enable users of financial statements to evaluate
changes in liabilities arising from financing activities,
including both changes arising from cash flows and non-
cash changes. On initial application of the amendment,
entities are not required to provide comparative information
for preceding periods.

The directors of the Company do not anticipate that the
application of these amendments will have a material
impact on the consolidated financial statements.

HKAS 12 (Amendments) Recognition of
Deferred Tax Assets for Unrealised Losses
The amendments clarify that an entity needs to consider
whether tax law restricts the sources of taxable profits
against which it may make deductions on the reversal of
that deductible temporary difference. Furthermore, the
amendments provide guidance on how an entity should
determine future taxable profits and explain the
circumstances in which taxable profit may include the
recovery of some assets for more than their carrying
amount.

Entities are required to apply the amendments
retrospectively. However, on initial application of the
amendments, the change in the opening equity of the
earliest comparative period may be recognised in opening
retained earnings (or in another component of equity, as
appropriate), without allocating the change between
opening retained earnings and other components of equity.
Entities applying this relief must disclose that fact.

The Group is in the process of assessing the impact of
HKAS 12 (Amendments). The directors of the Company
believe that it is impractical to disclose the impact in these
consolidated financial statements until the Group has
completed the assessment.
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For the year ended 31 March 2017 2 =Z—tF=A=1+—HIFE

2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED 2. EHHITIREECESTITEMER
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING SHA(FEBMERSER ]
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs"”) (continued) (#)

HKFRS 2 (Amendments) Classification and ERRREERF 25 (1BE]) [ 2
Measurement of Share-based Payment HRAEUROGEERAERS
Transactions

The amendments clarify the following: g TRuMmmn T ¢

In estimating the fair value of a cash-settled share-
based payment, the accounting for the effects of
vesting and non-vesting conditions should follow the
same approach as for equity-settled share-based
payments.

Where tax law or regulation requires an entity to
withhold a specified number of equity instruments
equal to the monetary value of the employee’s tax
obligation to meet the employee’s tax liability which
is then remitted to the tax authority, i.e. the share-
based payment arrangement has a ‘net settlement
feature’, such an arrangement should be classified as
equity-settled in its entirety, provided that the share-
based payment would have been classified as equity-
settled had it not included the net settlement feature.

A modification of a share-based payment that
changes the transaction from cash-settled to equity-
settled should be accounted for as follows: the
original liability is derecognised. The equity-settled
share-based payment is recognised at the
modification date fair value of the equity instrument
granted to the extent that services have been
rendered up to the modification date. Any difference
between the carrying amount of the liability at the
modification date and the amount recognised in
equity should be recognised in profit or loss
immediately.

R AR T AEE RIARND /E
BZARAFER  FEAERTRA
RERARND RER 2 MR B R
FEBIGRM e RIEAERER 7
e

HBOESOER R E BERAFRMBERN
EEBRBEECEREEZHEHE K
ATR ETEERBEL  HiZ
1 PR T B IS e S - BIDARR (D A A0
SRR EE DFRERRE] %
THREBYBERUER T AREE
HHEINEFEEE S RABRD R
AR 2RO BRARRTAGE -

HUARS T AEELE SRR T A
B2RB 2B RERZNRZE
RIABUATHAAR  BUBRRRA
B1E - WEZRER] B RRHEZ SRS -
AR T AR AR D RERE 2
ABRETRHEEERATAZAR
FERER - BERET AN ZREE
HERERER SR EZZREKA
R B R

HONG KONG LIFE SCIENCES AND TECHNOLOGIES GROUP LIMITED o &/#4 mRIERITEBE AR AR



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e SRR MR

For the year ended 31 March 2017 ##Z2=—Z—tF=A=1+—HIFE

2.

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (continued)

HKFRS 2 (Amendments) Classification and
Measurement of Share-based Payment
Transactions (continued)

The Group does not have any cash-settled share-based
payment arrangements or any withholding tax
arrangements with tax authorities in relation to share-
based payments and hence the directors of the Company
do not anticipate that the application of the amendments in
the future will have a significant impact on the consolidated
financial statements.

HKFRS 10 and HKAS 28 (Amendments) Sale
or contribution of Assets between an
Investor and its Associate or Joint Venture

The amendments to HKFRS 10 and HKAS 28 deal with
situations where there is a sale or contribution of assets
between an investor and its associate or joint venture.
Specifically, the amendments state that gains or losses
resulting from the loss of control of a subsidiary that does
not contain a business in a transaction with an associate or
a joint venture that is accounted for using the equity
method, are recognised in the parent’s profit or loss only to
the extent of the unrelated investors’ interests in that
associate or joint venture. Similarly, gains and losses
resulting from the re-measurement of investments retained
in any former subsidiary (that has become an associate or
a joint venture that is accounted for using the equity
method) to fair value are recognised in the former parent’s
profit or loss only to the extent of the unrelated investors'
interests in the new associate or joint venture.

The Group did not enter into these transactions in the
current year. The directors of the Company anticipate that
the application of these amendments may have an impact
on the consolidated financial statements in future periods
should such transactions arise.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e M HRRMIEE

For the year ended 31 March 2017 &= ==

3.

—EF=H="1—HlEEE

STATEMENT OF COMPLIANCE

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared
in accordance with HKFRSs, which collective term includes
all applicable Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards,
Hong Kong Accounting Standards ("HKASs") and
Interpretations issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA") and the accounting
principles generally accepted in Hong Kong. In addition, the
consolidated financial statements include applicable
disclosures required by the Rules Governing the Listing of
Securities on the Growth Enterprise Market (the "GEM") of
The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “GEM Listing
Rules”) and by the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

BASIS OF PREPARATION

The measurement basis used in the preparation of the
consolidated financial statements is the historical cost
basis, except for certain financial instruments that are
measured at fair value at the end of each reporting period.
Historical cost is generally based on the fair value of the
consideration given in the exchange for goods and
services.

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an
asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction
between market participants at the measurement date,
regardless of whether that price is directly observable or
estimated using another valuation technique. In estimating
the fair value of an asset or a liability, the Group takes into
account the characteristics of the asset or liability if market
participants would take those characteristics into account
when pricing the asset or liability at the measurement date.
Fair value for measurement and/or disclosure purposes in
these consolidated financial statements is determined on
such a basis, except for share-based payment transactions
that are within the scope of HKFRS 2, leasing transactions
that are within the scope of HKAS 17, and measurements
that have some similarities to fair value but are not fair
value, such as net realisable value in HKAS 2 or value in use
in HKAS 36.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e SRR MR

For the year ended 31 March 2017 ##Z2=—Z—tF=A=1+—HIFE

4.

BASIS OF PREPARATION (continued)

In addition, for financial reporting purposes, fair value
measurements are categorised into Level 1, 2 or 3 based
on the degree to which the inputs to the fair value
measurements are observable and the significance of the
inputs to the fair value measurement in its entirety, which
are described as follows:

° Level 1 inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in active
markets for identical assets or liabilities that the entity
can access at the measurement date;

° Level 2 inputs are inputs, other than quoted prices
included within Level 1, that are observable for the
asset or liability, either directly or indirectly; and

° Level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs for the asset
or liability.

The preparation of consolidated financial statements in
conformity with HKFRSS requires management to make
judgements, estimates and assumptions that affect the
application of policies and reported amounts of assets,
liabilities, income and expenses. The estimates and
associated assumptions are based on historical experience
and various other factors that are believed to be reasonable
under the circumstances, the results of which form the
basis of making the judgements about carrying values of
assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent from
other sources. Actual results may differ from these
estimates.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e M HRRMIEE

For the year ended 31 March 2017 &= ==

4.

—EF=H="1—HlEEE

BASIS OF PREPARATION (continued)

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on
an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are
recognised in the period in which the estimates are revised
if the revision affects only that period or in the period of the
revision and future periods if the revision affects both
current and future periods.

Judgements made by management in the application of
HKFRSs that have significant effect on the consolidated
financial statements and major sources of estimation
uncertainty are disclosed in note 6.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(a) Basis of consolidation
The consolidated financial statements incorporate the
financial statements of the Company and entities
(including structured entities) controlled by the
Company and its subsidiaries. Control is achieved
when the Company:

o has power over the investee,

o is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns
from its involvement with the investee; and

o has the ability to use its power to affect its
returns.

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an
investee if facts and circumstances indicate that
there are changes to one or more of the three
elements of control listed above.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e SRR MR

For the year ended 31 March 2017 &2 —ZE—+tE=A=+—HIFE

5. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

(@) Basis of consolidation (continued)

5. FEREBE @
(a) HmEEE®)

Consolidation of a subsidiary begins when the Group
obtains control over the subsidiary and ceases when
the Group loses control of the subsidiary. Specifically,
income and expenses of a subsidiary acquired or
disposed of during the year are included in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income from the date the Group
gains control until the date when the Group ceases to
control the subsidiary.

Non-controlling interests represent the equity in a
subsidiary not attributable directly or indirectly to the
Company, and in respect of which the Group has not
agreed any additional terms with the holders of those
interests which would result in the Group as a whole
having a contractual obligation in respect of those
interests that meets the definition of a financial
liability.

Non-controlling interests are presented in the
consolidated statement of financial position within
equity, separately from equity attributable to the
owners of the Company. Non-controlling interests in
the result of the Group are presented on the face of
the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income as an allocation of total profit
or loss and total comprehensive income for the year
between non-controlling interests and the owners of
the Company.

Changes in the Group’s ownership interests in
subsidiaries that do not result in the Group losing
control over the subsidiaries are accounted for as
equity transactions. The carrying amounts of the
Group’s interests and the non-controlling interests
are adjusted to reflect the changes in their relative
interests in the subsidiaries. Any difference between
the amount by which the non-controlling interests are
adjusted and the fair value of the consideration paid
or received is recognised directly in equity and
attributed to owners of the Company.

7R ER B T A5 PR B 2 )22 1) B T B
BRAGEAR  ARKEMBLRF
ZHEREIEAR AWM E - NF
MBS E Z KB A F 2 YA K5
X REAEEES ﬂf“ﬁié
AEERENBARIEGEE R
PAGABRE AR E RS %W

B IE W IFR AR A EE A HE
ERAEZMBARED  MAREY
W SR A AN ERAE R A
B ABAKREHZEESELEN
EUMBRABEERZANEL -

IR AR A I TSI R 2 i
HREY] - WEARFHE AEEER
DY) FIEREREIERNEEZE
BEHFEEmREMEEKZER - N
RIFERERERNRAEEAZESD
RENE=EEREEREEE LR
HNEF o

REBRBAREBEERCED
finl Iz R B RS H KA B LK B A A
2SR BgIERERZH AR -
REBZEREFERER CREE
BHFAFE - URBRERHE A R
HiEn o 88  FERERZ HAER
HENKEWRREQATERER 2T
MEF HEEREZER THEB
RARBIEB A o

ANNUAL REPORT 2017 / 3%k



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e M HRRMIEE

For the year ended 31 March 2017 2 =Z—tF=A=1+—HIFE

5.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

(@)

(b)

Basis of consolidation (continued)

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary, a gain
or loss is recognised in profit or loss and is calculated
as the difference between (i) the aggregate of the fair
value of the consideration received and the fair value
of any retained interest and (ii) the previous carrying
amount of the assets (including goodwill), and
liabilities of the subsidiary and any non-controlled
interests. All amounts previously recognised in other
comprehensive income in relation to that subsidiary
are accounted for as if the Group had directly
disposed of the related assets or liabilities of the
subsidiary (i.e. reclassified that to profit or loss or
transferred to another category of equity as
specified/permitted by applicable HKFRSS).

Where necessary, adjustments are made to the
financial statements of subsidiary to bring their
accounting policies into line with those used by other
members of the Group.

All intra-group transactions, balances, income,
expenses and cash flows relating to transactions
between entities of the Group are eliminated in full on
consolidation.

Business combinations

Acquisitions of businesses are accounted for using
the acquisition method. The consideration transferred
in a business combination is measured at fair value,
which is calculated as the sum of the acquisition date
fair values of the assets transferred by the Group,
liabilities incurred by the Group to the former owners
of the acquiree and the equity interests issued by the
Group in exchange for control of the acquiree.
Acquisition-related costs are generally recognised in
profit or loss as incurred.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e SRR MR

For the year ended 31 March 2017 ##Z2=—Z—tF=A=1+—HIFE

5. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)
(b) Business combinations (continued)

5. FEREBE @
(b) ¥¥&6t@

At the acquisition date, the identifiable assets
acquired and the liabilities assumed are recognised
at their fair value, except that:

J deferred tax assets or liabilities and liabilities or
assets related to employee benefit
arrangements are recognised and measured in
accordance with HKAS 12 “Income Taxes” and
HKAS 19 "Employee Benefits” respectively;

o liabilities or equity instruments related to share
based payment arrangements of the acquiree
or share-based payment arrangements of the
Group entered into to replace share-based
payment arrangements of the acquiree are
measured in accordance with HKFRS 2 Share
based Payment at the acquisition date; and

o assets (or disposal groups) that are classified as
held for sale in accordance with HKFRS 5 “Non-
current Assets Held for Sale and Discontinued
Operations” are measured in accordance with
that standard.

Goodwill is measured as the excess of the sum of the
consideration transferred, the amount of any non-
controlling interests in the acquiree, and the fair value
of the acquirer’s previously held equity interest in the
acquiree (if any) over the net of the acquisition date
amounts of the identifiable assets acquired and the
liabilities assumed. If, after reassessment, the net of
the acquisition-date amounts of the identifiable
assets acquired and liabilities assumed exceeds the
sum of the consideration transferred, the amount of
any non-controlling interests in the acquiree and the
fair value of the acquirer’s previously held interest in
the acquiree (if any), the excess is recognised
immediately in profit or loss as a bargain purchase
gain.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e M HRRMIEE

For the year ended 31 March 2017 2 =Z—tF=A=1+—HIFE

5. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)
(b) Business combinations (continued)

5. FEREBE @
(b) ¥¥E6t@)

Non-controlling interests that are present ownership
interests and entitle their holders to a proportionate
share of the entity’s net assets in the event of
liguidation may be initially measured either at fair
value or at the non-controlling interests’
proportionate share of the recognised amounts of the
acquiree’s identifiable net assets. The choice of
measurement basis is made on a transaction-by-
transaction basis. Other types of non-controlling
interests are measured at their fair value or, when
applicable, on the basis specified in HKFRS.

When the consideration the Group transfers in a
business combination includes assets or liabilities
resulting from a contingent consideration
arrangement, the contingent consideration is
measured at its acquisition-date fair value and
included as part of the consideration transferred in a
business combination. Changes in the fair value of
the contingent consideration that qualify as
measurement period adjustments are adjusted
retrospectively, with the corresponding adjustments
being made against goodwill. Measurement period
adjustments are adjustments that arise from
additional information obtained during the
measurement period (which cannot exceed one year
from acquisition date) about facts and circumstances
that existed as of the acquisition date.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e SRR MR

For the year ended 31 March 2017 ##Z2=—Z—tF=A=1+—HIFE

5. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

(b) Business combinations (continued)

5. FEREBE @
(b) ¥¥&6t@

The subsequent accounting for changes in the fair
value of the contingent consideration that do not
qualify as measurement period adjustments depends
on how the contingent consideration is classified.
Contingent consideration that is classified as equity is
not remeasured at subsequent reporting dates and
its subsequent settlement is accounted for within
equity. Contingent consideration that is classified as
an asset or a liability is remeasured at subsequent
reporting dates in accordance with HKAS 39, or HKAS
37 Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent
Assets, as appropriate, with the corresponding gain
or loss being recognised in profit or loss.

When a business combination is achieved in stages,
the Group’s previously held equity interest in the
acquiree is remeasured to fair value at the acquisition
date (i.e. the date when the Group obtains control),
and the resulting gain or loss, if any, is recognised in
profit or loss. Amounts arising from interests in the
acquiree prior to the acquisition date that have
previously been recognised in other comprehensive
income are reclassified to profit or loss where such
treatment would be appropriate if that interest were
disposed of.

If the initial accounting for a business combination is
incomplete by the end of the reporting period in
which the combination occurs, the Group reports
provisional amounts for the items for which the
accounting is incomplete. Those provisional amounts
are adjusted during the measurement period (see
above), or additional assets or liabilities are
recognised, to reflect new information obtained about
facts and circumstances that existed as of the
acquisition date that, if known, would have affected
the amounts recognised as of that date.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 March 2017 &2 —ZE—+tE=A=1+—HIFE
5. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 5. TESHBE @
(continued)

(c) Goodwill (c) Em&

Goodwill arising on an acquisition of a business is
carried at cost as established at the date of
acquisition of the business (see the accounting policy
above) less accumulated impairment losses, if any.

For the purposes of impairment testing, goodwill is
allocated to each of the relevant cash-generating
units, or groups of cash-generating units, that are
expected to benefit from the synergies of the
combination.

A cash-generating unit to which goodwill has been
allocated is tested for impairment annually or more
frequently when there is an indication that the unit
may be impaired. If the recoverable amount of the
cash-generating unit is less than its carrying amount,
the impairment loss is allocated first to reduce the
carrying amount of any goodwill allocated to the unit
and then to the other assets of the unit on a pro rata
basis based on of the carrying amount of each asset
in the unit. Any impairment loss for goodwill is
recognised directly in profit or loss in the
consolidated income statement. An impairment 10ss
for goodwill is not reversed in subsequent periods.

On disposal of the relevant cash-generating unit, the
attributable amount of goodwill is included in the
determination of the profit or loss on disposal.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 March 2017 &2 —ZE—+tE=A=+—HIFE

5. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)
(d) Revenue recognition
Revenue is measured at the fair value of the
consideration received or receivable for goods sold
and services rendered in the normal course of
business, net of discounts and sales related taxes.

Revenue from the sale of goods is recognised when
the goods are delivered and titles have passed, at
which time all the following conditions are satisfied:

o the Group has transferred to the buyer the
significant risks and rewards of ownership of
the goods;

J the Group retains neither continuing managerial
involvement to the degree usually associated
with ownership nor effective control over the
goods sold;

. the amount of revenue can be measured
reliably;

o it is probable that the economic benefits
associated with the transaction will flow to the
Group; and

o the costs incurred or to be incurred in respect
of the transaction can be measured reliably.

Service income is recognised at the completion of the
service rendered.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e M HRRMIEE

For the year ended 31 March 2017 2 =Z—tF=A=1+—HIFE

5.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

(d) Revenue recognition (continued)

(e)

Interest income from a financial asset is recognised
when it is probable that the economic benefits will
flow to the Group and the amount of income can be
measured reliably. Interest income is accrued on a
time basis, by reference to the principal outstanding
and at the effective interest rate applicable, which is
the rate that exactly discounts the estimated future
cash receipts through the expected life of the
financial asset to that asset’s net carrying amount on
initial recognition.

Income arising from sales of financial instruments is
recognised on the completion of transfer of risks and
rewards to the transferee.

Dividend income from investments (including financial
assets at fair value through profit or loss and available
for-sale investments) is recognised when the
shareholder’s right to receive payment is established
(provided that it is probable that economic benefits
will flow to the Group and the amount of revenue can
be measured reliably).

Leasing

Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the
terms of the lease transfer substantially all the risks
and rewards of ownership to the lessee. All other
leases are classified as operating leases.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e SRR MR

For the year ended 31 March 2017 ##Z2=—Z—tF=A=1+—HIFE

5. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 5. FEEBEm=
(continued)

(e) Leasing (continued) (e) HE @)

The Group as lessee

Operating lease payments are recognised as an
expense on a straight-line basis over the lease term,
except where another systematic basis is more
representative of the time pattern in which economic
benefits from the leased asset are consumed.
Contingent rentals arising under operating leases are
recognised as an expense in the period in which they
are incurred.

In the event that lease incentives are received to
enter into operating leases, such incentives are
recognised as a liability. The aggregate benefit of
incentives is recognised as a reduction of rental
expense on a straight-line basis, except where
another systematic basis is more representative of
the time pattern in which economic benefits from the
leased asset are consumed.

Leasehold land for own use

When a lease includes both land and building
elements, the Group assesses the classification of
each element as a finance or an operating lease
separately based on the assessment as to whether
substantially all the risks and rewards incidental to
ownership of each element have been transferred to
the Group, unless it is clear that both elements are
operating leases in which case the entire lease is
classified as an operating lease. Specifically, the
minimum lease payments (including any lump sum
upfront payments) are allocated between the land
and the building elements in proportion to the relative
fair values of the leasehold interests in the land
element and building element of the lease at the
inception of the lease.

To the extent the allocation of the lease payments
can be made reliably, interest in leasehold land that is
accounted for as an operating lease is presented as
“prepaid lease payments” in the consolidated
statement of financial position and is amortised over
the lease term on a straight-line basis. When the
lease payments cannot be allocated reliably between
the land and building elements, the entire lease is
generally classified as a finance lease and accounted
for as property, plant and equipment.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e M HRRMIEE

For the year ended 31 March 2017 &2 —ZE—+tE=A=1+—HIFE
5. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 5. TESHBE @
(continued)

(f) Foreign currencies (f) spw

In preparing the consolidated financial statements of
each individual group entity, transactions in
currencies other than the functional currency of that
entity (foreign currencies) are recorded at the rates of
exchange prevailing on the dates of the transactions.
At the end of each reporting period, monetary items
that are denominated in foreign currencies are
retranslated at the rates prevailing at the end of the
reporting period. Non-monetary items carried at fair
value that are denominated in foreign currencies are
retranslated at the rates prevailing on the date when
the fair value was determined. Non-monetary items
that are measured in terms of historical cost in a
foreign currency are not retranslated.

Exchange differences arising on settlement of
monetary items, and on the translation of monetary
items, are recognised in profit or loss in the period in
which they arise. Exchange differences arising on
retranslation of non-monetary items carried at fair
value are included in profit or loss for the period
except for exchange difference arising on
retranslation of non-monetary items in respect of
which gains and losses are recognised directly in
other comprehensive income, in which cases, the
exchange differences are also recognised in other
comprehensive income.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e SRR MR

For the year ended 31 March 2017 ##Z2=—Z—tF=A=1+—HIFE

5.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

(f)

(8)

Foreign currencies (continued)

For the purpose of presenting consolidated financial
statements, the assets and liabilities of the Group's
foreign operations (including comparatives) are
expressed in Hong Kong dollars using exchange rates
prevailing at the end of the reporting period. Income
and expense items (including comparatives) are
translated at the average exchange rates for the
period, unless exchange rates fluctuated significantly
during that period, in which case the exchange rates
at the dates of the transactions are used. Exchange
differences arising, if any, are recognised in other
comprehensive income and accumulated in equity
under the heading of translation reserve. On the
disposal of a foreign operation, all of the exchange
differences accumulated in equity in respect of that
operation attributable to the owners of the Company
are reclassified to profit or l0ss.

Goodwill and fair value adjustments on identifiable
assets acquired and liabilities assumed arising on the
acquisition of a foreign operation are treated as
assets and liabilities of the foreign operation and
translated at the rate prevailing at the end of each
reporting period. Exchange differences arising are
recognised in other comprehensive income.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the
acquisition, construction or production of qualifying
assets, which are assets that necessarily take a
substantial period of time to get ready for their
intended use or sale, are added to the cost of those
assets, until such time as the assets are substantially
ready for their intended use or sale.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in profit or
loss in the period in which they are incurred.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e M HRRMIEE

For the year ended 31 March 2017 2 =Z—tF=A=1+—HIFE

5. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 5. FEEBEm®

(continued)
(h) Employee benefits (h) EEER
Retirement benefits RIKEF

Retirement benefits to employees are provided
through defined contribution plans.

The Company and its subsidiaries operating in Hong
Kong operate a defined contribution retirement
benefit plan under the Mandatory Provident Fund
Schemes Ordinance (the “MPF Scheme”), for all of its
employees who are eligible to participate in the MPF
Scheme. Contributions are made based on
percentage of Employees’ basic salaries.

The employees of the Group’s subsidiaries which
operate in PRC are required to participate in a central
pension scheme operated by the local municipal
governments. These subsidiaries are required to
contribute a certain percentage of its payroll costs to
the central pension scheme.

Contributions are recognised as an expense in profit
or loss when employees render services during the
year. The Group’s obligations under these plans are
limited to the fixed percentage contributions payable.

Employee entitlements to annual leave are
recognised when they accrue to employees. A
provision is made for the estimated liability for annual
leave as a result of services rendered by employees
up to the reporting date.

Non-accumulating compensated absences such as
sick leave and maternity leave are not recognised
until the time of leave.

Share-based payment benefits

Share options granted to employees are accounted
for in accordance with the policies set out in note 5(s)
).
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e SRR MR

For the year ended 31 March 2017 ##Z2=—Z—tF=A=1+—HIFE

5.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

(i)

Taxation
Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax
currently payable and deferred tax.

Current tax

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit
for the year. Taxable profit differs from profit before
tax as reported in the consolidated statement of
profit or loss and other comprehensive income
because it excludes items of income or expense that
are taxable or deductible in other years and it further
excludes items that are never taxable or deductible.
The Group's liability for current tax is calculated using
tax rates that have been enacted or substantively
enacted by the end of the reporting period.

Deferred tax

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences
between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities
in the consolidated financial statements and the
corresponding tax bases used in the computation of
taxable profit. Deferred tax liabilities are generally
recognised for all taxable temporary differences, and
deferred tax assets are generally recognised to the
extent that it is probable that taxable profits will be
available against which deductible temporary
differences can be utilised. Such deferred tax assets
and liabilities are not recognised if the temporary
difference arises from goodwill or from the initial
recognition (other than in a business combination) of
assets and liabilities in a transaction that affects
neither the taxable profit nor the accounting profit. In
addition, deferred tax liabilities are not recognised if
the temporary difference arises from the initial
recognition of goodwill.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e M HRRMIEE

For the year ended 31 March 2017 2 =Z—tF=A=1+—HIFE

5.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

(i)

Taxation (continued)

Deferred tax (continued)

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable
temporary differences arising on investments in
subsidiaries, except where the Group is able to
control the reversal of the temporary difference and
it is probable that the temporary difference will not
reverse in the foreseeable future. Deferred tax assets
arising from deductible temporary differences
associated with such investments are only recognised
to the extent that it is probable that there will be
sufficient taxable profits against which to utilize the
benefits of the temporary differences and they are
expected to reverse in the foreseeable future.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is
reviewed at the end of each reporting period and
reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable
that sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow
all or part of the asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the
tax rates that are expected to apply in the period
when the liability is settled or the asset is realised,
based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been
enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the
reporting period. The measurement of deferred
assets and liabilities reflects the tax consequences
that would follow from the manner in which the
Group expects, at the end of the reporting period, to
recover or settle the carrying amount of its assets or
liabilities.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e SRR MR

For the year ended 31 March 2017 ##Z2=—Z—tF=A=1+—HIFE

5.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

(i)

()

Taxation (continued)

Current and deferred tax for the year

Current and deferred tax are recognised in profit or
loss, except when they relate to items that are
recognised in other comprehensive income or
directly in equity, in which case, the current and
deferred tax are also recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity
respectively. Where current tax or deferred tax arises
from the initial accounting for a business
combination, the tax effect is included in the
accounting for the business combination.

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment including owner
occupied land and buildings held for use in the supply
of service, or administrative purposes (other than
properties under construction as described below),
are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and
any accumulated impairment losses.

Depreciation is charged so as to write off the cost of
property, plant and equipment, after taking into
account of their estimated residual value, if any, over
their estimated useful lives, using the straight-line
method. The estimated useful lives, residual values
and depreciation method are reviewed at the end of
each reporting period, with the effect of any changes
in estimate accounted for on a prospective basis. The
principal annual rates are as follows:

Leasehold improvements

HEEE FF5% = 20%
Furniture, fixtures and equipment 15%-33"/3% per annum
ik - HEREE FF15% £33'/,%
Motor vehicles 10%-20% per annum
RE FF10% =20%
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e M HRRMIEE

For the year ended 31 March 2017 2 =Z—tF=A=1+—HIFE

5.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

()

Property, plant and equipment
(continued)

An item of property, plant and equipment is
derecognised upon disposal or when no future
economic benefits are expected to arise from the
continued use of the asset. Any gain or loss arising
on derecognition of the asset (calculated as the
difference between the net disposal proceeds and
the carrying amount of the item) is included in the
profit or loss in the year in which the item is
derecognised.

Construction in progress, which represents assets
under construction, is stated at cost less impairment
loss, if any. The cost comprises construction costs
including direct materials, labour, contractors’ fee
and overheads attributable to bringing the production
facilities to its present condition. When the assets are
completed and ready for use, the carrying amount of
the assets will be reclassified to property, plant and
equipment and depreciated in accordance with the
policy as set out above.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e SRR MR

For the year ended 31 March 2017 ##Z2=—Z—tF=A=1+—HIFE
5. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 5. TESHBE®
(continued)

(k) Intangible assets other than goodwill (k) BEUNIZEFEE

Intangible assets acquired separately

Intangible assets with finite useful lives that are
acquired separately are recognised initially at cost.
After initial recognition, intangible assets with finite
useful lives are carried at cost less accumulated
amortisation and any accumulated impairment
losses. Amortisation is recognised on a straight-line
basis over their estimated useful lives. The estimated
useful life and amortisation method are reviewed at
the end of each reporting period, with the effect of
any changes in estimate being accounted for on a
prospective basis. Amortisation commences when
the intangible assets are available for use.

Internally generated intangible assets —
research and development costs

Expenditure on research activities is recognised as an
expense in the period in which it is incurred.

An internally-generated intangible asset arising from
development (or from the development phase of an
internal project) is recognised if, and only if, all of the
following have been demonstrated:

o It is technically feasible to complete the product
for it to be sold;

o Adequate resources are available to complete
the development;

o There is an intention to complete and sell the
product;

o The Group is able to sell the product;

o Sale of the product will generate probable
future economic benefits; and

o Expenditure on the project can be measured
reliably.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e M HRRMIEE

For the year ended 31 March 2017 2 =Z—tF=A=1+—HIFE

5.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

(k) Intangible assets other than goodwill

(1)

(continued)

Internally generated intangible assets —
research and development costs (continued)
The amount initially recognised for internally
generated intangible assets is the sum of the
expenditure incurred from the date when the
intangible asset first meets the recognition criteria
listed above. Where no internally-generated intangible
asset can be recognised, development expenditure is
recognised in profit or loss in the period in which it is
incurred.

Subsequent to initial recognition, internally-generated
intangible assets are reported at cost less
accumulated amortisation and accumulated
impairment losses, on the same basis as intangible
assets that are acquired separately.

Derecognition of intangible assets

An intangible asset is derecognised on disposal, or
when no future economic benefits are expected from
use or disposal. Gains and losses arising from
derecognition of an intangible asset, measured as the
difference between the net disposal proceeds and
the carrying amount of the asset, are recognised in
profit or loss when the asset is derecognised.

Impairment of tangible and intangible
assets excluding goodwill

At the end of each reporting period, the Group
reviews the carrying amounts of its tangible and
intangible assets to determine whether there is any
indication that those assets have suffered an
impairment loss. If any such indication exists, the
recoverable amount of the asset is estimated in order
to determine the extent of the impairment loss, if any.
Where it is not possible to estimate the recoverable
amount of an individual asset, the Group estimates
the recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit
to which the asset belongs.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e SRR MR

For the year ended 31 March 2017 ##Z2=—Z—tF=A=1+—HIFE

5.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

U]

Impairment of tangible and intangible
assets excluding goodwill (continued)
Intangible assets with indefinite useful lives and
intangible assets not yet available for use are tested
for impairment at least annually, and whenever there
is an indicator that the asset may be impaired.

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less
cost of disposal and value in use. In assessing value
in use, the estimated future cash flows are
discounted to their present value using a pre-tax
discount rate that reflects current market
assessments of the time value of money and the risks
specific to the asset for which the estimates of future
cash flows have not been adjusted.

If the recoverable amount of an asset (or cash
generating unit) is estimated to be less than its
carrying amount, the carrying amount of the asset
(cash-generating unit) is reduced to its recoverable
amount. An impairment loss is recognised
immediately in profit or loss, unless the relevant asset
is carried at a revalued amount, in which case the
impairment loss is treated as revaluation decrease.

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the
carrying amount of the asset (cash-generating unit) is
increased to the revised estimate of its recoverable
amount, but so that the increased carrying amount
does not exceed the carrying amount that would
have been determined had no impairment loss been
recognised for the asset (cash-generating unit) in
prior years. A reversal of an impairment 10ss is
recognised immediately in profit or loss, unless the
relevant asset is carried at a revalued amount, in
which case the reversal of the impairment l0ss is
treated as a revaluation increase.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e M HRRMIEE

For the year ended 31 March 2017 &2 —ZE—+tE=A=1+—HIFE

5. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

(m) Financial instruments

5. FESHER W
(m) BT A

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised
when a group entity becomes a party to the
contractual provisions of the instrument. Financial
assets and financial liabilities are initially measured at
fair value. Transaction costs that are directly
attributable to the acquisition or issue of financial
assets and financial liabilities (other than financial
assets and financial liabilities at fair value through
profit or loss) are added to or deducted from the fair
value of the financial assets or financial liabilities, as
appropriate, on initial recognition. Transaction costs
that are directly attributable to the acquisition of
financial assets or financial liabilities at fair value
through profit or loss are recognised immediately in
profit or loss.

Financial assets

Financial assets are classified into following specified
categories: financial assets at fair value through profit
or loss, loans and receivables, held-to-maturity
investments and available-for-sale financial assets.
The classification depends on the nature and purpose
of the financial assets and is determined at the time
of initial recognition.

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of
calculating the amortised cost of a debt instrument
and of allocating interest income over the relevant
period. The effective interest rate that exactly
discounts estimated future cash receipts (including all
fees on points paid or received that form an integral
part of the effective interest rate, transaction costs
and other premiums or discounts) through the
expected life of the debt instrument, or, where
appropriate, a shorter period to the net carrying
amount on initial recognition.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e SRR MR

For the year ended 31 March 2017 ##Z2=—Z—tF=A=1+—HIFE

5. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 5. FEEBEm=
(continued)

(m) Financial instruments (continued) (m) BT B #)

Effective interest method (continued)

Income is recognised on an effective interest basis
for debt instruments other than those financial assets
classified as at fair value through profit or loss.

Financial assets at fair value through profit or
loss (“Financial assets at FVTPL")

Financial assets are classified as at FVTPL when the
financial asset is either held for trading or it is
designated as at FVTPL

A financial asset is classified as held for trading if:

o it has been acquired principally for the purpose
of selling in the near future; or

o an initial recognition it is part of a portfolio of
identified financial instruments that the Group
manages together and has a recent actual
pattern of short-term profit-taking; or

o it is a derivative that is not designated and
effective as a hedging instrument.

A financial asset other than a financial asset held for
trading may be designated as at fair value through
profit or loss upon initial recognition if:

o such designation eliminates or significantly
reduces a measurement or recognition
inconsistency that would otherwise arise; or
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e M HRRMIEE

For the year ended 31 March 2017 2 =Z—tF=A=1+—HIFE

5. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

(m) Financial instruments (continued)

5. FEREBE @
(m) BT HR @)

Financial assets at fair value through profit or
loss (“Financial assets at FVTPL”) (continued)
Financial assets are classified as at FVTPL when the
financial asset is either held for trading or it is
designated as at FVTPL (continued)

o the financial asset forms part of a group of
financial assets or financial liabilities or both,
which is managed and its performance is
evaluated on a fair value basis, in accordance
with the Group’s documented risk management
or investment strategy, and information about
the grouping is provided internally on that basis;
or

o it forms part of a contract containing one or
more embedded derivatives, and HKAS 39
permits the entire combined contract (asset or
liability) to be designated as at fair value
through profit or loss.

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are
measured at fair value, with any gains or losses
arising on remeasurement recognised in profit or
loss. The net gain or loss recognised in profit or l0ss
includes any dividend or interest earned on the
financial assets.

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial
assets with fixed or determinable payments that are
not quoted in an active market. Loans and receivables
(including trade and other receivables and cash and
bank balances) are measured at amortised cost using
the effective interest method, less any impairment,
except where the receivables are interest-free loans
without any fixed repayment terms or the effect of
discounting would be immaterial, in which case they
are stated at cost.

Interest income is recognised by applying the
effective interest rate, except for short-term
receivables when the recognition of interest would be
immaterial.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e SRR MR

For the year ended 31 March 2017 ##Z2=—Z—tF=A=1+—HIFE

5. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

(m) Financial instruments (continued)

5. FESHEE W

(m) B#& T A @)

Available-for-sale financial assets (“AFS
financial assets”)

Available-for-sale financial assets are non-derivatives
that are either designated or not classified as financial
assets at fair value through profit or loss, loans and
receivables or held-to-maturity investments.

Equity and debt securities held by the Group that are
classified as AFS financial assets and are traded in an
active market are measured at fair value at the end of
each reporting period. Changes in the carrying
amount of AFS monetary financial assets relating to
interest income calculated using the effective interest
method and dividends on AFS equity investments are
recognised in profit or loss. Other changes in the
carrying amount of AFS financial assets are
recognised in other comprehensive income and
accumulated under the heading of investments
revaluation reserve. When the investment is disposed
of or is determined to be impaired, the cumulative
gain or loss previously accumulated in the
investments revaluation reserve is reclassified to
profit or loss.

Dividends on AFS equity investments are recognised
in profit or loss when the Group’s right to receive the
dividends is established.

AFS equity investments that do not have a quoted
market price in an active market and whose fair value
cannot be reliably measured and derivatives that are
linked to and must be settled by delivery of such
unguoted equity investments are measured at cost
less any identified impairment losses at the end of
each reporting period.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e M HRRMIEE

For the year ended 31 March 2017 2 =Z—tF=A=1+—HIFE

5. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 5. FEEBEm®
(continued)

(m) Financial instruments (continued) (m) BT B ®)

Impairment of financial assets

Financial assets, other than those at FVTPL, are
assessed for indicators of impairment at the end of
each reporting period. Financial assets are considered
to be impaired when there is objective evidence that,
as a result of one or more events that occurred after
the initial recognition of the financial asset, the
estimated future cash flows of the investment have
been affected.

For available-for-sale equity investments, a significant
or prolonged decline in the fair value of the security
below its cost is considered to be objective evidence
of impairment.

For all other financial assets, objective evidence of
impairment could include:

J significant financial difficulty of the issuer or
counterparty; or

o breach of contract, such as default or
delinquency in interest or principal payments,
or

o it becoming probable that the borrower will
enter bankruptcy or financial re-organisation; or

o the disappearance of an active market for that
financial asset because of financial difficulties.

For certain categories of financial asset, such as trade
receivables, are assessed for impairment on an
individual basis. Objective evidence of impairment for
receivables could include the Group's past
experience of collecting payments, an increase in the
number of delayed payments that pass the credit
period, as well as observable changes in national or
local economic conditions that correlate with default
on receivables.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e SRR MR

For the year ended 31 March 2017 ##Z2=—Z—tF=A=1+—HIFE

5. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 5. FEEBEm=
(continued)

(m) Financial instruments (continued) (m) BT B #)

Impairment of financial assets (continued)

For financial assets carried at amortised cost, the
amount of the impairment is the difference between
the asset’s carrying amount and the present value of
estimated future cash flows, discounted at the
financial asset’s original effective interest rate. If, in a
subsequent period, the amount of the impairment
loss decreases and the decrease can be related
objectively to an event occurring after the impairment
was recognised, the previously recognised
impairment loss is reversed through profit or loss to
the extent that the carrying amount of the asset at
the date the impairment is reversed does not exceed
what the amortised cost would have been had the
impairment not been recognised.

For financial assets carried at cost, the amount of
impairment loss is measured as the difference
between the asset’s carrying amount and the present
value of the estimated future cash flows discounted
at the current market rate of return for similar
financial assets. Such impairment loss will not be
reversed in subsequent periods.

The carrying amount of the financial asset is reduced
by the impairment loss directly for all financial assets
with the exception of trade receivables, where the
carrying amount is reduced through the use of an
allowance account. When a trade receivable is
considered uncollectible, it is written off against the
allowance account. Subsequent recoveries of
amounts previously written off are credited against
the allowance account. Changes in the carrying
amount of the allowance account are recognised in
profit or loss.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e M HRRMIEE

For the year ended 31 March 2017 &2 —ZE—+tE=A=1+—HIFE

5. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 5. FEEBEm®
(continued)

(m) Financial instruments (continued) (m) BT B ®)

Impairment of financial assets (continued)
When an available-for-sale financial asset is
considered to be impaired, cumulative gains or losses
previously recognised in other comprehensive
income are reclassified to profit or l0ss in the period
in which the impairment takes place.

In respect of available-for-sale equity investments,
impairment losses previously recognised in profit or
loss are not reversed through profit or loss. Any
increase in fair value subseguent to an impairment
loss is recognised in other comprehensive income
and accumulated under the heading of investments
revaluation reserve. In respect of available-for-sale
debt investments, impairment losses are
subsequently reversed through profit or loss if an
increase in the fair value of the investment can be
objectively related to an event occurring after the
recognition of the impairment loss.

Financial liabilities and equity instruments
Financial liabilities and equity instruments issued by a
group entity are classified according to the substance
of the contractual arrangements entered into and the
definitions of a financial liability and an equity
instrument.

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of
calculating the amortised cost of a financial liability
and of allocating interest expense over the relevant
period. The effective interest rate is the rate that
exactly discounts estimated future cash payments
(including all fees and points paid or received that
form an integral part of the effective interest rate,
transaction costs and other premiums or discounts)
through the expected life of the financial liability, or,
where appropriate, a shorter period, to the net
carrying amount on initial recognition.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e SRR MR

For the year ended 31 March 2017 ##Z2=—Z—tF=A=1+—HIFE

5. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 5. FEEBEm=
(continued)

(m) Financial instruments (continued) (m) BT B #)

Effective interest method (continued)
Interest expense is recognised on an effective
interest basis.

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a
residual interest in the assets of an entity after
deducting all of its liabilities. Equity instruments
issued by a group entity are recorded at the proceeds
received, net of direct issue costs.

Repurchase of the Company’'s own equity
instruments is recognised and deducted directly in
equity. No gain or loss is recognised in profit or loss
on the purchase, sale, issue or cancellation of the
Company’s own equity instruments.

Derecognition

The Group derecognises a financial asset only when
the contractual rights to the cash flows from the
asset expire, or when it transfers the financial asset
and substantially all the risks and rewards of
ownership of the asset to another entity. If the Group
neither transfers nor retains substantially all the risks
and rewards of ownership and continues to control
the transferred asset, the Group continues to
recognise the asset to the extent of its continuing
involvement and recognises an associated liability. If
the Group retains substantially all the risks and
rewards of ownership of a transferred financial asset,
the Group continues to recognise the financial asset
and also recognises a collateralised borrowing for the
proceeds received.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e M HRRMIEE

For the year ended 31 March 2017 &2 —ZE—+tE=A=1+—HIFE

5. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 5. FEEBEm®
(continued)

(m) Financial instruments (continued) (m) BT B ®)

Derecognition (continued)

On derecognition of a financial asset in its entirety,
the difference between the asset’s carrying amount
and the sum of the consideration received and
receivable and the cumulative gain or loss that had
been recognised in other comprehensive income and
accumulated in equity is recognised in profit or loss.

On derecognition of a financial asset other than in its
entirety, the Group allocates the previous carrying
amount of the financial asset between the part it
continues to recognise, and the part it no longer
recognises on the basis of the relative fair values of
those parts on the date of the transfer. The difference
between the carrying amount allocated to the part
that is no longer recognised and the sum of the
consideration received for the part no longer
recognised and any cumulative gain or loss allocated
to it that had been recognised in other
comprehensive income is recognised in profit or l0ss.
A cumulative gain or loss that had been recognised in
other comprehensive income is allocated between
the part that continues to be recognised and the part
that is no longer recognised on the basis of the
relative fair values of those parts.

The Group derecognises financial liabilities when, and
only when, the Group’s obligations are discharged,
cancelled or they expire. The difference between the
carrying amount of the financial liability derecognised
and the consideration paid and payable is recognised
in profit or loss.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e SRR MR

For the year ended 31 March 2017 & Z =%

5.

=~ CE=H=3 HIEE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

(n)

(0)

(p)

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net
realisable value. Cost comprises purchase price and
direct expenses that have been incurred in bringing
the inventories to their present location and
condition. Cost is calculated using the weighted
average method. Net realizable value represents the
estimated selling price in the ordinary course of
business less all estimated expenses to be incurred
in marketing, selling and distribution.

Cash and cash equivalents

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of
cash flows, cash and cash equivalents comprise cash
at bank and on hands, demand deposits with banks
and short term highly liquid investments that are
readily convertible into known amounts of cash which
are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value,
and have a short maturity of generally within three
months when acquired, less bank overdrafts which
are repayable on demand and form an integral part of
the Group’s cash management.

Provisions and contingent liabilities
Provisions are recognised for liabilities of uncertain
timing or amount when the Group has a legal or
constructive obligation arising as a result of past
event, and it is probable that an outflow of economic
benefits will be required to settle the obligation and a
reliable estimate of the amount of the obligation can
be made. Where the time value of money is material,
provisions are stated at the present value of the
expenditure expected to settle the obligation.

All provisions are reviewed at each reporting date
and adjusted to reflect the current best estimate.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e M HRRMIEE

For the year ended 31 March 2017 &= ==

5.

—EF=H="1—HlEEE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

(p)

(@)

Provisions and contingent liabilities
(continued)

Where it is not probable that an outflow of economic
benefits will be required, or the amount cannot be
estimated reliably, the obligation is disclosed as a
contingent liability, unless probability of outflow of
economic benefits is remote. Possible obligations,
whose existence will only be confirmed by
occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more future
uncertain events not wholly within the control of the
Group, are also disclosed as contingent liabilities
unless the probability of outflow of economic benefit
is remote.

Discontinued operations

A discontinued operation is a component of the
Group'’s business, the operations and cash flows of
which can be clearly distinguished from the rest of
the Group and which represents a separate major
line of business or geographical area of operations, or
is part of a single coordinated plan to dispose of a
separate major line of business or geographical area
of operations, or is a subsidiary acquired exclusively
with a view to resale.

Classification as a discontinued operation occurs
upon disposal or when the operation meets the
criteria to be classified as held for sale, if earlier. It
also occurs if the operation is abandoned.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e SRR MR

For the year ended 31 March 2017 ##Z2=—Z—tF=A=1+—HIFE

5. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 5. FEEBEm=

(continued)
(q) Discontinued operations (continued) () SRLEE®E@)
Where an operation is classified as discontinued, a ERDIAD R IEREERET 815
single amount is presented on the face of the NTEEzE-—HENEERERLE
statement of profit or loss, which comprises: 275 :
o the post-tax profit or loss of the discontinued o ORI ERE 7 BB BN
operation; and Bk
o the post-tax gain or loss recognised on the . REEBREKRIFEKR T BEK
measurement to fair value less costs of HEAR 2 AFER D SR AR
disposal, or on the disposal, of the assets or RNEEESEEEN T EMAR R’
disposal group(s) constituting the discontinued R BBk S EIE -
operation.
(r) Related parties () BEEBAL
For the purposes of these consolidated financial M ESEABRETS © TH AT
statements, a person or an entity is considered to be KEENTYIERERAHERERS
related to the Group if as follows: el
() A person, or a close member of that person’s i  TFHATEHRZATZEHREARE
family, is related to the Group if that person: B Aa e
(1) has control or joint control over the (1) BHEXRSEZEHIELHLR
Group; PR
(2) has significant influence over the Group; 2 HAREEBEHEERTEN:
or B4
(3) is a member of key management Q) BEREEIAEETGAF
personnel of the Group or a parent of the ZEBEBASR -
Group.
or %
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e M HRRMIEE

For the year ended 31 March 2017 &= ==

5.

—EF=H="1—HlEEE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

(r) Related parties (continued)
(i) An entity is related to the Group if any of the
following conditions applies:

Q)

The entity and the Group are the
members of the same group (which
means that each parent, subsidiary and
fellow subsidiary is related to the others).

One entity is an associate or joint venture
of another entity (or of an associate or
joint venture of a member of a group of
which the other entity is a member).

Both entities are joint ventures of the
same third party.

One entity is a joint venture of a third
entity and the other entity is an associate
of the third entity.

The entity is a post-employment benefit
plan for the benefit of employees of either
the Group or an entity related to the
Group.

The entity is controlled or jointly
controlled by a person identified in (i).

A person is identified in (i)(1) has
significant influence over the entity or is a
member of the key management
personnel of the entity (or of the parent of
the entity).

The enitiy, or any member of the Group of
which it is a part, provides key
management personnel services to the
Group or to the Group's parent.

5. FEREBE @
() BEEBAL @

(ii)

@ HONG KONG LIFE SCIENCES AND TECHNOLOGIES GROUP LIMITED o &/&4 e RIS B AR A R
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e SRR MR

For the year ended 31 March 2017 & Z =%

=~ CE=H=3 HIEE

5. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)
(r) Related parties (continued)

Close family members of a person are those family

members who may be expected to influence, or be

influenced by, that person in their dealings with the

(s)

entity.

A transaction is considered to be a related party
transaction when there is a transfer of resources or
obligations between related parties.

Share-based payment transactions
(i)  Equity-settled share-based payment
transactions

(1)

Share options granted to employees

For share options granted to employees,
the fair value of services received
determined by reference to the fair value
of share options granted at the grant date
is expensed on a straight-line basis over
the vesting period, with a corresponding
increase in equity (share options reserve).

At the end of each reporting period, the
Group revises its estimates of the number
of options that are expected to ultimately
vest. The effect of the change in estimate,
if any, is recognised in profit or loss with a
corresponding adjustment to share
options reserve.

At the time when the share options are
exercised, the amount previously
recognised in share options reserve will
be transferred to share premium. When
the share options are forfeited after the
vesting date or are still not exercised at
the expiry date, the amount previously
recognised in share options reserve will
be transferred to retained earnings.

(r)

(s)

5. FESHEE W

BREBA L @)
FEANTZERAERRETRET
XPBAREFEZATHZZALTY
BYZERERE o

%iéfffifTﬁ’\ﬁ?ﬁﬁék/\iZFaﬁ?ﬁ%
AR PEEREAMALRS -

URHBAER ZARKS
(i) UEZLAEERURGBER
2R E
(1) FESRHEBKE
?fﬁ%ﬁizﬁ%%%ﬁﬁ
 FRESRH 2 AFE
%%Fﬂxﬂﬂ%ﬂﬂéﬁéﬁﬁ
FHzAFEEE IR
BEMBAEREHE
SRR I s (R AAE ok
) o

REBNEREHRER
HHABHSERFBRERE
g H 2 fhEt e BETES 2
TE(WA)RNERER
ﬂziﬁﬁﬁﬂx%ﬁ%ﬁ{’ﬁﬁﬁaﬂ

B o
=

TTEBRER  BERE
B RERIRERE
BERMIEE o R8I E
B A MR R E
wm BB REITE - BB
ER BRI B FER
BRERERERT
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e TS ERAR MY EE

For the year ended 31 March 2017 2 =Z—tF=A=1+—HIFE

5. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)
(s) Share-based payment transactions
(continued)
(i)  Equity-settled share-based payment
transactions (continued)
(2)  Share options granted to suppliers/
Consultants
For share options granted to suppliers/
consultants in exchange for goods or
services are measured at the fair value of
the goods or serves received. The fair
values of the goods or services are
recognised as expenses immediately,
unless the goods or services qualify for
recognition as assets. Corresponding
adjustments have been made to equity
(share options reserve).

(ii) Cash-settled share-based payment

transactions

For cash-settled share-based payments, the
Group measures the goods or services acquired
and the liability incurred at the fair value of the
liability. At the end of each reporting period, the
liability is remeasured at its fair value until the
liability is settled, with any changes in fair value
recognised in profit or loss.

5. FEREBE@
(s) URBAEBRBZNRKRS (@)

(i)

(ii)

T XEER ARG BEE

ZHHK S ()

@) AR R LR
1
MEMEmIRBMET
HEm, BR 2 BRETD
BAEREREARB 22
FEFE - EmaERB 2
NV EESHERA/AX
HEE m R & B R E
RREENERW - - #m
(BRERE) SIELER

GER

UBEEHEABERURGBEE
ZHHRE

AR AEERARND BE
RzNHRME  AEEREER
FEAEMUWES mERES &
ELAE REREHR - BE
BATESHEEEFERE
RIE - MERAFEZFHANE

S ¢ paay
IR ©
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e SRR MR

For the year ended 31 March 2017 ##Z2=—Z—tF=A=1+—HIFE

5.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

(t) Segment reporting
Operating segments, and the amounts of each
segment item reported in the financial statements,
are identified from the financial information provided
regularly to the Group's most senior executive
management for the purpose of allocating resources
to, and assessing the performance of, the Group'’s
various lines of business and geographical locations.
Individually material operating segments are not
aggregated for financial reporting purposes unless
the segments have similar economic characteristics
and are similar in respect of the nature of products
and services, the nature of production processes, the
type or class of customers, the methods used to
distribute the products or provide the services, and
the nature of the regulatory environment. Operating
segments which are not individually material may be
aggregated if they share a majority of these criteria.

(u) Events after the end of the reporting

period

Events after the end of the reporting period that
provide additional information about the Group’s
position at the end of the reporting period or those
that indicate the going concern assumption is not
appropriate are adjusting events and are reflected in
the consolidated financial statements. Events after
the reporting period that are not adjusting events are
disclosed in the notes to the consolidated financial
statements when material.

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND ESTIMATES

Estimates and judgements are continually evaluated and
are based on historical experience and other factors,
including expectations of future events that are believed to
be reasonable under the circumstances.

Key sources of estimation uncertainty
The following are the key assumptions concerning the
future, and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at
the end of the reporting period that have a significant risk
of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts
of assets and liabilities within the next financial year.

5.

FEFHRE =
(t) 2EHKE

REDBRENDBHRBRMBBERA
2HzEE  HREREIRD B LT
EARSE T RER MR RE M EH
RUTAEBEERSTREREAEZHM
BER B - LMBERERME - FRIF
DEARBRUEERSBUAREER R
REUHEE  EEBENE  FFPER
AR - AED HEmBERREZ
TEREBRBEE TEMAENL &
AMEREARED BTG ETRE -
fERY NEBEAZLENENTE L
MAEBAIRE - AAIETEE -

(u) MEMRREH

REBBEAKEERS BROMIK
MLXARFELLRRALTRE R
SNEMHBEMREREHNBRHRE
LR A MR T R - NER
AEEHNREMREIANBEER -
AEAR B M SRR M FEp BB -

BRI kBB R (R

fAEr A DREEEER AR EABERT
BRBSEEZHEMARE  BREYRKEFZ
EEIMIEDL - W EHER I -

hEt P REE 2 EERIR
UTREBARZEZRR - URRERE
HRENEHH T HMBRFEANEERAR
ZIEREEFERERFHEZ X B/ R 2 EF T
FEE M 2 b ERHR ©
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e M HRRMIEE

For the year ended 31 March 2017 2 =Z—tF=A=1+—HIFE

6.

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND ESTIMATES (continued)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty
(continued)

(i)

Impairment of other intangible assets

The Group determines whether its other intangible
assets not yet available for use is impaired on an
annual basis. An impairment exists when the carrying
amount of the asset or a cash-generating unit in
which the assets belongs exceeds its recoverable
amount, which is the higher of its fair value less costs
of disposal and its value in use. The calculation value
in use requires management to estimate the
expected future cash flows from the asset or cash-
generating unit and choose a suitable discount rate in
order to calculate the present value of those cash
flows. The carrying amount of other intangible assets
as at 31 March 2017 was approximately
HK$12,000,000 (31 March 2016: HK$46,000,000) after
recognising impairment losses to write down the
carrying amounts of the assets to their recoverable
amounts which were determined based on their
value in use as at 31 March 2017.

6.

RS AIERR (&5t
fHEtTEEE 2 EERR (&)

(i)

Bt B EEZHE
REBERFEEDARIEER 2 HAb
BEEAERGSHERE WEEXE
EfMBRcELAEMZEEERNE
AU B 58 (BN A FER L & R A SR
AEEMEZRSH) ' ERRLER
B-stEEREER  EEENARG
HEESBHSEABN 2IHFRRA
RE - WEREE 2R E - LG
BEZESHeRnEzHE  RNERRE
BIELABEE Z REERMRE LR E
W_ZE—+HE=Zf=+—HZERAE
BEETZAKRESERZ  RZT—t
FZA=Z+—H8B HMEFEEZE
EE 4945 12,000,0008 7L (=T — X F
—A=+—8H :46,000,000/%&7C) °
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e SRR MR

For the year ended 31 March 2017 ##Z2=—Z—tF=A=1+—HIFE

6. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS 6. FESHIERREE =)
AND ESTIMATES (continued)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty FEF A EEME 2T ERE (&)

(continued)

(i) Estimated impairment of loan receivables and (i) EWBEZREKREZFEEIE 5
loan interest receivables B
The Group makes impairment allowance for loan REBREEKEZ L EREZT B
receivables and loan interest receivables based on RIEH A EI MG (BRESEE AN
assessments of the recoverability of the loan BRIEEEBT W) HERER
receivables and loan interest receivables, including N FE U B 2R R B R IE B SR E B e
the current creditworthiness and the past collection MEAREBEREREIE SR IEK
history of each debtor. If there is objective evidence B EZED L LI mEEE - q)
that impairment loss on loan receivables and loan RSN EEEEmEEGETAKIR
interest receivables has been incurred, the amount of ehE (MEEHMAEANRKEERE
the loss is measured as the difference between the KVUMBEENREERF = (B
asset’s carrying amount and the present value of SRS ENERF X)) ITIRIRE
estimated future cash flows (excluding future credit ZEMERTE - AP RZERE &
losses that have not been incurred) discounted at the DY ELAEEEEBEBREBEREKX
financial asset’s original effective interest rate (i.e., Y MR EEE S EE - BIA
the effective interest rate computed at initial EETHESAKRESRENIREEE
recognition). The identification of bad and doubtful HEAGE c HEREREA RN ER
debts requires significant judgement on whether the HEr s Bl EEEERNAEESARY
objective evidence for impairment exists and S E N E G E N E R B A TE A
assessing the amount of impairment loss requires BEEELERESRE -

significant estimates when determining the present
value of the expected future cash flows. Where the
actual result is different from the original estimate,
such difference will impact the carrying value of the
loan receivables and loan interest receivables and the
amount of impairment in the year in which such
estimate has been charged.

As at 31 March 2017, the impairment loss for loan R-ZE—+EFE=F=+—80 EKE

receivables and loan interest receivables amount to FZREWNESFEXBREREE A

HK$22,064,000 (31 March 2016: Nil). 22,064,000 T( Z & — R FE = A
=+—H: 8-
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e M HRRMIEE

For the year ended 31 March 2017 2 =Z—tF=A=1+—HIFE

6. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS 6. FREHFERR(LEH
AND ESTIMATES (continued)
Key sources of estimation uncertainty
(continued)
(iii) Depreciation (i) #wE

fHEtTEEE 2 EERR (&)

Items of property, plant and equipment are
depreciated on a straight-line basis over the
estimated useful lives of the assets, after taking into
account the estimated residual value. The Group
reviews the estimated useful lives of the assets
regularly in order to determine the amount of
depreciation expense to be recorded during any
reporting period. The useful lives are based on the
Group's historical experience with similar assets and
taking into account of anticipated technological
changes. The depreciation expense for future periods
is adjusted if there are significant changes from
previous estimates. The carrying amount of property,
plant and equipment as at 31 March 2017 was
approximately HK$10,623,000 (31 March 2016:
HK$11,822,000).

ME BMEEREBEEEUNESEERE
EMFTAEREHTE - Ehs kA
HEGEE - AEBETEHRITEER
ETRIE A EE AR AR
THZWERX - AIERAFHERAE
B EUEE s BT LERET - Wi
RIEET &b - BEMEHBEER
HE AEHRTERZHETRE -
R-_ZE—+F=ZA=+—H 9%
8 K 5% % < BR T E 49 410,623,000
BT(ZE—-—R"RF=ZA=+—H:
11,822,000/ 7T) °
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e SRR MR

For the year ended 31 March 2017 ##Z2=—Z—tF=A=1+—HIFE

7. REVENUE 7. &=
(@  An analysis of the Group’s revenue for the year is as @ AEBFRzZWZESITOT
follows:
2017 2016
—E—+tF S ANCS
HK$'000 HK$'000
FE&xT F&T
continuing operations RS EK
Anti-aging and stem cell NRERBAMEE N
technology businesses
— Provision of anti-aging services — IRENEERS 686 7,923
— Leasing of anti-aging service —HERRERBFE
platform 3,180 -
3,866 7,923
Trading business BEZEH
— Sales of electronic components — HEEFEFIMH 121,873 95,148
Money lending business HMEXE
— Interest income from loan — REEKEFRZF SN
receivables 27,833 19,971
Securities investment business — #E&REEK
— Dividend income — REUWA = 330
153,572 123,372
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e M HRRMIEE

For the year ended 31 March 2017 &2 —ZE—+tE=A=1+—HIFE

7. REVENUE (continued) 7. &
(b)  An analysis of the Group's other income for the year by XEEBFHZHEMWADPTLT :
is as follows:

2016
—ET—RF

HK$'000
THETT

Continuing operations IR E K

Interest income on: MEMWA -

— Bank deposits — RITFR 2 6

— Other loan receivables — Efth UL E K - 366

Forfeiture of agents’ deposit (Note) — S8UkfRIBET 4 (FisT) 3,934 -

Sundry income HEA 20 6
3,956 378

Note: W&

The income arising from forfeiture of agents’ deposit amounting to SBURRIZET S 4 2 A 3,934,000 7T (=T — /< 4F ¢

HK$3,934,000 (2016: Nil) due to the terms of agreements were ) TG RSB B -

expired.

8. (LOSS)/GAIN ON HELD-FOR-TRADING 8. BEBEREZ(ER) ke

INVESTMENTS

An analysis of the Group's (loss)/gain on an held-for-trading AEBFRARBEEEREZ (BB) WED

investments for the year is as follows: Mran T -
2017 2016
—E2—tF —ET—RF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FAT
Sales proceeds SHEFTSFUR 11,205 42,444
Less: Cost of sales B SEE AR (12,681) (38,398)

(Loss)/gain on disposal of held-for-trading HERHEBEEIRE 2
investments (BB|), W (1,476) 4,046

Fair value change on held-for-trading BIEEEREZ AT EEH
investments 1,197 519

(279) 4,565
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e SRR MR

For the year ended 31 March 2017 ##Z2=—Z—tF=A=1+—HIFE

9. LOSS BEFORETAX FROM CONTINUING 9. R HBEEBSEEZBNEE

OPERATIONS 15
Loss before tax from continuing operations of the Group AREBREBEREER 2 GHBIERD N
has been arrived at after charging: BT -
2017 2016
—E—+tF —E—RF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FE T FH&T
Staff costs (including directors’ ETRA(BIEESHE)
emoluments)
— Salaries and other benefits —HekEMBH 10,840 13,009
— Contributions to defined contributions  — )& ZE 4 ZGR MA@ FIEHEI 30
retirement benefits schemes 278 324
11,118 13,333
Auditor’s remuneration Z RN B &
— audit services — Bz 880 800
— non-audit services — EBE R 270 -
Depreciation of property, Y - BERREBITE
plant and equipment 7,043 8,356
Research and development cost [GIREID RN 9,500 -
Impairment of deposit paid for TMUEBE - BB RRE
acquisition of property, plant and ST ZEI & RE
equipment - 15,026
Impairment loss on trade and JE WS AR R e B PR M R TR 2
other receivables EE 1A 22,641 51
Impairment loss on other intangible assets E fb 2 & & (B & 18 34,000 16,000
Legal and professional fees (Note) FEEREXER (M) 3,749 5,819
Operating lease rentals in respect of ERHEMEZEEHERS
rented premises 10,311 9,975
Carrying amount of inventories sold EEFEZREE 118,488 92,420
Note: During the year, there were no legal and professional fees which MiEE: FR UESERTARFRBEMzUEETAEH
included equity-settled share-based payments granted to consultants BUABRORERZNRZEZEREXER(ZF
of the Company (2016: HK$$4,723,000). — /N4 14,723,000 7T)
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e M HRRMIEE

For the year ended 31 March 2017 2 =Z—tF=A=1+—HIFE

10. INCOME TAX EXPENSE 10. FTEIRBX
Income tax expense in the consolidated statement of profit RS iESENEMEEmWER ZEHAS
or loss and other comprehensive income represents: e
2017 2016
—E—+F —T—
HK$'000 HK$'000
FExT FAT
Current tax BVERR 18
Hong Kong B55 = 736
PRC enterprise income tax RIS o -
- 736
Qverprovision in prior year BEFEHBEERE
Hong Kong D = (40)
PRC enterprise income tax A B {R S FTIS R - -
- (40)
Tax reduction AR
Hong Kong BH = (40)
PRC enterprise income tax RS o -
= (40)
Deferred tax (Note 24) EIERTE (MI5E24) = -
- 656
Hong Kong profits tax has been provided at the rate of BEMGBYRF AEE ERBURF AR R
16.5% (2016: 16.5%) on the estimated assessable profits for 16.5% (ZF—734F + 16.5%) st o
the year.
PRC enterprise income tax on the profits arising in the PRC Bl RATISH D IR A SR B T B2 R
has been provided on the estimated assessable profits at 7 A LA R BRI TR SRR R o

the rates prevailing in the PRC.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e SRR MR

For the year ended 31 March 2017 &2 —ZE—+tE=A=+—HIFE

10. INCOME TAX EXPENSE (continued) 10. FRFMFAZ )
The income tax expense for the year can be reconciled to Al EAR T R B IR BR 2 N EE SR B L 0
the loss before tax as follows: T
2017 2016
—E—+tF S ANCS
HK$'000 HK$'000
FE&xT T
Loss before tax from continuing SIB L ES IR TR
operations (67,963) (41,111)
Notional tax on loss before tax, PRICATETIE 2 BET -
calculated at the tax rates applicable to #2488 = EHE (= i R
profits in the jurisdictions concerned FERHETE (14,199) (9,838)
Tax effect of non-taxable income BARMBRA 2 BB E (600) 6"
Tax effect of expenses not deductible AR HIBR A = &R0
and loss not allowable EEzMBTE 12,316 5,874
Tax effect of temporary difference RERE =8B 2%
not recognised T 121 (315)
Tax effect of estimated tax losses RERMEIRIBEEZ
not recognised iss & 2,362 5,123
Tax effect of utilisation of tax losses BRI ARERTIEBE
not previously recognised M2 = 47)
Tax reduction R = (40)
Overprovision in previous year BEFERBERE - (40)
Income tax expense for the year REEFEMAX - 656
There was no income tax expense recognised in other BMEFEHREYNEMEEIN S R E RN E
comprehensive income directly in equity (2016: Nil). HHED(—F—7RFE ) o
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e M HRRMIEE

For the year ended 31 March 2017 2 =Z—tF=A=1+—HIFE

11. DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS 11. BRILERE

On 19 June 2015, the Group disposed of its entire equity
interests in the Wuyan County Wuli Tianxi Hotel Company
Limited (“Tianxi Hotel"), an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary
of the Company to the purchaser for a consideration of
RMB5 million. The disposal was effected in order to
dispense with the need for further capital injection and to
avoid further costs that would be incurred for the lease of
hotel property and the management of the hotel operation.
Details of the disposal were disclosed in the Company’s
announcement dated 15 June 2015. The details of assets
and liabilities disposed of and the calculation of loss on
disposal of Tianxi Hotel at the date of disposal are disclosed
in Note 27. As a result of the disposal, the Group
discontinued all of its hotel business. In accordance with
HKFRS 5 “Non-Current Assets Held for Sale and
Discontinued Operations”, their results were therefore
classified as discontinued operations.

R-Z—RAFNATHAE  AEEUREA
F# 5,000,000 TR B 75 & AR A Z ] &
2EMBARERBEEREBEEARAA
([RBEE]) 22 8BHE - £TTHERRS
EebE— P TEUNREEREYENEE
BEEEE—FELEZKA - BRLEFR
ZHBERARAFAPR T -AF ATH
Rz REeE BHEHEEEMAGBZFHE
UERHERREERBBEEBBZFESN
ERMRE27 K EE - AIETTHE SRR - KK
EERIEEMAEEER - REFBENHK
BELERESHE [FIFLEZHERBEER
BERIEER] EXEDBRERIEER -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e MR M EE

For the year ended 31 March 2017 ##Z2=—Z—tF=A=1+—HIFE

11. DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS (continued)
The result of the hotel business for the year ended 31

March 2016 is as follows:

11. BRIEEE W
BE-—E—AE- A=+ —BIFEREYE
B LEMT -

HK$'000
TAET

Revenue & 1,429
Cost of sales SHE KR (243)
Gross profit E7 1,186
Other income HAw A 13
Administrative and other operating TE R EM SRS

expenses (2,773)
Loss before tax BRBATEE (1,574)
Income tax expense FTiSHiF = -
Loss for the year AEEEIR (1,574)
Loss on disposal of a subsidiary (Note 27) HE—HNEB AR ZEE

(MI5E27) (4,095)

Loss for the year from discontinued AAREEAEBMEREELL

operations attributable to owners of ERZAFEEEHR

the Company (5,669)
Loss per share: FRERE
From discontinued operations REBERIEES
— Basic (HK Cents) — EARGEM (0.14)
— Diluted (HK Cents) — 58 OB 0.14)
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e MR EE

For the year ended 31 March 2017 &2 —ZE—+tE=A=1+—HIFE

11. DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS (continued) 11. B2 1 % )

Loss before tax from discontinued operations of the Group

AEBERE DR IEEBFZBRBATERE R

has been arrived at after charging:

THIEIA

2016
NEF

—F—

HK$'000
T

Staff costs (including directors’ BIRAK (BIEEEHE)
emoluments)
— Salaries and allowances — Fre KRR 1,353
— Contributions to defined contributions — [FIE SRR KA R B 5
retirement benefits schemes -
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment M - BB REETE 506
Carrying amount of inventories sold EERFECZEREE 243

Cash flows generated from discontinued

operations of the Group

FEEERIERBEEZRESRE

2016
—E—N

W
HK$'000
THAT

Operating activities e (487)

Investing activities WEEE (21)

Financing activities BB E -

Net cash outflows R m F5E (508)
12. DIVIDEND 12. R

No dividend was paid, declared or proposed during the BE - Z—+tF=-A=+—BIFEITEK

year ended 31 March 2017, nor has any dividend been - EIRSEBREMRE - B HIRNAK

proposed since the end of the reporting period (2016: Nil).

TMERBREMRE(ZT—RF  E\)-
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e SRR MR

For the year ended 31 March 2017 &2 —ZE—+tE=A=+—HIFE

13. LOSS PER SHARE 13. BRREIE
(@) Basic loss per share (a) EREALREIE
The calculation of the basic loss per share is based SIREAREGEB RS 5 SuEstE

on the following data:

2017 2016
—E—t5F S ANCS
HK$'000 HK$'000
F&xT T 7T

Loss for the year attributable to RN EHER AL

owners of the Company KEEEIE

— from continuing operations — RABELEET (64,708) (36,498)
— from discontinued operations — REDRILET = (5,669)

— from continuing and discontinued — 3 B 5 L& &
operations B IEET (64,708) (42,167)

Weighted average number

of ordinary shares Z3E B R S 19 B
Issued ordinary shares at 1 April RIOA—BzEB 8 TEmk 4,740,332,805  3,950,332,805
Effect of ordinary shares issued BEETEERZZE 220,782,027 187,786,885

4,961,114,832 4,138,119,690

(b) Diluted loss per share (b) EREEERE
For the year ended 31 March 2017, the Company did REBEE-_Z—+HF=A=+—HI#F
not have any potential ordinary shares. For the year B AQARTEEMEEL AR - P
ended 31 March 2016, the Company did not have any HE-Z—XR"F=A=t+—HIFE "
dilutive potential ordinary shares as the exercise price REBRETZIRFE 2 ANAFE
of the Company’s share options granted under Share BREZITEESRFELTE - AAa
Option Scheme was higher than the average market WETMABEESWEZ TR -
price. The computation of diluted loss per share did HE GRS EERYERRITHRE
not assume the exercise of those share options. ERE HE_S—+ER T —X
Diluted loss per share was the same as the basic loss FZA=Z+—HLEFE SRBEES
per share for the years ended 31 March 2017 and BEFR RN EIEER -
2016.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e TS ERAR MY EE

For the year ended 31 March 2017 2 =Z—tF=A=1+—HIFE

14. SEGMENT INFORMATION

The Group's operating segment information is based on the
internal reports that are regularly reviewed by the chief
operating decision maker, being the Chief Executive Officer
of the Company (“CEQ"), which is the Group's chief
operation decision maker (“CODM") for the purpose of
allocating resources to, assessing the performance of, the
Group’s various lines of business and geographical
locations.

The Group’s operating and reportable segments under
HKFRS 8 are as follows:

(i) Anti-aging and stem Provision of anti-aging

cell technology services; distribution of

businesses biomedical and life science
products; health check and
beauty service; and leasing
of anti-aging service platform
Trading of electronic
components and metals
Provision of loan financing

(i) Trading business

(i) Money lending

business

(iv) Securities investment — Trading and investment of
business securities

(v) Hotel operation — Operation of hotel

business (discontinued
in the year ended 31
March 2016)

14. SEEFH

AEBZRENBERDIREADRE R
B ZEREHEBRLKERRABIARTA
TR (TTHAR]) ERER - KER
SETELEREATEIEREREAD D
FLE R T AR B & 1R 555 MO IR L B A K =¥
RERR -

RIBEBUBREENESH  AEEBZLK
LNATREDRLT

() mEEkBAE — RHIRZRE:
Rk DIEEMBEERE
mRERER B8R

REBRIRY - MAE

ENMRERBFE
iy EHEH — BEEfHMHLEE
B
(i) MERD — REERBERS

(V) BHREEE — BERREES

v) BIEZEXED — KEBE
(REE=ZF
—~F=A
—+—HILF
EEIEE)
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e SRR MR

For the year ended 31 March 2017 &2 —ZE—+tE=A=+—HIFE

14. SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 14. EEE W

No operating segments identified by the CEO have been
aggregated in arriving at the reportable segments of the
Group.

The accounting policies of the reportable segments are the
same as the Group's accounting policies described in Note
5. For the purposes of resources allocation and
performance assessment, the CEO monitors the results,
assets and liabilities to each reportable segments on the
following bases:

Segment results represent the profit/(loss) from each
segment including items disclosed in other segment
information below, net of administrative and other
operating expenses directly attributable to each segment
without allocation of corporate income and expenses,
impairment loss on other intangible assets, impairment of
deposit paid for property, plant and equipment, impairment
loss on loan receivables and loan interest receivables and
loss on disposal of a subsidiary.

Segment assets include all tangible assets, intangible
assets and current assets with the exception of
intercompany receivables and other corporate assets.

Segment liabilities include trade and other payables
managed directly by the segments with the exception of
intercompany payables and other corporate liabilities.

RERAEE 2 AIHREDER - WES O
BITHRAARBR 2 KENHE -

A Bz et BOREMES 2 A%k
@ﬁﬂ(%ﬂﬁlﬂ ° RIEBEIRD B MR I
il TTHAEIRA T ERERZ T RED R
ZEE BERBE:

DEEERS OB ZRT,(EE) - BER
TXHEMDBEERBER2EE - IBREHE
EEELTERIREGMLERS  mADESE
EWARAY  HitvEFEERBEERE - 3
ME - BEMREZNZETSRE  BRE

K% FE W B R BB (B B 18 M B — R B
EEZ%E°

SEAEREFABVAE BVAERR
BEE  HTREATMRKIOR R
mAE -

“*EEF’F]% DHEEREEZENERRALE

IR - T BRE DR RN RIERE
fﬂz%l%f,a
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e M HRRMIEE

For the year ended 31 March 2017 &2 —ZE—+tE=A=1+—HIFE

14. SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 14. PEIE @)
Information regarding the above segments is reported B LBz ERZ2Y0T :
below:
(@) Segment revenue and results (@) PEWRERERE
Discontinued
Continuing operations operations
RESEER BALER
Anti-aging
& stem cell Money Securities Inter- Hotel
technology Trading lending  investment Segment operation
husinesses business husiness business  elimination Sub-total business
RRER
i) &5 bili3
S B35 HEER REEE  SEEUH gt EELR ]
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS$'000
TEr TEn R oo i Thn TEn Tn
Revenue W
External customers HREF 3,866 121,873 27,833 - - 153,572 - 153,572
Inter-segment HEE = = = = = = = =
Total a8 3,866 121,873 27,833 - - 153,572 - 153,572
Segments restis HRzE (22,574) (839) 26,499 (279) - 2,807 - 2,807

Impairment loss on loan receivables M ERREREHAIEHE

and loan interest receivables HESE 22,064 - 22,064
Impaiment loss on other intanglole 2t EFEEFERSE

assets (34,000) - (34,000)
Unallocated corporate income FOBEEEMA - - -
Unallocated corporate expenses FOBEERT (14,706) - (14,706)
Loss before tax BipEE (67,963) = (67,963)
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e SRR MR

For the year ended 31 March 2017 ##Z2=—Z—tF=A=1+—HIFE

14. SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 14. 2EZEH @
(@) Segment revenue and results (continued) (a) DHWERESE @)

Discontinued
Continuing ope

Antiaging

cel Money Securities Inter-
Trading lending investment Segment operation
business Dusiness husiness elimination Sub-total Dusiness

8555 B oEEHE Bt
HK$'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HK$'000

T TET T T TR

Revenue ]
External customers IREF 7923 95,148 19971 330 - 123312 1429 124,801
Inter-segment HER - - - - - - - -
Total &8 7923 95,148 19971 30 - 123372 1429 124,801
Segments restits LiES (15,630) (3,060) 18779 4,89 - 4984 (1574) 3410

Impairment of deposit paid for

acquisition of property, LEIERE

plant and equipment (15,026) - (15,026)
Impairment loss on other intangble At EVAERESE

assets (16,000 - (16,000
Unallocated corporate income AOREEHA 36 - 36
Unallocated corporate expenses FOBEERT (15,439) - (15,435)
L0ss on disposal of a subsidiary HE-RHBAFZER - 4,099) (4,099)
Loss before tax RHRAER 41,111) (5669) (46,780)
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e MR EE

For the year ended 31 March 2017 2 =Z—tF=A=1+—HIFE

14. SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 14. 9B FEH @)
(b) Segment assets and liabilities (b) PEEERAERE

Discontinued

Continuing operations operations

BELEEY BRLER

Anti-aging

& stem cell Money Securities Hotel

technology Trading lending  investment operation

businesses business business business Sub-total business

hEER

Bk 2% BE
BER g5%K HEEH RE%H it EELY fam
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TER TEn TER TEx TER FhL T
Segment assets PBEE 26,022 39,117 225,872 3,220 294,231 = 294,231
Unallocated assets ADEEE 116,424 - 116,424
Consolidated assets GREE 410,655
Segments liabilities PR 37,096 718 917 - 38,731 - 38,731
Unallocated liabilties FABAR 3,634 - 3,634
Consolidated liabilities GREE 42,365

Discontinued
Continuing operations operations
it
Anti-aging
& stem cell Money Securities
technology Trading lending investment operation

businesses business business husiness Sub-total business
ﬁ ==

HEEE I\t

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'00! HK$'000

AT T BT TAL TAL

Segment assets PREE 47,956 42539 195,473 12,640 298,608 - 298,608
Unallocated assets FHBAE 63,034 - 63,034
Consolidated assets GARBE 361,642
Segments liabilities HHEERE 41,35 834 50 - 42,23 - 42,23%
Unallocated liabilities FOEEE 811 - 811
Consolidated liabilities HAAE 43,047
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e SRR MR

For the year ended 31 March 2017 ##Z2=—Z—tF=A=1+—HIFE

14. SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued)

(c) Other segment information

14. D EEHE @)
(c) HivoBEER

Discontinued
Continuing operations operations
BELEEY BRIEHE
Anti-aging
& stem cell Money Securities Hotel
technology Trading lending investment operation
businesses business business business Sub-total business
RARER
B &% BE
BER EES S REER REEH gt SEEY
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
T ThRL THT T ThL THT
Interest income* FIS A - 2 - - 2 - 2
Interest expenses FERT = = = = = = -
Depreciation and FEREHE
amortisation 5,048 1,576 = = 6,624 = 6,624
Research and development cost” #F%p; 2" 9,500 - - - 9,500 - 9,500
Impairment oss on other HpmyEERERR
intangible assets" 34,000 - - - 34,000 - 34,000
Impairment of loan receivables &R BB E Z
and loan interest receivables”  F|EFERE" - - 22,641 - 22,641 - 22,641
Additions to non-current WEEERERRY
segment assets during PREE
the year 19 - - - 19 - 19
* Interest income excluded in revenue * NEIEERE 2 FLEHA
B Excluded in segment results but was regularly provided to . T ADHEES  ERTHMEBLERE
CODM N3

Anti-aging
&stem cell
technology

Continuing operations

Money Securities
Trading lending investment
business business husiness

operation

Sub-total business

; BE
BARH ES It Ex
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'00 HKS'000
TAL 87 7T B

Interest income* FISMA - 6 - - 6 - 6
Interest expenses FlBRX - - - - - - -
Depreciation and amortisation 7% R 5,142 2,799 - - 7941 506 8,447
Impairment of other HinEmaEnE
intangible assets" 16,000 - - - 16,000 - 16,000
Impairment of deposit paid for D% - BERREX
acquisition of property, ZilEHE"
plant and equipment” - 15,026 - - 15,026 - 15,026
Aditions to non-current RAFEREETE
segment assets during PEEE
the year 5 50 - - 5 2 7
* Interest income excluded in revenue * TEIEE W 2 FILEMA
B Excluded in segment results but are regularly provided to ) Pt ADEESE  BEETHMEZEERE
CODM AR
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e M HRRMIEE

For the year ended 31 March 2017 2 =Z—tF=A=1+—HIFE

14. SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued)
(d) Geographical information

14. P EEHE @)
(d) HEZER

The following table sets out information about the
geographical location of (i) the Group's revenue from
external customers and (ii) the Group's property,
plant and equipment and intangible assets (“specified
non-current assets”). The geographical location of
customers is based on the location at which the
services were provided or to which the goods were
delivered. The geographical location of the specified
non-current assets is based on the physical location
of the asset, in the case of property, plant and
equipment and the location of the operation to which
they are allocated, in the case of intangible assets.

TRFIBBOAKEEAIREF 2
W R (N ANEBEYE - BB RRER
BREE(HEFRBDEE] EL
BUEZER BPZMBEMETIE
REEREARXNEMAELE -
EHRBEEIHBUEDNEREE
ERMEME (Y% BELREN
) RESREZEEMNE(RELE
EMmE) e

Revenue from Specified

external non-current

customers assets

IREEZWNE BEFRRBDEE

HK$'000 HK$'000

TET TEx

Hong Kong 55 28,034 14,522
PRC =) 125,538 8,101
153,572 22,623

Revenue from
external
customers

Specified
non-current
assets
FEFEMBEE
HK$'000

TAT

SNRE 2 s
HK$'000
FH

Hong Kong i 25,655 53,349
PRC o 99,146 4,473
124,801 57,822
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e MR M EE

For the year ended 31 March 2017 ##Z2=—Z—tF=A=1+—HIFE

14. SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued)

(e) Information about major customers
Revenue from transactions with external customers
amounting to 10% or more of the Group’s revenue
come from trading business. The analysis is as

14. 2EEH @
(e) FBEEFZEHR
(575 S B U 25 10% Sk A E 2 SR 3 B
TS TWHREBSER ST -

follows:
Revenue
W=
2017 2016
—E2—tF —E—REF
HK$'000 HK$'000
THET TFETT
Customer A =25 35,916 95,148
Customer B ZFEB 85,957 -
121,873 95,148
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e M HRRMIEE

For the year ended 31 March 2017 2 =Z—tF=A=1+—HIFE

15. DIRECTORS’ AND FIVE HIGHEST PAID 15. EEREEEEHEECHE

EMPLOYEES’ EMOLUMENTS

(i) Directors’ emoluments (i) E=f2e
The emoluments paid or payable to each of the ENRENEAATES (BIEAAT
Company’s directors, including the Chief Executive TERER) ZMEmT

Officer of the Company, are as follows:

2017 —E—tE
Discretionary
bonus and
performance Contributions
Salaries related to retirement
and other incentive benefits
Fees benefits payments schemes
Ll
Fek TARRE Bk
e HitER  HERBAR  @AGEMAR s
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TR TR T TR THn
Executive Directors HTES
Mr. David Lin Kao Kun HRBEE 504 - - - 504
Mr. Lu Zhigiang ESdEE 504 19 - 12 535
Mr. Chui Kwong Kau EigE - 640 - 18 658
Mr. Jiang Hongaing FHERE 504 - - > 504
Ms. Li Mei EXis) o 600 - - - 600

Non-executive Director FHTES
Ms. Lam Kuo wiat 1,000 - - - 1,000

Independent Non-executive B FHTES

Directors
Mr. Hung Yat Ming SHEEE 105 - - - 105
Mr. Chan Yun Hing TREE st 105 - - - 105
Mr. Gui Qiangfang ERFEE 105 - - - 105

3,427 659 = 30 4,116
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e SRR MR

For the year ended 31 March 2017 ##Z2=—Z—tF=A=1+—HIFE

15. DIRECTORS’ AND FIVE HIGHEST PAID 15. EERIBEEFEAZEHE

EMPLOYEES’ EMOLUMENTS (continued) (#)
(i) Directors’ emoluments (continued) (i) E=M< @
2016 —T—RE

Fees

ik
HK§'000
7

and other

Discretionary

bonus and

performance

Salaries related

incentive
bengfits

A fhfah
HK$'000
THT AL

HKS'000

Contributions
to retirement
henefits
schemes

RIKER)
B
HK$'000
i

HK$'000
AR

Executive Directors HITES
Mr. David Lin Kao Kun =yibs 504 - - _ 504
M. Lu Zhigiang EFuis 504 5 - 10 519
Mr. Chuf kwong Kau BRIREE - 640 - 18 658
Mr. Jiang Hongging EHERE 504 - - - 504
Ms. Li Mei (Note a) Figkt(Wita) 179 - - - 179
Ms. Ding Xiaomei (Note b) T/MEZ L (HiEb) 462 - - - 462
Non-executive Director FHTES
Ms. Lam Kuo wx&T 1,000 - - - 1000
Independent Non-executive By 3i#TES

Directors
Mr. Hung Yat Ming SRR LA 100 - _ _ 100
Mr. Chan Yun Hing TS 100 - - _ 100
Mr. Gui Qlangfang ERFRE 100 - - - 100
Mr. Chi Chi Hung, Kenneth ZHIEL A (MsEc)

(Note ¢) 3 - - - 35

3,488 645 - 28 4,161

Note a: Appointed on 14 December 2015.
Note b:Resigned on 10 March 2016.
Note c:Retired on 7 August 2015.

fizta M=% —
MizEb A =T —
MizEc - R-ZT—
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e M HRRMIEE

For the year ended 31 March 2017 2 =Z—tF=A=1+—HIFE

15. DIRECTORS’ AND FIVE HIGHEST PAID 15. EEREEEEHEECHE

EMPLOYEES’ EMOLUMENTS (continued) (#&)

(i) Directors’ emoluments (continued) (i) EEM< @
During the year, no emoluments were paid by the RAREERN  NEBVEST (NS T
Group to any of the directors as an inducement to FREZESEAMANEB B S|/
join or upon joining the Group or as compensation for EMAREFB 2 BLHIERBBFE
the loss of office (2016: Nil). (ZE—RF:8\E)-
There was no emoluments waived by any directors RARFEERNTEIREERENS (=
during the year (2016 Nil). E—RFE)
The directors consider that they are the only key EERE KEAAEBRE2HTEE
management personnel of the Group and details for BAE BRAREMNES 22BN L
their emoluments have been set out above. XEF o
Fees, salaries and other benefits paid to or for the TR TRIFNTES 2D - F
executive and non-executive directors are generally RAEMEN —BRIERZEATEER
emoluments paid or receivable in respect of those NAILENB AT ZEEIRHEEM
persons’ other services in connection with the REME T FZEATHZEALTE
management of the affairs of the Company and its Wz & o
subsidiaries.

(ii) Five highest paid employees (il TEBEHEE
During the year, the five highest paid individuals REAFEERN hEGEmFATEE=
included 3 (2016: 2) directors, details of whose Z(—EBE—XRE WMB)EEZ 5@F
emoluments are set out above. The emoluments of EfeTHBER EXHS - B T
the remaining non-director highest paid individuals SEEEEAT e WT

are as follows:

2017 2016

—E—+tF NS

HK$'000 HK$'000

THET T

Salaries and other benefits Hae MEMETR] 1,243 2,668
Contributions to retirement benefits 3R (ki@ FI|5+ 2 {2k

schemes 36 45

Discretionary and performance related 1% & 2% 25 48 B8 228 < 3%

incentive payments - -
Inducement to join or upon joining N AZRE B SR 5| KR E

the Group MAREE 2 85 = -
Compensation for loss of office BEBR (R - -

1,279 2,713
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e SRR MR

For the year ended 31 March 2017 ##Z2=—Z—tF=A=1+—HIFE

15. DIRECTORS’ AND FIVE HIGHEST PAID 15. EERIBEEFERCHE

EMPLOYEES’ EMOLUMENTS (continued) (#8)

(ii) Five highest paid employees (continued) (i) ERESEEE @)
Emoluments of the non-director highest paid SEHIEFEATZBMEN T T5E
individual(s) fell within the following bands: :

Number of individual(s)

A

2017 2016

=g—t&E T AT

HK$Nil to HK$1,000,000 =8 712 1,000,00078 7T 2 2
HK$1,000,001 to HK$1,500,000 1,000,001 /& 7L % 1,500,000 7 7T - 1
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e TS ERAR MY EE

For the year ended 31 March 2017 2 =Z—tF=A=1+—HIFE

16. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Leasehold
improvements

16. V¥ - BEREE

Furniture,
fixtures and Motor
equipment vehicles

Construction
in progress Total

XK
HK$'000
TAT

il %8
ey
HK$'000
TR

RE
HK$ 000
FHL

ERIR o
HK$'000 HK$'000
TET BT

Cost: R
A1 April 2015 RZE-RENA-H 21,263 13,149 13,775 3,169 51,356
Additions HRE - 77 - - 77
Disposal it (3,082) (219 - - (3301)
Disposal of a subsiciary HE-RHEAR (7.963) (1516) (300) (3,183) (12,962
Exchange adjustments AR (212) 83 (#16) 14 (697)
At 31 March 2016 and RZE-AEZA=+-Bk
1 April 2016 - ENA-A 10,006 11,408 13,059 - 34473
Additions HhE - 6,078 - - 6,078
Bxchange acjustments ERAE (102 (108) (493) - (703)
At 31 March 2017 WZE—+E=ZA=T-H 9,904 173718 12,566 - 39,848
Accumulated amortisation, it TERAE
depreciation and
impairment:
At T April 2015 R-Z-HFNA-H 9,155 5,082 4,318 - 19,155
Charge for the year TEEER 4,251 1870 2741 - 8862
Eliminated on disposals HERHE (3082) (219) - - (3301)
Disposal of a subsidiary mE-FEREAR (1,242) (362 (66) - (1,670
Fxchange adjustments A% (187) (63) (145) - (395)
At 31 March 2016 and RZE-RE=A=1-Ak
at 1 April 2016 RZE-~EMA-H 889 6,908 6,848 - 22,651
Charge for the year rEHER 404 4103 253 - 7,043
Exchange adjustments AT (101) (87) (281) - (469)
At 31 March 2017 RZE-tF=A=1-8 9,198 10,924 9,103 - 29,225
Net carrying amount; REFE:
At 31 March 2017 RZE-tF=A=1-H 706 6,454 3,463 - 10,623
At 31 March 2016 R-E-R~E=ZA=+-H 1,1M 4,500 6211 - 11,822

The gross carrying amount of the Group’s property, plant
and equipment includes an amount of HK$1,558,000 (2016:
HK$1,558,000) in respect of fully depreciated leasehold
improvements that is still in use.

AEEYE  BELARGBERAEREZE
P& = £ A3 2 TH & % £ 1,558,00058 7T
ZZF—7<4F ¢ 1,558,000%7T) °
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e MR M EE

For the year ended 31 March 2017 &2 —ZE—+tE=A=+—HIFE

17. OTHER INTANGIBLE ASSETS 17. HthEEFE FE

Exclusive
Licence A
BXR

A REA
HK$'000
FHT

Exclusive EXxclusive
Licence B Licence C
R BX
HFA#EB  ErAliEC

Total

et

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

TET TET

TET

Cost: B
At 1 April 2015, at 31 March RN-_E—RFHA—H -
2016, at 1 April 2016 and R_E—RFE=ZA=1+—8 "
at 31 March 2017 RZZE—REFNA-BR
RNZE—tF=A=1+—H 12,000 32,000 18,000 62,000
Accumulated amortisation SETHHIHROREEE -
and impairment losses:
At 1 April 2015 RZE—RFWNA—AH - - - -
Impairment loss recognised AR E W RRERE
for the year - 7,000 9,000 16,000
At 31 March 2016 and at RZE—RF=ZA=+—H8HK
1 April 2016 RZZE—RNFMNA—AH - 7,000 9,000 16,000
Impairment loss recognised A [E AR E B
for the year - 25,000 9,000 34,000
At 31 March 2017 RZE—+F=A=1+—H - 32,000 18,000 50,000
Net carrying amount EmFE
At 31 March 2017 RZE—+F=A=+—H 12,000 - - 12,000
At 31 March 2016 RZE—R"F=ZA=1+—H 12,000 25,000 9,000 46,000
The other intangible assets represent 3 exclusive licences EMEEEERFBEARZZE —=F MM
on 3 patents granted by the holders to a subsidiary BB A TR Y S IEEHN Y = (BRI o
acquired in the year 2013.
Amortisation will be recognised on a straight-line basis over B SIR BRI R TR ENE
the remaining useful lives of the exclusive licences. The BORHER - BRAARERENAIREREE
exclusive licences have not yet been in the location and RN L 2 B G - At - REE
condition necessary for them to be capable of operating in WREREH (2T —RF &) o

the manner intended by management. Hence, no
amortisation is recognised for the year (2016: Nil).
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e M HRRMIEE

For the year ended 31 March 2017 2 =Z—tF=A=1+—HIFE

17. OTHER INTANGIBLE ASSETS (continued) 17. EER FE @)

Details of the useful lives of the exclusive licences are as
follows:

Particulars of exclusive licences

BRATEFF

BRI A ERFEHFTOT

Expiry date of
exclusive licence
granted to subsidiary
BRTHBARZ
BRITAEESA

Method for constructing pancreatic stem cell line from human insulin and

differentiating to insulin secretion cell (“Exclusive Licence A”)

25 November 2031

—RBREREABRENRRHARZNERZRARSRDWARDI (I

(MBHFFAIEAD

—E=—%F+—HA=+HH

Injectable temperature sensitive gel used for filling and repairing damaged

tissues (“Exclusive Licence B")

—RARNARREEXBEMNADIINRBURE (BRFFAI#B])

Injection gel containing submicron hyaluronic acid microspheres and

preparation method (“Exclusive Licence C”)

— 2B R KRB P E BRI R 5 R B B A (BRI C)

Impairment assessment for the year ended
31 March 2017

During the year, the management of the Group prepared
their development plans for three exclusive licences,
including the priority of development activities. It was
determined that Exclusive Licence A shall be prioritised
ahead of the others, after taking into account the resources
available to the Group for development activities. The
impairment assessment of Exclusive Licence A was
performed as part of the impairment assessment of the
cash-generating unit ("CGU") of pancreatic stem cell service
line to which it belongs as management of the Group have
prepared detailed development plans and begun the
process of preparing detailed production plans for the
pancreatic stem cell service line during the current financial
year. The principal assets of the CGU as at 31 March 2017
comprised the Exclusive Licence A and equipments
purchased for use in the development and future
production processes. The recoverable amount of the CGU
was determined by the directors of the Company based on
value in use calculation with reference to a professional
valuation report issued by Roma Appraisal Limited. That
calculation was determined based on the financial budgets
approved by the directors of the Company covering a
5-year period and a pre-tax discount rate of 27.33%. The
recoverable amount of the CGU is based on certain key
assumptions, including 5-year average annual growth rate
of 10% and projected gross profit margin of 72.00%.

10 June 2031

—E=—FXA+H

10 June 2031

—E=—FXA+H
Z2E-+F=A=+—HLHE

Bz BEE

RAFEE - AEBEEEESET =0BRA
BERE BREREH BT -
REBAKEAAREREHZIERE B
REBRIFAIEABENEMFAIHE - AR
AEEEEECRN B AT RF EREAADE
FR T 830 59 6 L IR IR 4 40 2 5 AR 7% 4R 61l 5 4
HERE - BCBKFFAIEAZRERNE 2/
BERHETIEREFTEBR AR = A I R IR 2 3R
TELBM(ReEELEM])RENMZ—
WOET - R_F—tF=A=+—H &
CELBEU TREERRBRIAEAR
BARZBRMAREEBERGEZRME - R
TELABUZAIRESETAARRESE
WEREEAEYL2ZEFERFEARD
AIFTTIREREERSET - R HEHER
ARRBEFMERERFR M HRE
27 BB AR ERETE - REELEFEM 27
WEIEEERE TEERE  BE10%0F
FHIE R K2 72.00% FERIERN X
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e SRR MR

For the year ended 31 March 2017 ##Z2=—Z—tF=A=1+—HIFE

17. OTHER INTANGIBLE ASSETS (continued) 17. EERFE @)

Impairment assessment for the year ended
31 March 2017 (continued)

At the end of the reporting period, the recoverable amount
of the CGU exceeds its carrying amount and no impairment
loss is considered necessary.

During the year, Exclusive Licence B and Exclusive Licence
C were assessed for impairment individually as there were
no other assets belonging to the service lines to which they
belong. The recoverable amounts of the Exclusive Licence
B and Exclusive Licence C were determined by the directors
of the Company based on value in use calculation with
reference to a professional valuation report issued by Roma
Appraisal Limited. That calculation was determined based
on the financial budgets approved by the directors of the
Company covering a 5-year period and a pre-tax discount
rate of 33.47%. The Group adopted value in use as the
recoverable amount of the Exclusive Licence B and
Exclusive Licence C as the development plans and
schedules of the Group for the three licences were
prepared during the year.

At the end of the reporting period, the recoverable amount
of Exclusive Licence B and Exclusive Licence C were nil
after taking into account the planned delays in the
development and production schedules related to these
two licences arising from the management’s decision to
prioritise resources and focus on development of
pancreatic stem cell business. Accordingly, full impairment
loss of HK$25,000,000 and HK$9,000,000 was recognised
for Exclusive Licence B and Exclusive Licence C respectively
during the year.

BE-_—+t&=A=+—HL*E
E 2 REF M @)

PSR AR + B BE A B 2 AT U [E] § RE R
HEBREE - BERRRERSE -

RAFE  ARTEREBEEBREKTA
B BRI ECHBIRY - BHRTA#E
BRIBRFFAIECE @RETTRERE - B
KAt Al B R BT EC 2 A KBS R T)
HARREZENEREEAEL2EES
KRG ARARMTBERHERSE
E o ZatEDNERARRERAAERER
FH 2 TR E X 33.47% BRI AL IR K ETE -
AEBRBEREEER/BRIFAIEBLE
RefARCZANEEE  RARAKELD
RAFEHIFT R =T A 2 B R AT 8] KB
A% °

RBEHRR - ZEINEEBHERERKF
LREEHZMN TR 2 AR ER L EE
RRIR TSR LT IRRRIRHARE
1% HOBRET AT HEB KB KT A C 2 AT
EEEAT - At RAFEEDRIFRER
AR EB R BRAFAECHER ZERERE R
25,000,000 7t %2 9,000,000 % 7T °
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e M HRRMIEE

For the year ended 31 March 2017 &2 —ZE—+tE=A=1+—HIFE

17.

OTHER INTANGIBLE ASSETS (continued)
Impairment assessment for the year ended
31 March 2016

As at 31 March 2016, the directors of the Company
conducted an impairment assessment review on the other
intangible assets for purposes of annual impairment
testing. The recoverable amounts of each exclusive licence
at the end of the reporting period have been determined by
the directors of the Company on the basis of a fair value
less costs of disposal calculation using excess earning
method under income-based approach with reference to a
professional valuation report issued by Roma Appraisal
Limited. The recoverable amounts are based on certain key
assumptions, including projected selling price, sale volume,
and selling and administrative cost. The fair value less costs
of disposal calculation used present value of profits
attributable to other intangible assets after deducting the
proportion of profits that are attributable to other
contributory assets and at a post-tax discount rate of
22.78%. The profit forecast was based on the latest
estimation approved by the Group’s management covering
useful lives of the exclusive licences. The Group measured
the fair value less costs of disposal of the other intangible
assets assuming their highest and best use by market
participants.

At the end of the reporting period, the recoverable amount
of the Exclusive Licence A exceeded its carrying amount
and no impairment loss is considered necessary. The
recoverable amounts of the Exclusive Licence B and the
Exclusive Licence C were lower than their carrying
amounts, and accordingly impairment losses of
approximately HK$7,000,000 and HK$9,000,000 was
recognised for Exclusive Licence B and the Exclusive
Licence C respectively during the year. It was mainly due to
the (i) increase in discount rate and (ii) deferral of
production plan.

The fair value less costs of disposal calculation of other
intangible assets was classified as Level 3 measurement
under fair value hierarchy.

17. HthIEBE&E ()

BE-_Z-—XE=A=1+—HLE
E Z B EF

RZE—RNF=ZA=+—H XRARESE
FERE RS Mt E & EETRERE
S5 o BRRFTURNMES R A KEE
BHRAQNREZESARAEZBINEFEZ R
FEREERAGTE - WREES RS
BERAGFTIEEEGHERS - TKREISEE
ERETIERR  BEBETEE  HEN
MHE RITHRAA o 2 FER HERANGTE
FREMEREER(SEMRE - WNKRE
fth 73 B B B FE AL R A 2B o W AR B 1k B IR %
22.78% T HE o mATERAERAEBEEEH
EH BRI AERFESEHEE o &
SEFEEMEREE ATERDEKRR
B DREMS2EEFRZEAMNETLEE
ZEeMEERR

RMEHR  BRETAIEAZTREISEB
HEIREE  BERRBEBE - BRI
EBRBRITAIECZAIKRESEERE
BREE  WRAARFEED R BERTAI#EB
IR ET ] C HERR R (B 5 18 49 7,000,000 7%
7 %.9,000,0007%8 7T © 1T £ Z R A () BE IR
K EF R () EETEIEHFE -

Hip BB E 2 AP ERESERATERE
RHEBROBERE=-FAERBR -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e SRR MR

For the year ended 31 March 2017 ##Z2=—Z—tF=A=1+—HIFE

18. AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE INVESTMENT 18. AI{LSHEEIRE

2017 2016
—E— & —TE—REF

HK$°000 HK$'000
FET FTETT

Unlisted equity investment incorporated  FAFREE 7 sE AR 37 2 3F E AR AN

in Spain, at cost (Note) BE IR (HsE) 2,509 2,509
Note: The unlisted available-for-sale investment is stated at cost less any Misr: ARABEATEGHEEEN  EERALATELT
accumulated impairment because the range of reasonable fair value BETSEETE - NIE L T Al SN E IR B IR AR EM E
estimates is so significant that the directors are of the opinion that EHRESIEER ©

the fair value cannot be measured reliably.

19. INVENTORIES 19. 8

2017 2016
—E— & —T—RF

HK$°000 HK$'000
FER T

Materials and consumables RE K SEAE R = 7
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e M HRRMIEE

For the year ended 31 March 2017 2 =Z—tF=A=1+—HIFE

20. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES 20. FE U AR Xk B 3L fth BB gy 3% I8
2017 2016
—E—+tF F—REF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FH&T
Trade receivables (Note a) FEMER R (i3t a) 53,032 38,078
Deposit and prepayments e MTENHRIE 4,705 14,630
Loan receivables (Note b) JEW & R (M3t D) 181,197 181,271
Other receivables (Note ¢) H At EURIE (Ff3EC) 6 13,208
238,940 247,187
Note: BEE -
(a) Trade receivables (a) FEUEESR
An analysis of trade receivables by age, presented based on the IRE e AR A W BIEE A 251 2 FEUEE ZREEES S TN
invoice date or contractual due date, is as follows: T
2017
—E2—tF 7N
HK$'000 HK$'000
FExT FAT
0-30days 0£30H 52,989 37,492
31-60 days 31E60H 596 -
Over 60 days 60 B A L 2,088 586
Total trade receivables JE s AR SR 48R 55,673 38,078
Less : Impairment losses* AR EEE (2,641) -
Total trade receivables, net of impairment losses* B KR EE 18 > el bR kg sa 53,032 38,078
* Represents the sum of impairment loss of approximately * R&KH577,000/870 2 85 3SR B
HK$577,000 on trade receivables (2016: Nil) and (=T =R M) R#2,064,00078 T BB E
approximately HK$2,064,000 on loan interest receivables HABFRREBR (=T —AF : M) 24
(2016: Nil) respectively. e
" Represents the sum of trade receivables of approximately ‘ RE#)36,018,000 BT 2 M H 3 sk (=
HK$36,018,000 (2016: HK$24,317,000) and loan interest TN 24,317,000/ 78) K #917,014,00078
receivables of approximately HK$17,014,000 (2016: T2 E Hﬁlﬁ_ﬁ MEFRBE(ZZT—XNF:
HK$13,761,000) respectively. 13,761,000/ 7T ) 2 #8501 »
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e SRR MR

For the year ended 31 March 2017 ##Z2=—Z—tF=A=1+—HIFE

20. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES 20. [ U AR 7k B 3t P Uy FRIE (4

(continued)
Note: (continued) st (48)
(@)  Trade receivables (continued) (a) FEW B (4])

The carrying amount of the Group’s trade receivables are
denominated in the following currencies:

REBE YRR Z BREETIA T EEEE -

2017
—E—tF

HK$'000
FET

HK dollars BT
Renminbi AR

17,023 14,347
36,009 23,731

53,032 38,078

The Group offers credit terms to its customers ranging from cash on
delivery to 180 days.

No interest is charged on the trade receivables. Included in trade
receivables with a balance amounting to HK$35,955,000 (2016:
HK$23,703,000) was guaranteed by an independent third party and
the balance was fully settled after the end of the reporting period.

The management of the Group monitors the recoverable amount of
the trade debts and considers adequate impairment loss is made for
irrecoverable amount, if necessary. In determining the recoverability
of a trade receivable, the Group considers any change in the credit
quality of trade receivable from the date credit was initially granted
up to the end of the reporting period.

An analysis of trade receivables which are past due but not impaired
by age, presented based on the invoice date, is as follows:

AEEFRTERP ZEEPRN TEEWRE80R -

FEM ARSI AT, o 7 RE WBR 0 #3883 35,955,000 78
TT(ZF =714 : 23,703,000 70) 2 AR KT eh %8
SFEZTTER - ARREHRR2EIRE -

AEEERRERMUFEY TRELHE  TRER
TS B TARE & HEHR R ARERIE - B
RS2 AR BRI A R
BB RERS R BEER Y (R EA TR
ETED -

ZEERHEY 2 BRaMERRE L BEETERRS
T

HK$'000
TET

Overdue by: BIHEE

0 - 30 days 0&30H 13,345 -

31-60days 31E60H = -

Over 60 days 60 H M £ 9 586
13,354 586

The trade receivables in the carrying amount of HK$13,345,000,
which were past due but not impaired, have been fully settled
subsequent to the reporting period.

BREIME /13,345,000 T2 E B E R RERKE 5
RN R EBEEN -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e M HRRMIEE

For the year ended 31 March 2017 2 =Z—tF=A=1+—HIFE

20. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES 20. FEUs AR Fr B H fih FE U BR IR (a)
(continued)
Note: (continued) MisE © (48)
(@)  Trade receivables (continued) (a) FEW B (4])

Movement in the impairment of trade receivables:

HEAR SR oA 52

2017
—E—tF F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FERT FHT
Balance at the beginning of the year FREER - -
Impairment losses EEE 2,641 -
Balance at the end of the year FRER 2,641 -
(b)  Loan receivables (b) FEW &K
2017
—E—+F N
HK$'000 HK$'000
THERT FHT
Loan receivables FEUE R 201,197 181,271
Less: Impairment losses W OREEE (20,000) -
Loan receivables, net of impairment losses B B R E IR FE 181,197 181,271
The loan receivables above were denominated in Hong Kong dollars. it SR AETTAHE -
An analysis of loan receivables by age, presented based on the RAENDIEAB 25| 2 BREFRRRSTHT

contractual due date, is as follows:

2017 2016

—E—tF —E—RE

HK$'000 HK$'000

FET 7570

Neither past due nor impaired R B SURE 153,807 181,271
Past due but not impaired @A RRE

— 0to 3 months —0Z318A 27,390 -

— 3 months to 6 months —3EAZ6EAR = -

— Over 6 months — BB 6EA = -

181,197 181,271

Loan receivables that were neither past due nor impaired relate to a
number of customers for whom there was no recent history of
default.

The Group did not provide any allowance on the past due loan
receivables as the loan receivables of HK$27,390,000 has been
settled after the end of the reporting period, arising from acquisition
of Honorbase International Limited, as detailed in Note 34.

B 48 0 ) R M ) B K U

HEP ©

AT H — e 3 R4 R D

BN 3ARTE T - AR MEPRREEERRE
To 25 B R B BR X R T 2 A 2 27,390,000 % 7T & W B
R MU S 0 A A PR R R A AR o
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e MR M EE

For the year ended 31 March 2017 ##Z2=—Z—tF=A=1+—HIFE

20. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

(continued)
Note: (continued)

(b) Loan receivables (continued)

As at 31 March 2017 loan receivables bore interest at fixed rates of
10% t0 24% (2016: 10% t0 24%) per annum and are repayable within
12 months. Except for a loan receivable with a carrying amount of
approximately HK$27,390,000 (2016: HK$27,390,000) which was
secured by parcels of lands in Hong Kong, all loan receivables were
unsecured. The directors assessed the collectibility of loan
receivables from time to time individually with reference to
borrowers’ past collection history and current creditworthiness.

Movement in the impairment of loan receivables:

20. FEUT AR Rk B H fth FE U 3R IR ()

BiaE - ()

(b) ERERE)

RZZE—tF=A=+—8  BEREFIRETFHNE
WVEZEUE(ZZT—RF 10EE24E):TEREAR
1218 A NEE o Br—IBUAZ BRI &S L EIE IR
BRE{E 404 27,390,000 7T (=2 — /< F ¢ 27,390,000
BT) ZEWREFIN TERERERAERR - 5
TRLZERAZBEERCELBREERR - 5
FEUE FUR A AT UL 1T B BIRFAE ©

FEWEFREES)

2017
—E—+F <
HK$'000 HK$'000
FAR T
Balance at the beginning of the year FEERR - -
Impairment losses VEREY5Ei} 20,000 -
Balance at the end of the year FRER 20,000

The impaired loan receivables related to customers that were in
financial difficulties and management assessed that the possibility of
their recovery was remote. As at 31 March 2017, the impaired loan
receivables of HK$20,000,000 (2016: Nil) was unsecured.

(c) Other receivables
As at 31 March 2016, other receivables included an amount of
RMB11,000,000 (approximately HK$13,201,000), which had been
settled in the year ended 31 March 2017, arising from assignment of
rights for collecting refundable deposit and payment of damages for
the period from 1 February 2014 to 15 March 2016.

EURES R E B A BEEN TS AR - B
BHEETEKHOKERE - R_Z—CtF=A
=+—H ' BEEREF 20,000,000 (=T —<
&) WHEIER -

(c) Hfth R WA
RIE-—RE=ZA=+—H EMEEFIABEREK
AR # 11,000,000 7T (£713,201,00058 70) 2 38 - B
BREERBE_ZET—tHF=A=+—"RLFER
B ZFRAREBRRRATROTEEINA=E
—HEZA-HE-Z-RFZATHAHRZEY
& 2R
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e M HRRMIEE

For the year ended 31 March 2017 2 =Z—tF=A=1+—HIFE

21. HELD-FOR-TRADING INVESTMENTS 21. HUERRKRE

2017 2016

—E—tE —E—NF

HK$'000 HK$'000

FET FH&T

Equity investment listed in REB LM 2BRAERE -

Hong Kong, at fair value (Note) B AFE (M) 3,220 12,640
Note: The fair values of listed investments are determined on the basis of Mt FRRE AT ETIRRE RRTIS B ABET -

quoted market bid price at the end of the reporting period.

22. CASH AND BANK BALANCES 22. HeRBITHES
Cash and bank balances comprise cash held by the Group B RRTESBEEAEBIFES LR
and short-term bank deposits with an original maturity of HIE A= @A S AR 2 BRI TR o

three months or less.

The Group’s cash and bank balances of approximately REEZRE RIRTTEERRKI 553,000 7T (=
HK$553,000 (2016: HK$1,180,000) are deposited with banks L — X4 £ 1,180,000 7% 7T ) 12 7 A B At
in the Mainland China. The remittance of these funds out of ZER1T o W EFBE R B A SR A A
the Mainland China is subject to exchange control B A 1t IR T B 5 2 N S IR 5 o

restrictions imposed by the Mainland China government.
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For the year ended 31 March 2017 ##Z2=—Z—tF=A=1+—HIFE

23. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES 23. FE {1 0R 7k B H fth FE £ 5k 1B
2017 2016
—E—+F —T—RF
HK$'000 HK$'000
TR TAT
Trade payables FEFRR X 41 46
Other payables and accruals H At e FIE R BT E A 12,324 13,001
Amounts due to minority shareholders — FEfH I B A & > #A% B 2 FUA
of subsidiary (Note) GES 30,000 30,000
42,365 43,047
The average credit period on purchases of certain goods is HESTER Y IEHEERARSNZE
cash on delivery to 120 days. 120H -
The analysis of trade payables by age based on the invoice I AHI2 5| T FENBESEE R O IT

date is as follows:

2017 2016
—E—LF —E—REF
HK$'000 HK$°000
TR TAT
0-30days 0ZE30H - -
31-60 days 31E260H = -
Over 60 days 60 HEA 41 46
41 46

Note: The amounts due to minority shareholders are unsecured, interest- BSE : ERHBAR LSRR Y ZIEAEEE .« 68 R EE

free and have no fixed terms of repayment. FIBEE o

ANNUAL REPORT 2017 / 3%k



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e MR EE

For the year ended 31 March 2017 2 =Z—tF=A=1+—HIFE

24. DEFERRED TAX 24, SEFEIRIF
Deferred tax assets FIEBIEEE

Unused tax
losses
REARIEEE

HK$'000
T

At 1 April 2015 WZZE—hEMA—H 19,914
Net change BE) R 4,485
Eliminated on disposal of a subsidiary o — R B 2 R B £ 8 (2,813)
Eliminated on deregistration of subsidiaries BB~ B BB AR 85 (2,014)
Utilised EBH 47)
At 31 March 2016 and at 1 April 2016 RZEBE—RFE=ZA=+—"H8xk

RZZE—XRFMA—H 19,525
Net change BE) R 6,679
At 31 March 2017 R-ZZE—tF=A=+—H 26,204
No deferred tax asset has been recognised in respect of I 4 R A TR AL 2 R AR A AR M st R B A
the unused tax losses due to the unpredictability of future RIBEIBRERECHIBEE -

profit streams.
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For the year ended 31 March 2017 ##Z2=—Z—tF=A=1+—HIFE

24. DEFERRED TAX (continued)
Deferred tax liabilities

24, RIEIRIA ()
EZEHEEE

Accelerated
tax
depreciation

IER B E
HK$'000
TET

At 1 April 2015 R-_ZE—REMA—A 119
Net change HE)FEE 201

At 31 March 2016 and at 1 April 2016

RZE—X"FmA—H 320
Net change BE) R (180)
At 31 March 2017 RZZE—tF=A=+—H 140

VEAGEHN A RERENRELATEX
ZEREZRMERETHARE -

No deferred tax liability has been recognised due to the
temporary differences which will result in a liability to be
payable in the foreseeable future are immaterial.

Under the Enterprise Income Tax Law of the PRC, WIETRECEMERE BT N\FE—A8

withholding tax is imposed on dividends declared in respect
of profits earned by the PRC subsidiaries from 1 January
2008 onwards. Deferred taxation has not been provided for
in the consolidated financial statements in respect of
temporary differences attributable to the profits earned by
the PRC subsidiaries as the Group is able to control the
timing of the reversal of the temporary differences and it is
probable that the temporary differences will not reverse in
the foreseeable future.

— R hEM B A AR A E KA
ERBMIEIN - R AR B ARG B EE
RERCERE BERZRNALERENT
SREE - B BT R B AT R E R
FEIE 2 B RN A MR ELRLER
TR o
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For the year ended 31 March 2017 &2 —ZE—+tE=A=1+—HIFE

25. SHARE CAPITAL 25. g%
Number

of shares Amount

R E TH

‘000 HK$ 000
T T

Authorised VERE
(ordinary shares of HK$0.04 each) (R EE0.04 78 7T 2 A% )
At 1 April 2015, 31 March 2016 R-ZE—AFMOA—H -

and 1 April 2016 —E-RF=ZA=+—8K
—E-RFWOA—H 5,000,000 200,000
Increase in authorised share capital B hETE A
(Note a) (FfzEa) 5,000,000 200,000
At 31 March 2017 RZE—+F=A=+—H 10,000,000 400,000
Issued and fully paid BETRER
(ordinary shares of HK$0.04 each) (R EE0.04 78 7T 2 A% )
At 31 March 2015 and 1 April 2015 RZE—RAF=A=+—HK
Z—RHFMA— El 3,950,333 158,013
Issue of ordinary shares under share ﬂi%ﬁﬁxf}z P E &I TE MR
placing (Note b) (FfF3ED) 790,000 31,600
At 31 March 2016 and 1 April 2016 R-ZBE—XRF=ZA=+—HEK
—E—RFEOA—H 4,740,333 189,613
Issue of ordinary shares under share RIER G B EETEBERK
placing (Note ¢) (MF5EC) 948,064 37,923
At 31 March 2017 RZE—+tF=A=1+—H 5,688,397 227,536

Note:

(a) Pursuant to an ordinary resolution of the Company passed on 3 June (@

Wit

BRER=_T—

NEXNB=ZABBZARARE L/}{ui

2016, the authorised share capital of the Company was increased
from HK$200,000,000 (divided into 5,000,000,000 ordinary shares) to
HK$400,000,000 (divided into 10,000,000,000 ordinary shares) by the
creation of an additional 5,000,000,000 ordinary shares.

On 5 January 2016, 790,000,000 shares of the Company were issued
to placees at a total consideration of HK$102,700,000, of which
HK$31,600,000 was credited to share capital account and the net
balance after expenses of HK$68,361,000 was credited to share
premium account.

On 6 January 2017, 948,064,000 shares of the Company were issued
to placees at a total consideration of HK$123,248,000, of which
HK$37,923,000 was credited to share capital account and the net
balance after expenses of HK$82,185,000 was credited to share
premium account.

R KR AAE R 3% 8 15 5% 5,000,000,000 A% &
f% + F2200,000,0007% 7T (43 /% 5,000,000,000 % & L%)
#2400,000,0007% 7T, (43 410,000,000,000/% & &A% )

MN=Z—xE— F R A 790,000,000 B 7 2 7 A% 19
BA 48 4% {8 102,700,000 T2 17 F A B A E &
31,600,000 7T 2 5t A B ANER fﬁ?ﬂ[‘%ﬁvﬁi‘ﬁéZ%ﬁﬁ%
7F 868,361,000 7T B2 5H AR 7 i (B BR

R-Z—tF— F/X8 948,064,000 8% A& 2 & f& 17
A #8 1% {8123,248,0007 T # 17 F A B A E &
37,923,000 T E AT ABRAER - MR X 18 2 itk
JF5E 82,185,000 T A B st ARRID R EER -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e SRR MR

For the year ended 31 March 2017 ##Z2=—Z—tF=A=1+—HIFE

26. SHARE OPTIONS SCHEME 26. FEBRiERTE

Pursuant to an ordinary resolution passed at the
extraordinary general meeting of the Company held on 4
August 2010 and the Stock Exchange granting approval of
the listing of and permission to deal in the shares to be
issued under the share option scheme on 17 November
2010, the Company adopted a share option scheme to
enable the Company to provide incentive to participants
with the opportunity of participating in the growth of the
Company by acquiring shares in the Company and may, in
turn, assist in the attraction and retention of talents who
have made contributions to the success of the Company.

The Board shall be entitled at any time on a business day
within 10 years commencing on the effective date of the
share option scheme to offer the grant of an option to any
eligible person as the Board may in its absolute discretion
select in accordance with the eligibility criteria set out in
the share option scheme. An offer shall be deemed
accepted when the Company receives the letter containing
the offer of the grant of an option duly signed by the
grantee together with a non-refundable payment of HK$1
(or such other sum in any currency as the Board may
determine).

The maximum number of shares which may be issued
upon exercise of all outstanding options granted and yet to
be exercised under the share option scheme and any other
schemes must not, in aggregate, exceed 30% of the Shares
in issue from time to time. On 7 August 2015, the ordinary
resolution was passed at the annual general meeting of the
Company to approve the refreshment of the share option
scheme mandate limit under the share option scheme. As
at 31 March 2017, the Company had 395,033,280 share
options available for issue under the share option scheme,
which represents approximately 6.94% of the issued shares
of the Company.

RER-ZF—ZTF)\ANARITZARFK
REBIAGEBE EBRER  UREBR
IR —F—ZF+— A+t BHERERER
BB TERTZBROD LT REEZER
T ARRERMBRERE - §HESARA
SUAR2EERHEKSEBRBARR R RN
MaZEARARRZIBRAR - M ABRES
REBEHARNB ZRIMELBERZ AT -

EXSARNBRER S £ A M0
FREMLEERZEMERE  MEFSRIE
BRI ERFELENBIEZ
ERAERATREREBERE - EARQF
EEARALARZAHARLBREZD
Z I ERAREZHRIB1ET(HES
SHRBETCEAEMER SR - AR
BRERBEERR -

RIZBRAERT 8| AT bt 8RB B R
1T Z P A M ARTTE B AR T TR B ] BE 3
TZBRMEE LR aXTSEB TR %
TR 230% - RZZE—RAFN\ALH " K
ARARBRAFASBELBRERILER
BT SR TR EIREREE - 1
“E—LEF=ZA=t—H  ARFAREE
F% #E 5t &1 3% 17 395,033,280 17 BB X 7 - MHE
RART D EITRINH 6.94% -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e MR EE

For the year ended 31 March 2017 &2 —ZE—+tE=A=1+—HIFE

26. SHARE OPTIONS SCHEME (continued) 26. MRBGHERTE ()
Closing
share price
immediately
before the
date of grant
RGRRE
RREBHZ RL A2
AY¥E K
HKS HKS

Number
of share
options
granted

Exercise
price
per share

Fair value
at grant date

Date of grant

Exercise period

RHBREYE BRTEE

3 January 2014 3 January 2015 to 2 January 2016 90,000,000 0.4000 0.06998 0.290
ZE-MmE-A=A *Z—i*ﬁi*ﬂiaﬁz
77 /\E ﬂ El
The fair value of the share options granted of approximately BN EREZ AFEL4,723000%8 TE
HK$4,723,000 was recognised as share option expense REZEZZ—RF-A=+—HLEFEHER
during the year ended 31 March 2016. No share options BBRERY BEZFT—+tF=-A=1+—

were granted, lapsed or exercised during the year ended
31 March 2017 (2016: lapsed 90,000,000 share options). As
at 31 March 2017 and 2016, there was no outstanding
share option.

The fair value of equity-settled share options granted was
estimated as at the date of grant, using the Binomial Option
Pricing Model, taking into account the terms and conditions
upon which the share options were granted. The significant
inputs into the Model were as follows:

HiFFEMEEREDRD - KBEiTE(=
= — 754 : 90,000,000 BERRHE B ) o FA
—EtFNZE-RF=A=1+—H &
AT ] R AR TR R AR -

RN ERT AEEZBREAFERNR D
A AT EEA G EFEZE
BB Z R R - ZEA L EEH
ABEBWT

Share Option
BB

Share price (HK$) as at the date of grant
Exercise price (HK$)

Expected volatility

Risk-free interest rate

Life of option

PR B2 BR(E (B T) 0.290
1TfEfE (B IT) 0.400
TEERR 1R 63.606%

R\ B2 ) = 0.333%
FERREFH 1 Year 5F
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e SRR MR

For the year ended 31 March 2017 ##Z2=—Z—tF=A=1+—HIFE

26. SHARE OPTIONS SCHEME (continued) 26. MERRHEET 8 (@)
The expected volatility reflects the assumption that the T8 HE R 08 f Rt FE 5P ORC IR T3 788 R 2R B 2 2 1R
historical volatility is indicative of future trends, which may £ EZEAT—TAERER - IR LE
also not necessarily be the actual outcome. No other R mEMEEER AN EEESR o

feature of the share options granted was incorporated into
the measurement of fair value.

Number
of share Number
options of share
outstanding Cancelled/ options
atthe Granted Exercise  terminated Lapsed  outstanding
Exercise beginning during during during during  attheend

Date of grant price  ofthe year the year the year the year theyear  ofthe year
FREE/
FinAH il EREH ERIHE s EREXR 7

2016

ZERE

Consultants 3 January 2014 04 90,000,000 - - - (90,000,000) -
—E-|mF

Bl —R=A

At the end of the reporting period, the Company had no RBERR ARFREBFETE(ZE

(2016: Nily share options outstanding under the schemes. — N ) MRTTE 2 BEARE o
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e M HRRMIEE

For the year ended 31 March 2017 2 =Z—tF=A=1+—HIFE

27. DISPOSAL OF A SUBSIDIARY 27. HE—RMMEAT

On 15 June 2015, the Group agreed to dispose of Tianxi
Hotel to the purchaser for a consideration of RMB5 million.
All the conditions of the disposal have been fulfilled and the
completion of the disposal took place on 19 June 2015.
Upon completion, the Group discontinued its hotel
operations. Details of the disposal were disclosed in the

RIZZE—HFANATHEB  AEERBURK
B AR #5,000,0007TMAE 7 HEXEB/E ©
HEFEMAGRESENR  HEEFERN -
Z-RAFNATHHETK - TRIE - KEE
RIEEAEEE - AL EFHEZIFBRA
RAEBMA-—T-AFANATHEBZAME

Company's announcement dated 15 June 2015. An analysis
of the financial effects arising from the disposal is as

B HEFHRELAZUBRESTOT

follows:
HK$'000
FHIT
Net assets disposed of: &z EEFE -
Property, plant and equipment M - WE R 11,291
Inventories FE 44
Trade and other receivables JFEE S B R % At JE W R IR 1,988
Cash and bank balances Re MRTTHEHS 60
Trade and other payables FEATBR R N ELAth PR A 3R (2,988)
10,395
Release of translation reserve upon HE—HWBRRRRR
disposal of a subsidiary PE X A1 40
Loss on disposal HEEIE Y FE (4,095)
Total cash consideration LIRS B 6,340
Net cash inflow arising on disposal HEEBEEECRERAFRE
Cash consideration received BWEeRE 6,340
Cash and cash equivalents disposed BHERESRIRESEEY (60)
6,280

The subsidiary disposed in the year ended 31 March 2016
was engaged in hotel business and had contributed
revenue of approximately HK$1,429,000 and loss of
approximately HK$5,669,000 to the Group up to the date of
disposal.

REBZE-—Z—R"F=ZA=+—HLFEHNH
EZMBARRERERS  BEHEBH
IE - AAREEE R Y 491,429,000 7T &
[E548 495,669,000/ 7T °
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e SRR MR

For the year ended 31 March 2017 ##Z2=—Z—tF=A=1+—HIFE

28. COMMITMENT 28. *KiE
Operating lease commitment REHERE
At the end of the reporting period, the Group had RBEEER  REBRBEATRELSEHE
commitment payable under non-cancellable operating LT E Y EER 2 AEAYENT ¢

leases in respect of rented premises as follows:

2017 2016
—E—+F —E-REF
HK$°000 HK$'000
FET FAT
Within one year —FR 9,329 7,542
In the second to fifth year inclusive F_EERF (BEEEMS) 5,634 6,680
14,963 14,222
At the end of the reporting period, the total future minimum RERERIR - TR EHEBE T BHAM
lease receivable under non-cancellable operating leases in ENRERBF 6 2 RRKIEMBL BB
respect of leasing of anti-aging service platform as follows: LUl
2017 2016
—E—+F ZE—RF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FE T FAT
Within one year —F R 2,361 -
In the second to fifth years, inclusive F_EERLF(RREEMTF) 37 -
2,398 -
29. RETIREMENT BENEFIT SCHEMES 29. RiFimEFI&HE
The Group operates a Mandatory Provident Fund (“MPF") REEAMBEREGEREEZMARIER
Scheme for all qualifying employees in Hong Kong. The BEe([8ES)ETE - ZetdlcBETIEAR
assets of the scheme are held separately from those of the SEEESDFRIFE  UWHFEHRARBEIEARE
Group, in funds under the control of trustees. The Group flzEeN AEENEEREBRAKEH
and its employees are each required to make monthly #H®25%31,5008 L (ZF — 754 1,500
contributions at 5% of relevant payroll costs or HK$1,500 BIL) (ABRIKE %) MEr8IER MR - &
(2016: HK$1,500), whichever is the lower, to the scheme. SEREHERESHEZEREAEREET
The only obligation of the Group with respect to the MPF ZIBMIREHE
Scheme is to make the required contributions under the
scheme.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e M HRRMIEE

For the year ended 31 March 2017 2 =Z—tF=A=1+—HIFE

29. RETIREMENT BENEFIT SCHEMES (continued) 29. B4 iBFI 5t S @)

The employees of the Group's subsidiaries in the People’s
Republic of China are members of a state-managed
retirement benefit scheme operated by the local
government. The subsidiaries are required to contribute a
specified percentage of payroll costs to the retirement
benefit scheme to fund the benefits. The only obligation of
the Group with respect to the retirement benefit scheme is
to make the specified contributions.

During the year ended 31 March 2017, the total
contributions made by the Group to the retirement benefit
schemes and charged to the consolidated statement of
profit or loss amounted to HK$278,000 (2016: HK$324,000).

As at 31 March 2017, there were no forfeited contributions
available for the Group to offset contributions payable in
future years (2016: Nil).

AEBRFEARKNBMB LR ZEETD
HEMRMES cBREERKREHNTE
KB - iEMBARARGFE ZFELIIMA
ZRRABA G B FUAEBIRA - NEERL
BRRKENGE 2 EAEEREMREHR

=
NI

BHE_Z—+F=A=+—HILEFE  £&
)R IR A A 5t &1 4F KA $£278,00078
T(ZF — 784 : 324,000 70) + I E 4R
BEmRPNR -

R-T—tF=ZA=+—8 AKELEA
HHARFREEBNERZEZPER(=F
—NEFCE) -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e SRR MR

For the year ended 31 March 2017 ##Z2=—Z—tF=A=1+—HIFE

30. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS 30. H¥EITHR

The Group’s major financial instruments include AREFTEUHB T EBFOHIEERE -
available-for-sale investment, held-for-trading investments, BIEEENE - RI7E% EWEZLEM
bank balances, trade and other receivables and trade and FEWRIBLA N FEN RN R B FENFRIE - B
other payables. Details of these financial instruments are B TR VBN ST IE - 8
disclosed in the respective notes. The risks associated with SRR T AR EE RINAREZER L
these financial instruments and the policies on how to ZBORESMT c EREEERERZER
mitigate these risks are set out below. The management % DA FE(R BN A3 Wb EREUE = 1 o

manages and monitors these exposures to ensure
appropriate measures are implemented on a timely and
effective manner.

(@) Categories of financial instruments (@) MBETEAEER

2016
—E—RF

HK$'000
TET

Financial assets MKEE

Available-for-sale investment AHEERE 2,509 2,509

Loan and receivables ER N ERGRIE

— Trade and other receivables — — & U 85 7 & H i fE U 7k0E 238,323 242,744

— Cash and bank balances — W& RIRTTES 142,619 40,301

Held-for-trading investments FIEEEREAE 3,220 12,640
386,671 298,194

Financial liabilities g S =R

Amortised costs B DN

— Trade and other payables — BRI E A FIR 39,890 37,410
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e TS ERAR MY EE

For the year ended 31 March 2017 2 =Z—tF=A=1+—HIFE

30. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued) 30. MBI RmW
(b) Market risk (b) WEEE
(i)  Foreign currency risk (i) MR B

Foreign currency risk arises when future
commercial transactions and recognised assets
and liabilities are denominated in a currency
that is not the Group's functional currency. The
foreign exchange risk of the Group occurred
due to the fact that the Group’s had business
activities denominated in foreign currencies.
The Group's business activities are primarily
exposed to foreign exchange risk in respect of
Renminbi ("RMB”) against Hong Kong Dollar.
The net assets/liabilities of certain investments
of the Group in the PRC are exposed to foreign
currency translation risk. The management
continuously monitors the foreign exchange
exposure and will consider hedging foreign
currency risk should the need arise.

The carrying amounts of the Group's significant
foreign currency denominated monetary assets
and monetary liabilities at the end of the
reporting period are as follows:

Assets
&E

SMERBRRREAEIZARE
EREEMBEANKEDRES
BASNERSHEREL - AKH
FEAIMESHE 2 A K INE
R - AEEXBEEEMEEA
RETAREDLBTABZI
KRk -  AEBRTEBIRE
ZEBE/BEFRARIINER
BHER - EEERERRINER
b WA T ERZ B
R -

REREHIR - NEEAINEHE
CEREMEEREKAEER
(EVENE

Liabilities
8E

2017 2016 2017 2016
—EB—tF —T-RF ZB—tE —ZT—RF
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FABT FERT FAT

Renminbi AR 37,169 38,933 2,272 2,394
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e SRR MR

For the year ended 31 March 2017 &2 —ZE—+tE=A=+—HIFE

30. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)
(b) Market risk (continued)

(i)

Foreign currency risk (continued)

Foreign currency risk sensitivity analysis

The Group is mainly exposed to the effect of
fluctuation in Renminbi. The following table
details the Group’s sensitivity to a 5% increase
and decrease in the functional currency
exchange rates of the company against the
Renminbi. 5% is the sensitivity rate used when
reporting foreign currency risk internally to key
management personnel and represents
management’s assessment of the reasonably
possible change in foreign exchange rates. The
sensitivity analysis includes outstanding foreign
currency denominated monetary items and
adjusts their translation at the year end for a 5%
change in foreign currency exchange rates. A
positive number below indicates an increase in
loss for the year where the functional
currencies of the Group strengthen 5% against
Renminbi. For a 5% weakening of the functional
currencies of the Group against the Renminbi,
there would be an equal and opposite impact
on the loss, and the balances below would be
negative.

(i)

30. MBI RmW
(b) TiGEM &)

S B (4E)
SN L B B RS 0
REE T B EARERIESK
ZRE - TRAVNAREHAR
AEEEREREAREER
F21E5% 2 BURRE - 5% A EE
EIEA B BRSNS B2 B P
%ﬂ@&m?'&%EﬁEﬂE
BRI Z AR EFERT
ﬁoﬂﬁgnﬁa%ﬁ%%ﬁz
SNEEHEERIAR - WIRSNEEE
RZSEHNFEARNEER
BE ATEHBERHASE
DeeEEHARETTES% Bl
REZEEF GBI - HAKE
WeEEB A ARBEZESS - Al
HEBRERSEMERZFZE A
THEHRTEK SR -

Effect on loss for
the year end and
accumulated losses
HEZHFERAR
ARz E

Effect on equity

HES o8&

2016
—E—RF
HK$'000
FH&7T

Renminbi

AR 1,745 1,827 1,745 1,827
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e M HRRMIEE

For the year ended 31 March 2017 2 =Z—tF=A=1+—HIFE

30. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)
(b) Market risk (continued)

(ii)

Interest rate risk

The Group’s cash flow interest rate risk relates
primarily to bank balances. The management
considers the Group’s exposure of bank
balances to cash flow interest rate risk is not
significant as they have short maturity period.

Interest rate risk sensitivity analysis

The sensitivity analysis below has been
determined based on the exposure to cash flow
interest rate risk at the end of the reporting
period. The analysis is prepared assuming the
amount of variable-rate bank balances at the
end of the reporting period was the amount
outstanding for the whole year.

If interest rates had been 50 basis point higher/
lower and all other variables were held
constant, the Group’s loss for the year ended
31 March 2017 would decrease/increase by
approximately HK$555,000 (2016: decrease/
increase by approximately HK$22,000). This is
mainly attributable to the Group’s exposure to
cash flow interest rate risk on its variable rate
bank balances.

30. MBI RmW
(b) TiGEE &)

(ii)

@B
FEERSHREFREREEE
PITEBEN  TRERAAE
B RTEREE 2B B
EEBEY - BEAEBEHSY
MEEE P B -

= i R IR 0 AT

AT SREDH IR BN R E B
REEH 2R e E N X W&
Bl ZNMTRENREIMRZF
BRITEBRREFAKREESHE
[k

W FIE EF+ TR 50 ME2hm AT
BHMEHEFTE  KEEH
EE—+tF=-A=1+—HIHF
EzBEBERD, MY
555,000/ 7t ( —ZT — XN F : W
L N#22,00087T) c T B
A& B B 5h )% B aRTT S iR
RS TREFRER
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e MR M EE

For the year ended 31 March 2017 &2 —ZE—+tE=A=+—HIFE

30. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)
(b) Market risk (continued)
(i)  Price risk

The Group is exposed to equity price risk
through its investments in equity securities
classified as held-for-trading investments. The
Group's price risk is mainly concentrated on
equity securities listed in Hong Kong. The
management monitors the price risk and will
take appropriate actions when necessary.

Equity price sensitivity analysis

The sensitivity analyses below have been
determined based on the exposure to equity
price risk at the end of the reporting period. As
at 31 March 2017, if the quoted market price of
equity securities listed in Hong Kong classified
as held-for-trading investments had been
increased/decreased by 5% and all other
variables held constant, the Group’s post-tax
loss for the year would have decreased/
increased by HK$161,000 as a result of change
in fair value of held-for-trading investments
(2016: HK$632,000).

(c) Credit risk
The Group’s maximum exposure to credit risk which
will cause a financial loss to the Group due to failure
to perform an obligation by the counterparties, is the
carrying amount of respective recognised financial
assets as stated in the consolidated statement of
financial position.

30. MBI RmW

(b) WIEREER )
(iii) 1B @
AEEREDEABETERE
Zh$ EHRERZRABIZRE
c REEEREAREEEDR
E%imk$& o I [F B
EBRREAR - W IERE T EHER
BETE

BRA(E1E BB E 2T

AT SUE DT TR R A 3R 5 HA
REH 2 RAERE RS RS o
RZE—+F=A=+—H " ¥
SHERBIEEERAEZES LT
B A B S PR 18 00,8 4 5%
MATEEMEBERTE - K&
EARFERREBEESERIEER
BERERNTEEB ML, N
161,000 jt( — T — X F:
632,000/ 7T) °

(c) FERR
AXZHEFAERITEEMSAEE
XXPBBRzESEERRIIKE
AR B A S0 2% P8R B 2 RE AR B 75
BEZEME-

ANNUAL REPORT 2017 / 3%k



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e M HRRMIEE

For the year ended 31 March 2017 2 =Z—tF=A=1+—HIFE

30. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued) 30. ¥ IR
(c) Credit risk (continued) (c) EER @)

The Group's exposure to credit risk on trade and
other receivables is influenced mainly by the
individual characteristics of each customer rather
than industry in which the customers operate and
therefore significant concentrations of credit risk
primarily arise when the Group has significant
exposure to individual customers. At the end of the
reporting period, the Group had concentration of
credit risk as 68% (2016: 62%) and over 98% (2016:
over 89%) of the total trade receivables was due from
the Group's largest customer and five largest
customers respectively which had no history of
default. The Group has policies in place for the control
and monitoring of such credit risk.

In respect of loans and interest receivables, individual
credit evaluations are performed on all borrowers
requiring credit over a certain amount. These
evaluations focus on the borrowers’ past history of
making payments when due and current ability to
pay, and take into account information specific to the
borrowers.

In order to minimise the credit risk, the directors have
determination of monitoring procedures to ensure
that follow-up actions are taken to recover overdue
debts. In addition, the directors review the
recoverability of each individual receivable at the end
of the reporting period to ensure that adequate
impairment losses are made for irrecoverable
amounts. In this regard, the directors consider that
the Group's credit risk is significantly reduced. The
Group does not have any significant concentration of
credit risk, with exposure spread over a number of
borrowers.

The credit risk on liquid funds is limited because all
the Group's bank deposits are deposited with major
banks in Hong Kong and the PRC with high credit
rating.

FLBMBRR R A EWHRIAM S - AN
SEFEYCEERRIZRIEERP
Z BRI (MR TP EEMETE)
Ed AR EERRAXERTZE
REERAEERENELFREXN
BREELS - RBREHR - NEEA
XEEETRER  RESERIL &
REFLEZANEEZAEFRAKR
B P 2 5D RME R R 42 58 68%
TERF 62%) RHBiE8% (—ZF
—IREF : HBiA8I%) - AEED A
BEREREEBR o

RENERENEME @ HERAR
KBBETEREZEE FETEA
EEMZ ZEFREPRERAR
B HIRS I8 50 2 1B £ RO 8k o 3R I SR AL
7 UEBRBBERAZABER -

AEEREGEERR BEFECEEE
BRER - BERREURE 1T B I [0 8 1
B - Ubsh - EERNHmE R E
Bl EMCRRIR 2 AT R Bl 1 - DATE LR L
AW E SRR SR ERE o Bt -
EERRAKEZEERBR D ANRE
Lo AEET|EMEREREER
% HEBRDBNRRZERA

nBEEZEERBRER  REA/R
SEMERTERAGERREERF
BEREEFRZ EERT -

@ HONG KONG LIFE SCIENCES AND TECHNOLOGIES GROUP LIMITED o &/#4 mRIERITEBE AR AR



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e SRR MR

For the year ended 31 March 2017 ##Z2=—Z—tF=A=1+—HIFE

30. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)
(d) Liquidity risk

30. MBEITRm
(d) "EBELER

In the management of the liquidity risk, the Group
monitors and maintains a level of cash and cash
equivalents deemed adequate by the management to
finance the Group’s operations and mitigate the
effects of fluctuations in cash flows. The management
regularly reviews its major funding positions to
ensure that it has adequate financial resources in
meeting its financial obligations.

The tables below analysis the Group’s financial
liabilities into relevant maturity groupings based on
the remaining period at the end of each reporting
period to the contractual maturity date. The amounts
disclosed in the tables are the contractual
undiscounted cash flows. The tables include both
interest and principal cash flows.

A AR AR B LA FE A
IR

Trade and other payables

EERBESERE  AREERY
BRELBREFEVEFTNEEER
RIERKF  UAAEEZERHKE
ENBREREREND2TE - BIE
EEHEMETIZESMN - BERA
BRABERENEMBEEE -

TRETASERBEREHIRES
MBI A 1E 2 R ek B R i A8 RE 2 B 4E
MBI ZHBRABON - ERAKE
ZER/BHARUBRRESRE - TK
BREMNEMASHERE

On demand
or less than
3 months

Total Total carrying
undiscounted amount at
cash flow 31 March 2017
R=Z—+t&
=A=+—H
ZERE#AE
HK$°000
FET

RERH
PR=EA
HK$'000
FiExT

KERBE
MERE
HK$'000

TR

39,890 39,890 39,890
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For the year ended 31 March 2017 2 =Z—tF=A=1+—HIFE

30. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued) 30. ¥ IR
(d) Liquidity risk (continued) (d) REBESRAR @)

On demand Total Total carrying
or less than undiscounted amount at
3 months cash flow 31 March 2016
RZZE—RF

BRENRY AERKE =HA=+—H
PR=EA mE AR ZARE#EME
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THETT THTT THETT

Trade and other payables &<} BR 3k Kz A 4t g 1~

RIE 37,410 37,410 37,410
(e) Fair value of financial instruments (e) MMIBIAEZAFE

The fair values of financial assets and financial M EERMBEEZ A FEIRTY

liabilities are determined as follows: BEEEF

e The fair values of financial assets and financial o HEEERREHLAFRETS
liabilities with standard terms and conditions BECUBEERVBEECZR
and traded in active markets are determined FEDDBZERBTHEAE
with reference to the quoted market bid and LREHEETE &

ask prices respectively; and

e The fair values of other financial assets and e HWBEERMBEEBELZAF
financial liabilities are determined in accordance B DERAREBEA S
with generally accepted pricing models based [FEATMSISER  ETMER
on discounted cash flow analysis using prices WEMENNERE o

from observable current market transactions.

The directors consider that the carrying amounts of EERG R BREAERCTBE
financial assets and financial liabilities recognised in B a A EEEEL QN TEM
the financial statements approximate their fair values.

O bl
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e SRR MR

For the year ended 31 March 2017 &2 —ZE—+tE=A=+—HIFE

30. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)
(e) Fair value of financial instruments

30. MBI RmW
(e) MMIBIRAZAFE M@

(continued)

The following table provides an analysis of financial
instruments that are measured subsequent to initial
recognition at fair value, grouped into Levels 1 to 3
based on degree to which the fair value is
observable:

Level 1 fair value measurements are those derived
from quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for
identical assets or liabilities;

T%?E'ﬁi\%ﬂi? A:Ffﬁﬁ@up{én-l—iz
BBITASH  RBATESEEME
BREDRE—ZEZ=M:

—RATENENEEAAERR
B0 E BT AT 4R CR B8 R B,

Level 2 fair value measurements are those derived — AT EASTIREE—RFFA
from inputs other than quoted prices included within EREUASN - AT EE(BMER) 5

Level 1 that are observable for the asset or liability,
either directly (i.e. as prices) or indirectly (i.e. derived
from prices); and

Level 3 fair value measurements are those derived
from valuation techniques that include inputs for the
asset or liability that are not based on observable
market data (unobservable inputs).

Level 1

2017
—2-tF

Level 2 Level 3
F—H EZH FE=H

(AMEERITE) BEEXRREBEM
BRABESL &

FE=MAFEAETIRBFTALIER
BEAUBEMSBBEZEEXREHA
BB (BEERZ2BABR) 2HER
S

2016
—E—RF

Level2  Level 3

FZH F=H

Level 1
F—;

Equity securities listed in -~ A& /2

Hong Kong at fair value ~ fgAzE%

BATE

Held-for-trading FIEEERE

investments 3,220 - - 12,640 - -
The fair value of held-for-trading investments was BESERE Y ATEDNERTSE
based on quoted bid prices in an active market. TR 8 A(B Bk o
There were no transfers between Levels 1 and 2 in NREEE T—RRE-H BT
both years. maEis o
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e M HRRMIEE

For the year ended 31 March 2017 &2 —ZE—+tE=A=1+—HIFE

31. CAPITAL MANAGEMENT 31. EFEHR

The Group’s objectives when managing capital are to
safeguard the Group's ability to continue as a going
concern in order to provide returns for shareholders and
benefits for other stakeholders and to provide an adequate
return to shareholders.

The Group manages the capital structure and makes
adjustments to it in the light of changes in economic
conditions and the risk characteristics of the underlying
assets. In order to maintain or adjust the capital structure,
the Group may adjust the amount of dividends paid to
shareholders, return capital to shareholders, issue new
shares or sell assets to reduce debt. No changes were
made in the objectives, policies and process during the
years ended 31 March 2017 and 2016.

The Group monitors capital on the basis of gearing ratio,
which is calculated as total liabilities over total assets. The
Group’s strategy is to maintain the gearing ratio at a
satisfactory level. The gearing ratio as at 31 March 2017
was 10% (2016: 12%).

AEEEREA BERRERNEEEER
SEEREGE 86T - UAREBRE IR
R E M0 25 A8 B8 B 75 SR B 2 A K B AR SR A AR
EHElEy -

AEERBEEENN AR EE ZRRSH
EENFHBEANRE - REFAFHBEAR
B AEBRTEABRINTERRZERE S
B RARREEER  BTHRNAEEER
ERDES HE_T—+tFR-FT—X
FZA=t—BLFE IEHEBESF
BER MR PR EE -

AEBEREERGBHXR(REBEREEE
AE)ERERER - AEE KRB RER
BEBBHENMBZKFE R_T—+F
A=t -RAZEERBHERIN(ZF
—NEF 1 12%) °
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e MR M EE

For the year ended 31 March 2017 ##Z2=—Z—tF=A=1+—HIFE

32. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
Save as disclosed in elsewhere in these consolidated
financial statements, the Group had transactions with the
following related parties during the year:

(@) Balances and transactions between the Company
and its subsidiaries, which are related parties of the
Company, have been eliminated on consolidation and
are not disclosed in this note.

(b) Compensation of key management
personnel
The remuneration of Directors and other members of

key management during the year was as follows:

32. ARABEALETES
BRALGRE T BRREMEOFATKEEI - K
EERAEREGENTEEBMALETR
5

(@) ARRARAMBAR (HAKARZA
BEAL) M2 BB REZSERGEE
B S8Y  BR R A R -
(b) TEEBABZHE

RAFER EFREMTIZEEA
SzMemT

2017 2016

—E—t&F —T—REF

HK$'000 HK$'000

FER FHBT

Short-term benefits B HE A 4,086 4,133
Post-employment benefits BERLEREA 30 28
4,116 4,161

The remuneration of Directors and other members of
key management is determined by the remuneration
committee having regard to the performance of
individuals and market trends.

EENHEMFEZEBABZME A
¥FEzEeEREAMABZRRED

LBEIRET -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e M HRRMIEE

For the year ended 31 March 2017 2 =Z—tF=A=1+—HIFE

32. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 32. BRABALTR S W

(continued)

(c) on 18 March 2016, Gold Arch Group Limited (“Gold
Arch”), a direct wholly owned subsidiary of the
Company, entered into a two-year term Technology
Development Agreement (“TDA") with a connected
person, Hope Bio-Tech (Suzhou) Company Limited
("Hope Bio-Tech”), a company controlled by the
executive director of the Company, Mr. David Lin Kao
Kun and his spouse, for improving and
commercialising the two Patents held by Gold Arch.
The total consideration of the TDA for the first year of
service is HK$9,500,000 while the consideration of the
second year is subject to negotiation between both
parties. During the year ended 31 March 2017, the
Group has paid or payable of HK$6,500,000 (2016:
HK$3,000,000) to Hope Bio-Tech and the total sum of
HK$9,500,000 has been recognised as research and
development cost. Details of the transaction are set
out in the Company’s announcement dated 18 March
2016.

The related party transaction in respect of (a) above does
not constitute connected transactions as defined in
Chapter 20 of the GEM Listing Rules.

The related party transactions in respect of (b) above
constitute connected transactions as defined in Chapter 20
of the GEM Listing Rules. However those transactions are
exempt from the disclosure requirements in Chapter 20 of
the GEM Listing Rules.

The related party transactions in respect of (c) above
constitute connected transactions as defined in Chapter 20
of the GEM Listing Rules. The disclosures required by
Chapter 20 of the GEM Listing Rules are provided in the
Directors’ Report.

(c)

RZE—RF=ZA+NB K2dlz
BEEZENBRARSMEBRAERAA
(I=P)) BardE A T EHAEMRH (B
N)BRRR(TEEEMER] A
RAMITEENR LA RERBE
#2228 RIS ABRME ZIEB EITE
AABAR(HEMAZEERD - LB
MIBHEPFEZEFETRA KRR
mit - HIAEERE FRE ZER
& 49,500,000/ 7 - ME=—F 2R E
BREITHNEFTERETE REBE-T
—+tFEZA=Z+—RALFER A&
BEEmMEEEYR I NS ER
6,500,000/ 7L( = Z — 734 : 3,000,000
B IT) - Itk 48 %89,500,0007%8 T AL B
ERAMERN - EEXSHBEERN
ARARIBA-Z—X"F=ZA+/\H
/N

R EXFE@BEZEBEBALRRS TEK
BIERETRAFE20EMRECHERS °

Fh EXEO)BEZERBALRZEKE
EREMRANE20EFMRAEZBERS - K

]

CRERGER BB TRIER EMARRE

0B ZHBHRTE °

R EXFECQBHEZBEBB AL ZEHKE
ERETRANE20EMATELLHEERS - 8l
ERETRRUNE20FMRE 2 WEFRS
REFERE -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e SRR MR

For the year ended 31 March 2017 ##Z2=—Z—tF=A=1+—HIFE

33. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL 33. EEMBLTFIS
SUBSIDIARIES
(@) Particulars of the principal subsidiaries of the @ MZE—+F=ZA=+—H ' ARQAa
Company as at 31 March 2017 are as follows: CEXEWBATEBLT ¢
Place of Proportion of nominal
incorporation/ Registered value of issued capital
Name of subsidiary operation Form of legal entity capital held by the Company Principal activities
KEARER RUEAYE £3:L I 17 A ARAMBERIRARER I TEXH
Directly Indirectly
E# 1
Royal Kit Trading Limited Hong Kong Limited liability Ordinary HK$10,000 - 100%  Investment holding
HREESER LA B company LAR10000ET RELR
BREEAT
MImEAENES The People’s Limited liability HK$150,000,000 - 100% Tracing business
BRAR Republic of China company 150,000,000 70 UL
hE\RAAE EREAAT
Life Sciences and Hong Kong Limited liability Ordinary HKS1 100% - Investment holding
Technologies Group &4 company LER AT REZR
Limited ERERAR
ERRERIEE
ERAF
LST Operating Limited Hong Kong Limited liability Ordinary HK$1 - 100%  Distribution of
B company TERIETL biomedical and fife
BREFAT sciences products
EoRSER
Gold Arch Group Limited British Virgin slands~ Limited liability Ordinary US$1 100% - Investment holding
EF&EERAA EERUEE company LERIET RERR
BREELA
159 Regenerative British Virgin slands~ Limited liability Ordinary US$100 5% - Investment holding
Medicine Group (HX) RERUEE company LERI0ET RELR
Limited BREEAA
10EERERE

(B%)BRAT

159 Autologous Stem Hong Kong Limited liability Ordinary HK$1 - 51%  Storage and
Cell LifeBank (H. ) Limited Bk company LARIBT processing of stem
FE19ERENS ERERAE cells
HREERLE SMMERERINT
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e MR EE

For the year ended 31 March 2017 &2 —ZE—+tE=A=1+—HIFE

33. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL 33. FEMWEB LTS @)
SUBSIDIARIES (continued)
(@  (continued) @ (&)
Place of Proportion of nominal
incorporation/ Registered value of issued capital
Name of subsidiary operation Form of legal entity capital held by the Company Principal activities
il PEE2 e/ EXE  AEERFR BT AARAMRERTRARER AL TEXH
Directly Indirectly
B Btk
159 Anti-Aging Center Hang Kong Limited liability Ordinary HKS 1 - 5% Stem cell anti-aging
(HK) Limited B company AR -
: application related
FEELD AREAT -
ERLT Services
BAMREEEAR
RBR%
Asia Honest Finance Hong Kong Limited liability Ordinary HKS1 100% - Mongy lending
Limited &4 company aR1ATL business
AFHHARA BREELA nEEH
Life Length Anti-Aging Center Hong Kong Limited liabilty Ordinary HK$1 - 100%  Investment holding
(HK) Limited (Formerly known & company LER1AT RERR
as Life Length Intenational BREEAA
Health Club Limited)
FEEGRENZERL
ERAR(BIRERRERS
$$1E ‘{EEL\T/
ERRERE () The People's Limited liability HK$50,000,000 - 100%  Investment holding
BRAR Republic of China company 50,000,000 RERR
hE\RAAE BREELA
RN HRE The People’s Limited liability RMB3,000,000 - 100%  Anti-aging and beatty
ERAA Republic of China company AR%3,000,0007T senvice
hE\RAAE BREEAA RELRERRG
HITEnREEREE The People’s Limited ligbility RMB500,000 - 100%  Anti-aging and beatty
ERAA Republic of China company ARE50000070 senvice
hEARANE BREHEAA NRERER R
None of the subsidiaries had any debt securities EWBATMBEANRAFRETLER
subsisting at the end of the year or at any time during s AR S NI B R 2 (BTG5 5
the year.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e MR M EE

For the year ended 31 March 2017 ##Z2=—Z—tF=A=1+—HIFE

33. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL
SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

(b)  The table below shows details of non-wholly-owned
subsidiaries of the Group that have material non-

controlling interests:

Place of Principal
incorporation/ place of
Name of subsidiary operation business

i P

159 Regenerative Medicine - British Virgin Ilands - Hong Kong

Group (HK) Limited

INEERERE(RE) EBELES A
BRAR

159 Anti-Aging Center Hong Kong Hong Kong
(HK.) Limited

BRIOREERD &k i
BRAT

159 Autologous Stem Cell HongKong HongKong
LifeBank (HK) Limited

BAIBRBENRANE B4 R
ARAT

Indivicually immeterial subsidiaries with non-controlling interests
BEHFRRER  ERIFEENEART

AfEY/ ERE  TEERMY

33. TEMEBLFHFE@

Proportion of
ownership interest held
by non-controlling interests non-controlling interests  non-controlling interests
FERER
FrsRERELA
2017
ZE-tf

49%

49%

49%

2016
EE

4%%

4%%

9%

TRHINFEAEAGIE RS 2 A K
BIEREMB AR ZFHE

Loss allocated to Accumulated

pi
FERERER iR
2017 2016 217 2016

TE-tE ZEE ZE-tF T

HKS'000 | HKS000 ~ HK$'000  HKS'000
TERn kn  Tem | TEn

(562) (1454~ (14,698) (14,136)

(590) (773~ (15573) (14,983)

(1,054) (2,014 (9,031) (7.977)

(6,198) (5,149)

(45,500) (42,245

ANNUAL REPORT 2017 / 3%k @



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e M HRRMIEE

For the year ended 31 March 2017 2 =Z—tF=A=1+—HIFE

33. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL
SUBSIDIARIES (continued)
Summarised financial information in respect of each of the
Group’s subsidiaries that has material non-controlling
interests is set out below. The summarised financial
information below represents amounts before intra-group

33. TEMEBLFHFE@®

BRAEEAFEREa 2 ARESMBAR
MBERBINNT - L THBERREZRE
= A1 88 A 2 FROR

eliminations.
2017 —B—+F
159 159
Regenerative 159 Autologous
Medicine Anti-Aging Stem Cell
Group (H.K.) Center (H.K.) LifeBank (H.K.)
Limited Limited Limited
EF#159
159 B4 ES E#159 BREmE
£E(FE) REEH O #HRR =
BRAF BRAF BRAT
HK$'000 HK$°000 HK$’'000
F#ET FET FTET
Current assets MEE E 1,169 196 10
Non-current assets IEMBEE - 434 628
Current liabilities mEBE (34,591) (83,874) (19,070)
Non-current liabilities FERBEE - - -
Equity attributable to owners — ZRRQ FEA A BIERER
of the Company (17,046) (42,454) (9,400)
Non-controlling interests JEIE T (16,376) (40,790) (9,032)
Non-controlling interests JEIE T
(after intra-group (EERNEHEE)
eliminations) (14,698) (15,573) -
Revenue Wz - 6,693 -
Expenses M (3,855) (6,896) (2,152)
Loss for the year REZEE (3,855) (203) (2,152)
Loss attributable to owners RARHEA AELEIE
of the Company (1,966) (104) (1,098)
Loss attributable to the FEIE AR R BN B 1R
non-controlling interests (1,889) (99) (1,054)
Loss for the year KEEZEE (3,855) (203) (2,152)
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For the year ended 31 March 2017 ##Z2=—Z—tF=A=1+—HIFE

33. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL
SUBSIDIARIES (continued)
2017 (continued)

33. TEMEBLFHFE@

—E2—-tF (&)

159 159
Regenerative 159 Autologous
Medicine Anti-Aging Stem Cell
Group (H.K.) Center (H.K.) LifeBank (H.K.)
Limited Limited Limited
E#&159
159 BEER E#159 BEREmE
£8 (&%) REEH D 4 Bfg e
BRAF BRAH BRAF
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$°000
FET FET FTET
Other comprehensive income AN 2A &% A AJEL
attributable to owners of Hih2mEkEs

the Company
Other comprehensive income

IR o PR A

attributable to the Hih2Ekas

non-controlling interests = - -
Other comprehensive income  ZN4E[E Hth 2 mE U =5

for the year - - -
Total comprehensive expense A2 RIEHB AFE(L

attributable to owners of FHMAS B

the Company (1,966) (104) (1,098)
Total comprehensive expense  FE{Z e MRS FE(S

attributable to the 2EAZ B

non-controlling interests (1,889) (99) (1,054)
Total comprehensive expense  ZN4F[Z 2 mE 7 4458

for the year (3,855) (203) (2,152)
Dividends paid to T IEE R 2 BB

non-controlling interests = = -
Net cash outflow from RELEXEB 2R

operating activities HER (5,327) = (120)
Net cash outflow from REREEB RS

investing activities FEE = (19) =
Net cash inflow KERMEEB RSN

from financing activities FRE 5,337 258 120
Net cash inflow WEMAFE 10 239 -
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For the year ended 31 March 2017 2 =Z—tF=A=1+—HIFE

33. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL 33. XEME LTS @)

SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

2016

Regenerative
Medicine
Group (H.K.)
Limited

159 FEESE
SE(HH)
BIRA A
HK$'000
T

Anti-Aging
Center (H.K.)
Limited

B 159
MEEFRL
AR AT
HK$'000
TAT

159
Autologous
Stem Cell
LifeBank (H.K.)
Limited
B 159
Bfgame
4R e
BRATA
HK$'000
FH&T

Current assets MENEE 2,825 8,826 590
Non-current assets IEREEE - 2,139 2,373
Current liabilities mBEaE (31,675) (87,440) (19,244)
Non-current liabilities ERHaE - - -
Equity attributable to owners — AQ BB AJE(RHEZ

of the Company (14,714) (39,002) (8,304)
Non-controlling interests FEIE AR M B (14,136) (37,473) (7,977)
Non-controlling interests FEPE AR =

(after intra-group (EEANEHE)

eliminations) - (14,983) -
Revenue Wz - 5,287 -
Expenses 53 (2,967) (52,763) (4,110)
Loss for the year REZEE (2,967) (47,476) (4,110)
Loss attributable to owners RARHEA AELEIE

of the Company (1,513) (24,213) (2,096)
Loss attributable to the IRV R i

non-controlling interests (1,454) (23,263) (2,014)
Loss for the year KEEHE (2,967) (47,476) 4,110)

HONG KONG LIFE SCIENCES AND TECHNOLOGIES GROUP LIMITED o &4 sp RIS B AR A 7



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e SRR MR

For the year ended 31 March 2017 ##Z2=—Z—tF=A=1+—HIFE

33. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL 33. EEME LTS
SUBSIDIARIES (continued)
2016 (continued) —E-XE(E)

159 159
Regenerative 159 Autologous
Medicine Anti-Aging Stem Cell
Group (H.K)) Center (HK)  LifeBank (H.K.)
Limited Limited Limited
BA159

159 EESE 159 B g Eme
= (&HH) MEEZH D 4R e
AR AH BRAH BRAFA
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
T T T 7T

Other comprehensive income KA &) B AJE(L

attributable to owners of Hih2mEkas

the Company - - -
Other comprehensive income  FE3E AR R 25 FE(S

attributable to the Hih2EKEs

non-controlling interests - - -

Other comprehensive income  ZN4E [E Hith 2 mE U=
for the year - - -

Total comprehensive expense A2 RIEB AJE(L

attributable to owners of FHMAS B

the Company (1,513) (24,213) (2,096)
Total comprehensive expense  FE1Z e =5 FE(S

attributable to the ZHMAS B

non-controlling interests (1,454) (23,263) (2,014)

Total comprehensive expense  ZN4F [Z 2 7 4458

for the year (2,967) (47,476) (4,110
Dividends paid to T IEE s 2 IR B

non-controlling interests - - -
Net cash outflow from RELEEB 2R ME

operating activities PR (5,072) (1,080) (2,101
Net cash outflow from KEREES RSN

investing activities FEE - (5) -
Net cash inflow (outflow) REMEBES 2R RA

from financing activities (i) #58 5,409 (25) 2,107
Net cash inflow (outflow) WERMACRL) F58 337 (1,110) -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e M HRRMIEE

For the year ended 31 March 2017 2 =Z—tF=A=1+—HIFE

34. EVENTS AFTER REPORTING PERIOD 34. EHEER

For the year ended 31 MARCH 2017

On 31 May 2017, Metropolitan Global Trading Limited
("Purchaser”), a direct wholly-owned subsidiary of the
Company, entered into the agreement with, among other
parties, Mr. Lam Wai Keung (“Vendor"), Honorbase
International Limited (“Target Company”) and Asia Honest
Finance Limited (“Lender”), a direct wholly owned
subsidiary of the Company, pursuant to which the Vendor
had agreed to sell and the Purchaser had agreed to
purchase the entire issued share capital of the Target
Company at the consideration of HK$43,900,000. The
transaction was completed on 7 June 2017. Details of the
acquisition of entire issued share capital of Target Company
were set out in the Company’s announcements dated 31
May 2017 and 7 June 2017.

BE—_Z—tF=A=+—HLEE
RZZE—+FREA=1T—HB ARFZHEE
2EMBRARAARRKEZERAB(E
TDEEREE)MEREETESD B
HERBERAR(BRERAR) RARFZE
E2EWMBRARHATMBAERAA(NE
ADRIS % - Bt - EHREHEME
SREBERBRAREIEHITRA - RE
/34390000087 - RHPER ZF—LF X
AtBzEik AREBREARZEHEHT
BAZHBEHNARB RS -_T—LFH
A=t—BE-ZT—tFRALBZ M-
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For the year ended 31 March 2017 ##Z2=—Z—tF=A=1+—HIFE

35. INFORMATION ABOUT THE STATEMENT  35. B A THERREZ S
OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE

COMPANY
2017 2016
—E—E —TE—REF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHxT FHEIT
Non-current assets FRBEE
Property, plant and equipment WE - BB R&HE - 5
Interests in subsidiaries INERIEYNCIPE: £ 249,308 270,220
Total non-current assets IEmBEELE 249,308 270,225
Current assets REBEE
Trade and other receivables JFE LS BR 51 K i i LRI 13 144
Held-for-trading investments BIEEERE 3,220 12,640
Tax in advance TEfIHHIE 642 959
Cash and bank balances B MIRTTHER 113,818 38,209
Total current assets MEVEEBE 117,693 51,952
Current liabilities REAE
Amount due to subsidiaries FETHY B A 5 F0E 705 720
Trade and other payables JRE AT BR % % L At A5 R IE 1,062 811
Total current liabilities mENB BB 1,767 1,531
Net current assets MENEEFE 115,926 50,421
Net assets BEEFE 365,234 320,646
Capital and reserves AR #EE
Share capital % 227,536 189,613
Reserves ez 137,698 131,033
Total equity RS ARER 365,234 320,646
Approved and authorised for issue by the board of directors KEFeN _T—+FA-+T=ZHILER
on 23 June 2017. BT -
LU Zhigiang CHUI Kwong Kau
EXE BB
Executive Director Executive Director
HITEE HITEFE
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For the year ended 31 March 2017 2 =Z—tF=A=1+—HIFE

35. INFORMATION ABOUT THE STATEMENT 35. BRI AT MERARZEH
OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE (#8)
COMPANY (continued)
(@) Movements of the Company’s reserves (a) KXATRFEZET

Share
Share options  Accumulated
premium reserve losses Total

BOEE  BRESE  2HES 2%
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
57 57 571 570

At 1 April 2015 RZE-REMA—H 524,799 1,575 (392,257) 134,117
Loss for the year AEEER - - (76,168) (76,168)
Total comprehensive expense AEEEERYAE

for the year - - (76,168) (76,168)
Issue of ordinary shares under BERNEERTLBR

share placing 68,361 - - 68,361
Recognition of equity-settled AR ALE

share-based payment MR BER 2 {57 - 4723 - 4723
Share options lapsed BREXK - (6,298) 6,298 -
At 31 March 2016 RZE-R"E=A=1—-H 593,160 - (462,127) 131,033
At 31 March 2016 and RZE-R"¥=A=T—H

at 1 April 2016 MRZE—REMA—H 593,160 - (462,127) 131,033
Loss for the year AEEER - - (75,520) (75,520)
Total comprehensive expense AEEEARYEE

for the year - - (75,520) (75,520)
Issue of ordinary shares under RERMEEETLRR

share placing 82,185 - - 82,185
At 31 March 2017 RZE—+F=A=1—H 675,345 - (537,647) 137,698
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For the year ended 31 March 2017 ##Z2=—Z—tF=A=1+—HIFE

35. INFORMATION ABOUT THE STATEMENT
OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE
COMPANY (continued)

(b) Nature and purpose of reserves

(i)

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

Share premium

Under the Companies Law (Revised) of the
Cayman Islands, the share premium of the
Company is available for paying distributions or
dividends to shareholders subject to the
provisions of its Memorandum or Articles of
Association and provided that immediately
following the distribution or dividend, the
Company is able to pay its debts as they fall
due in the ordinary course of business.

Special reserve

The special reserve of the Group represents the
difference between the nominal value of the
shares of the acquired subsidiaries and the
nominal value of the Company’s shares issued
for the acquisition at the time of the group
reorganisation prior to the listing of the
Company's shares in 2002.

Share options reserve

The share options reserve represents the fair
value of the number of unexercised share
options granted by the Company recognised in
accordance with the accounting policy adopted
for equity-settled share-based payments in note
5()(0).

Translation reserve

The translation reserve comprises all foreign
exchange differences arising from the
translation of the financial statements of foreign
operations. The reserve is dealt with in
accordance with the accounting policy set out
in note 5(f).

(c) Distributability of reserves
In the opinion of the directors of the Company, the
Company's reserves available for distribution to
shareholders as at 31 March 2017 amount to
approximately HK$137,698,000 (2016: HK$131,033,000).

(#)

35. ARFLFAMBRARZEH

(b) HEMHERRARE

(i)

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

B aE
RIBEFSHS A RNEEBET) -
AR R AT AR R B A AR 3R 9 R
XS - AT AREA
BERRKMSAMB 21X BR
A FEAR R B P B BE R 3k 2 AR
Bi& - NBEENEENBEER
BIRPREZER - FAEE S
IR Z RS o

¥ 5l fek 1

REE 25 R FHE AR R D
R-ZET_FLHABEBEEE
AEL P Yo B8 PR B8 2 B A £ TED (B B AR
RARBA BT EEMRE
B2 258

BREGFE
BRAEREEARRMEL AR
TEBREHE 22 FE - RE
I RESEN AT A EE
B RER 2 KM Rz &
FTIRRFER o

EREE

IE N B ERRE RN R
BWRELZEELER - %
18 T AR 45 MY & 5(N P 8 & R ERR
BRI

(c) "toikfEE
AAREERAE R-ZE—+F=A
=t—HB AR AHIIRTFREZ
it 15 49 5137,698,0008 7L ( —Z — /X
4 1 131,033,000/ 7T) °

ANNUAL REPORT 2017 / 3%k



Five-Year Financial Summary

hAFMBRE

For the year ended 31 March 2017 2 =Z—tF=A=1+—HIFE

The summarised consolidated results, assets and liabilities of the
Group for the last five financial years, as extracted from the

audited financial statements of the Group, were set out below:

Year ended 31 March
BZE=A=1+—HLFE

2014

—Z=—[OF
HK$'000
FH&T

2015 2016
—E—RHF —ZE—RF
HK$'000 HK$'000
T T

AEBBERAMRFELHERE  BEREA
B (F e A REEEZM BRI T

Revenue U #5 39,153 679,891 320,079 123,372 153,572
Loss before tax B350 AT B 18 (41,801)  (132,825) (77,175) 41,111 (67,963)
Income tax st (11 (12) (1,709) (656) o
Loss for the year from REBELEER L

continuing operations REEFIE (41,812)  (132,837) (78,884) @1,767)  (67,963)
Loss for the year from REDKRIEES 2

discontinued operations REEEE (1,314) (52,121) (9,677) (5,669) -
Loss for the year REZEE (43126)  (184,958) (88,561) (47,436)  (67,963)
Attributable to: FE1h -

Owners of the Company ViN/NEIEZ ¥ =N (35,614) (152,201) (81,134) (42,167) (64,708)

Non-controlling interests FEPE R R = (7,512) (32,757) (7,427) (5,269) (3,255)

As at 31 March
MR=A=+—H

2014

—ZT—OF
HK$'000
FH&TT

2015 2016
—E—RHF —ZE—RX
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET

ASSETS AND LIABILITIES EEREE

Total assets BEBE 691,219 441,760 316,665 361,642 410,655
Total liabilities e (227,221) (94,904) (52,348) (43,047) (42,365)
Net assets BEFE 463,998 346,856 264,317 318,595 368,290
Non-controlling interests RS 35,279 (29,549) (36,976) (42,245)  (45,500)
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